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Chan Tung Moe [R5 E
Chief Investment Officer 1% & 225

We create structures that visibly bear our passion for building and design
quality. And in every new niche we undertake, we redefine standards
through our revolutionary creativity, shattering expectations. We always
work towards achieving pride-in-ownership of a high end luxury product
for our customers across all our segments. A sense of pride that flows
from us builders to our valued customers in all our existing and future
markets.
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As a seasoned hotel owner and operator with an eye and passion for
niche developments, we plan to extension to our hospitality line in
exciting directions. By leveraging our existing branding, expertise and
partner relationships, and our understanding of markets, trends and
demand niches we will create new refuges for travelers that are affordable,
convenient, comfortable and clean while remaining hip and trendy.
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Chan Tong Wan (Tony) R 4718
Managing Director & 5484138

Odur partners are what truly differentiate us. Through our open approach
to these relationships we grow faster and more dynamically. We view
ourselves as an energetic platform that can offer diverse opportunities to
partners of various interests. By maintaining this flexibility our partners’
goals are visibly and openly aligned with ours, and we grow and gain
together.
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JAPAN PROPERTIES
HOTEL PLAZA MIYAZAKI

AARESR
HOTEL PLAZA MIYAZAKI

Hotel Plaza Miyazaki is conveniently situated in a city in the
Southern part of Japan on Kyushu Island. It is one of the well-known
hotels situated at the center of Miyazaki City, the second largest city
in Kyushu. The hotel is a 10-minute drive from the Miyazaki Station
along Oyodogawa riverside. It has 164 rooms and provides full service
amenities including 15 different size banquet rooms, 4 meeting
rooms, a river view sky restaurant / lounge, 2 Japanese restaurants, a
karaoke room, a bar and a lobby lounge. In addition, the hotel has
a natural hot spring spa facility with indoor and outdoor hot spring
baths, sauna and massage service open to staying guests and day use

visitors.

The hotel is a fine retreat for those seeking a calming and pleasurable

experience in the city.

Hotel Plaza Miyazakifjﬁ/i\azﬁjld““%@égg MO EGE R o OB IERLEE AR
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AIZUYA
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Aizuya is an authentic and traditional Japanese hot spring inn located
at Nasu, Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain resort area which
is approximately 2 hours drive from Tokyo downtown. Aizuya has
a total of 22 rooms including 2 rooms with enchanting hot spring
open baths. It can accommodate over 60 guests at one time. Facilities
include 2 large hot spring baths, 2 private hot spring open baths
exclusive for use of staying guests on a charter basis and 2 massage
rooms for female clients only. Satisfying its guests’ gastronomic
needs and wants is a restaurant serving dinner & breakfast all done
in the traditional meticulous and savoury Japanese way. There is also
a souvenir shop where guests can avail of Aizuya private label items
such as Sake, Soba (Japanese noodles), etc.

B -_FFR Annual Report 2012
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JAPAN PROPERTIES
THE HAMILTON SAPPORO
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THE HAMILTON SAPPORO
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The Hamilton Sapporo regally sits in Chuo Ward, Sapporo City,
Japan. It is an eight-storey hotel erected over a onelevel basement.
Its 103 rooms of various types all cater to its guests’ diverse needs
from business to relaxation to aesthetics. Serving utmost convenience
and care for its guests are the hotel’s Japanese room, meeting room,

haircut salon, Japaneserestaurant and an aesthetics salon.

The Hamilton Sapporofiz /A B AALIR T RR - RIREIE < JEEZ&E/\
CWRERE-EME - FEERESH103H 0 BE—HERE - —ME
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The Company’s portfolio of residential apartment properties in Hong
Kong was acquired with the mindset of targeting “basic need” homes
at secondary market prices that the primary market would have
difficulty replicating. With that theme in mind we focused on homes
supported by convenient rail access and those near universities, and
sought opportunities where a cost effective renovation would pay off
with increased reoccurring yields and long term capital appreciation.

ARRZ BREEDFEABSHEEATRIEE - WAE—FH
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SINGAPORE DEVELOPMENTS
PASIR RIS ONE DBSS
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Concept Designer: Mr. Chan Heng Fai
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Architect: AGA Architects Pte Ltd
FEZEE | AGA Architects Pte Ltd

After the door to creating designer homes for the public opened
through the Housing & Development Board’s DBSS (Design, Build,
and Sell Scheme) last year, we have gained opportunity to bring our
expertise and services farther and wider to the large Singaporean
public housing market. This program allows private developers to
collaborate with HDB to broaden the market’s options and meet
their growing needs.

DBSS homes are offered for sale under similar eligibility rules as new
HDB (Housing & Development Board) homes. These conditions
include citizenship, age, family nucleus, income ceiling and past or
current ownership in other public or private property. First-time
buyers who are eligible receive cash and financing subsidies and are
allowed to utilize their pension scheme to assist with their equity
payments. Demand is often based on an individual’s timing with
respect to meeting the criteria, and property locations are often driven
by personal circumstances and distance to the MRT.
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SingXpress embarked on this venture with success as we won the
bid at approximately S$123.9 million for a DBSS project presently
being developed on a 16,388.2 sqm site in Pasir Ris Central with
a maximum permissible Gross Floor Area (GFA) of 40,970.5 sqm
(2.5 times plot ratio), targeted to comprise 447 apartments. The
development is a 4 residential block, 13/14 storey DBSS project with
3R, 4R, and 5R unit types inclusive of a child care centre, car park,
and all facilities ancillary to the development. The project completion
period is 48 months with a lease term of 103 years. The development
site is at the heart of the Pasir Ris town centre with various amenities
within its vicinity including the Pasir Ris Town Park, shopping
centres, prestigious primary and secondary schools, as well as the
Pasir Ris MRT station, the Pasir Ris Bus Interchange, and major
expressways.
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SINGAPORE DEVELOPMENTS

TAMPINES EXECUTIVE CONDOMINIUM
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As Singapore commits to raise its citizens’ residence standards by
facilitating affordable luxury housing through its unique executive
condominium (EC) program, we perceive a strong opportunity to
serve an exciting market segment. Stable, transparent, and predictable
with a strong supply-demand balance, this segment is a sizeable
and growing market due to intelligent government policy. With
this favourable atmosphere, we are well-positioned to be at the fore
of this opportunity through our creative, technical and marketing

competencies.

This emergent and vibrant avenue allows us to employ our design
and quality vision that is set to create a new yardstick for the housing
industry yet again which we had earlier done in the DBSS program
and is expected to carry into this EC segment.

In May 2012 we, along with our partners Kay Lim Realty Pte Led
and Creative Investments Pte Ltd (a subsidiary of Amara Holdings
Limited), won the land parcel at Tampines Central 7/Tampines

Avenue 7/Tampines Avenue 9 in district 18 for a tender price of
$$233.5 million for the development of an EC project in Singapore.
With a 20,750.5 sqm site and 2.8 times plot ratio, we target to
complete 500—-600 units in 48 months with a lease term of 103 years.
The project site is a vibrant locale surrounded by lifestyle centres and
natural landscapes. It is close to shopping amenities such as Tampines
Mall, Tampines One and Century Square, near educational
institutions such as St. Hilda’s, Gongshang, and Poi Ching Primary
Schools, as well as green sanctuaries such as Tampines Eco Park, Sun
Plaze Park, Bedok Reservoir Park, the upcoming Integrated Lifestyle
Hub, and is easily accessible via ECP, PIE, TPE, Tampines MRT and
the future Downtown Line 3 MRT Interchange.

With this project we are moving further into our investment
banking approach by leading the tender syndication. We may also
be seeking further investor participation in this project as part of our

coinvestment strategy.
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TAMPINES EXECUTIVE CONDOMINIUM
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SINGAPORE DEVELOPMENTS

CHARLTON RESIDENCES

K ESR
CHARLTON RESIDENCES

Artist’s Impression
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Concept Designer: Mr. Chan Heng Fai
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Architect: Design Metabolists Chartered Archii
FEEED Design Metabolists Chartered Architects

Charlton Residences, previously known as Foh Pin Mansion is
serenely situated in 1 Charlton Road, Singapore 539548 amid green
and peaceful surrounds. The district 19 frechold development is
categorized as Cluster Housing with 21 strata units and is estimated
to be completed in the year 2014. The design incorporates total
privacy, vitality, and only the finest comforts with its contemporary
style complemented with a lap pool, clubhouse, and gym that
promote fitness and wellness. It is where a luxuriously relaxing retreat
need not be a rare occasion but lived out as a gratifying and inspiring
lifestyle. Charlton Residences also offers excellent space and efficient
unit layout for generally bigger families. Fitted with high quality
contemporary interior finishes with branded fittings, it provides

dwellers with maximum style and convenience. The development is
only a 5 min walk to Kovan MRT, Heartland Mall and Kovan City
and a 15-minute drive to Orchard shopping belt and the CBD (central
business district) area. Its accessibility to major expressways, the
vicinity it shares with various amenities, and its privacy and comfort
make it an ideal residence of choice for families. All these positively
indicate the development’s high potential for good rental yield and
capital appreciation.
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SINGAPORE DEVELOPMENTS
SINGXPRESS MANSIONS
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SINGXPRESS MANSIONS
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SingXpress Mansions breathes city living. Located at 235 Balestier
Road, the old Waldorf Mansions was completed in 1991 as
an 11-floor apartment. This residential property is soon to be
redeveloped into a modern 20-storey, 50 frechold-apartment edifice
nestled within the vicinity of convenience, pleasure, and necessities. As
it is in close proximity to 2 major expressways — PIE and CTE — with
neighbouring amenities like shopping centres, supermarkets, food
and entertainment establishments, as well as prestigious schools such
as Hong Wen School, St Joseph’s Institution (junior) and Bendemeer
Secondary School, SingXpress Mansions brings people to optimum
city living and beyond.

A 20-storey luxurious condominium project to be built in excess of
50 apartments.

SingXpress Mansions i 74235 Balestier Road * B AR — NN —F7%
o BENENABTEANE  MEAFTAENBEZS—EES
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SINGAPORE INVESTMENTS
SOUTHBANK SOHO / DAKOTA RESIDENCES

MIRERRE
SOUTHBANK SOHO / DAKOTA RESIDENCES

SOUTHBANK SOHO

Completed in 2009, Southbank — a 99-year leasehold condominium
located at 881-883 North Bridge Road Singapore — is a place where
the serene nature, the sparkling city, and the cultural hub converge.

/4

The 60-unit SOHO block comes in single-storey high ceiling unit
or a duplex. As SOHO units allow dual uses, they are designed with
versatility where the owner has the freedom of styling it for home

_
T 7727227272277 4

or work or both. Its MRT and inner-city location with seamless

.

connection to Marina Promenade and Kallang River, its breathtaking
views of river to the sea, and its place in a district filled with arts,
academic, sports and cultural richness make it a convenient lifestyle

and nature- based residence for Singaporeans.
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STRUCTURE

Property
Development
MERER

Real Estate Real Estate

Investment Co-Investing

FIERE FHEAFRE

Hospitality Real Estate
ST Management Services
Po 4t EE ' ¥R AR 75
Property Asset
Trading Management
MEEER BEER

Xpress Group will continue to expand its seven core BESERBRETH L EROELD I
business divisions:
Property Development MEER
Real Estate Investment FHERE
Real Estate Co-Investing FHESIERE
Hospitality B R
Property Trading MEXEE
Real Estate Management Services PRI E B IR RS

Asset Management BEER
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE

ERWE

The period under review has been notable for several significant
efforts carried out to execute our “investment banking approach”
to property development, focusing on business opportunities in
Singapore.

In an exceptionally busy year, we significantly strengthened our
balance sheet by way of open offer by the Company and a rights issue
by our Singapore-listed subsidiary, SingXpress Land Ltd (“SingXpress
Land”). Our first private residential development in Singapore sold
out, and we laid the groundwork for the launch of our first public
housing project in the republic, Pasir Ris One. Based on the schedule
of completion of the private residential development project,
Charlton Residences, the revenue recognition would begin from
the year ending 31 March 2013 (“FY2013”). In another significant
milestone for our Group, subsequent to FY2012, SingXpress Land,
together with its partners, successfully bid $$233.5 million for a land
parcel for an Executive Condominium public housing development
in Singapore.

Looking forward, we will continue to build upon our property
development activities. We are seeking to expand our hospitality
division’s reach and brand beyond Japan into other parts of Asia. And
we are excited about the co-investor and partner relationships we are
building through our Asset Management division.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For FY2012 we recorded revenue of HK$81.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately 8.2% as compared to FY2011. The
Group recorded a net loss of HK$156.4 million in FY2012 compared
to a net profit of HK$45.4 million in FY2011.

The projects that we embarked in this financial year were launched
cither close to or subsequent to the financial year-end. As a result,
there was no property development revenue recorded for FY2012.

CHARLTON RESIDENCES - EXECUTING OUR
CORPORATE STRATEGY

Without doubt, the highlight of the year was the launch in November
2011 of Charlton Residences, a freehold cluster housing development
of 21 units in Singapore’s Kovan precinct which sits on 34,154
square-foot frechold plot (the former Foh Pin Mansions) that we
acquired en bloc in 2010 for S$21.4 million. We are elated that the
project sold out in March 2012, within four months of the launch,
recording aggregate sales value of $$59.6 million, or an average price
of $$2.84 million per unit. The development company, Charlton
Residences Pte Ltd, is 80%-owned by SingXpress and 20%-owned by
A.C.T. Holdings Pte Ltd.
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Xpress Group Property Investments and Commitments

HK$2.3 billion

Total Property Investments and Commitments
inclusive of partners

HK$5.6 billion

Property Investments and Commitments inclusive of partners

Group’s Property Investments and Commitments

JAPAN HONG KONG HONG KONG SINGAPORE SINGAPORE SINGAPORE | SINGAPORE
million (HKS) | 3 Hotels | 2 Wyndham Place Offices | 37 Apartments | One Charlton Road | Waldorf Mansions | HDB DBSS Project | Tampines EC Project
| Total: HK$107 mil | Total: HK$86 mil | Total: HK$81 mil | Total: HK$253 mil | Total: HK$247 mil | (Pasir Ris One): | HK$2,716 mil
| (Group - 82% : | (Group - 100%) | (Group - 64% : | (Group - 49% : | (Group - 65% : | HK$1,506 mil | (Group - 18% :
6.000 | 1 HKS87 mil) | | HKS$ 53 mil) | HK$123 mil) | HK$160 mil) | (Group - 49% : ! HK$497 mil)
| i i | | | HK$734 mil) |
| | | 1 i 5,593
5,000 = | SINGAPORE ! ! |
! | Arcadia, Dakota & ! ! i
| | Southbank i ! |
4,000 — | Total: HK$597 mil i ! |
! | (Group - 94% : i ! |
! ' HK$563 mil) ! ! |
3,000 — | | |
: ! 1 2,303
2,000 |- | ! ! !
! | i [ 1
1,000 7L 072
I 9
3Q2007 1Q2010 2Q2010 October 2010 January 2011 June 2011 May 2012

* Tampines EC Project was secured on 14 May 2012, afier the financial year ended 31 March 2012.
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23%%% —— REENYRIRE FURE
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I
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| 4818+ 107,000,000/ 7T | 421 : 86,000,000/ 7T | 42{E © 81,000,000 7T | 4B{E : 253,000,000787C | £ : 247,000,000/87C | EEMHEBEE ! 2,716,000,00077T,
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1107 e
—ETAF —ZT-2F —E-EF —Z2-2F —E——%F —T——F —E——fF
F=F E—F F=F +A —A ~A hA
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The project can be considered as the first step in the execution of our
investment banking approach to property development in Singapore
— a strategy which capitalizes on the strong capital market background
of the senior management of SingXpress Land and the Company.
This expertise in securitization, syndication and risk management
allows our team to build a network and an eco-system of financial and
strategic partners focused on real estate and adopt fresh approaches to
unlocking value in developing real estate in Singapore.

Based on the completion schedule, the Group expects to recognise
approximately half of the revenue of development in FY2013, with
the balance spread out over FY2014 and FY2015.

Pasir Ris One — the Group’s First Public Housing Development
in Singapore

Subsequent to the financial year end, SingXpress Land launched
Pasir Ris One — a public housing development under the Singapore
government’s Housing & Development Board’s Design, Build
and Sell Scheme (“DBSS”) on 27 April 2012. The development
comprising of 447 design-centric three to five-room units located
adjacent to Pasir Ris MRT has made its mark in the public housing
sector with its modern contemporary design and fagade, evident in its
subscription rate of 1.94 times within weeks after the launch. In line
with our “investment banking” strategy, Pasir Ris One is developed
by SingXpress KayLim Pte. Ltd which is 80%-owed by SingXpress
Land Group and 20%-owned by Kay Lim Holdings Pte. Ltd.

The completion of construction method is expected to be adopted for
revenue recognition of this development. Assuming complete sales
based on the indicative pricing ranges of each of the unit types, total
revenue from this development is expected to range between $$265
and S$285 million, the bulk of which will be recognized in FY2015.

Our equity holdings in the above two projects via SingXpress Land
is 80% each, with the balance being taken up by strategic partners
with expertise and experience in the relevant segments of property
development. This approach, which combines syndication and risk
management, allows us to act swiftly to secure and launch projects
and is in line with our investment banking approach to property.

TAMPINES EXECUTIVE CONDOMINIUM

On 14 May 2012, in line with our strategic vision, we announced
that a consortium in which SingXpress Land has an effective
30%-stake had successfully bid $$233.5 million for a land parcel for
an Executive Condominium (“EC”) public housing development
in Singapore. The land parcel is located at Tampines Central 7/
Tampines Avenue 7/Tampines Avenue 9. The joint-venture partners
behind this land tender are Creative Investments Pte Ltd, a wholly
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owned subsidiary of SGX-listed Amara Holdings Limited (40%), Kay
Lim Realty Pte Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kay Lim Holdings
Pte Ltd, our partner for Pasir Ris One (30%), and SingXpress Land
(30%). Our minority stake in this EC project underscores our
investment banking approach strategy, which emphasises return on
equity and risk management. The revenue recognition for this project
is contingent on the launch date and expected time frame for receipt
of the Temporary Occupation Permit (“TOP”), both of which have
not been decided upon at the time of writing.

STRENGTHENING OUR MANAGEMENT

The rollout of our investment banking approach to property cannot
take place without the induction of experienced professionals to our
board and management team.

I am therefore pleased to welcome some new members of our
growing team. The first is Mr. Chan King Fai, appointed as a new
independent non-executive director of the Board with effect from
August 2011. Mr. Chan King Fai is currently a partner of Lau Chan
and Company, Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Yeo Wee Kiong was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman and
business adviser to SingXpress Land. Mr. Yeo is also an independent
director on the board of three other companies listed on the
Singapore Exchange, SMRT Corporation Ltd, Bonvests Holdings
Limited and Kian Ho Bearings Ltd. Mr. Yeo brings to SingXpress
Land a wealth of experience in law, investment banking and private
equity, corporate governance and business management and will
be available to share with SingXpress Land where necessary, his
knowledge and experience in corporate commercial structures for co-
investing and joint ventures. SingXpress Land also intends to enlist
Mr. Yeo’s help in developing a pool of potential co-investors and
joint venture partners in order to further SingXpress Land’s intention
to further its businesses in the property investment and property
development/re-development aspects.

Mr. Tan Tai Soon was appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director of SingXpress Land. Mr. Tan brings more than 30 years
of experience in the construction and property industry, including
14 years with Straits Developments Pte Ltd, and has also served as a
member in Singapore’s Building and Construction Authority’s Best
Buildable Design Awards Assessment Committee from 2003 to 20006.

Mr. Damayanth Sunimal Goonetillake (“Mr. Suni”) was appointed
Executive Director of SingXpress Land. With more than 20 years
of experience in banking, capital markets and capital management,
Mr. Suni will be responsible for formulating the SingXpress Land’s
strategy and all aspects of developing SingXpress Land into a
major Singapore property development company with our unique
investment banking approach.

&) KkSingXpress Land 5 BIHEA40% ~ 30% % 30% 45 o FPIAULHEE
AEEER 2 DERERBERIRE RN H 82 K - ZERAER
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Ms. Chang Soy Lee (Catherine) was appointed General Manager,
Strategic Planning and Business Development. Ms. Chang has over
30 years’ project management experience in hotel, residential and
commercial development and has worked as a Project Engineer,
Structural Engineer and Geo-technical Engineer in the past.

Mr. Tsui Chi Hou (Danny) was appointed General Manager,
Business Development of the Property Development Division and
is responsible for the building project business development of the
Group. Mr. Tsui has over 20 years’ experience in building and
construction industry.

Collectively, they significantly strengthen the team’s capabilities
in terms of property experience, financial expertise and corporate
experience even as we roll out the next stage of our investment
banking approach to property development and hospitality.

OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertainty surrounding the Eurozone debt crisis and the
additional buyer’s stamp duty weighing on sentiment, we believe that
the Singapore property market will continue to remain attractive due
to the home ownership programme, political stability and low interest
rate environment. Moreover, strong interest in recent property
launches in Singapore show that there is liquidity in the markets.
We firmly believe we have a strong value proposition because of
our emphasis on design to complement a good, if not outstanding,
location. Our focus on public housing and smaller private residential
developments in Singapore will continue to position us well in the
market.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to take this opportunity
to record our sincere thanks to all the people who have contributed so
much during an eventful and significant year. I would like to thank
our clients, our management and staff, the various professionals, and
our shareholders for their support and trust. We look forward to your
continued support as we chart an exciting future for the Group.

Thank you.

Chan Heng Fai
Managing Chairman
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Chan Tong Wan (Tony) fR#:E
Managing Director & £ 84T 1%

DYNAMIC PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Success is achieved by looking ahead; identifying and understanding
the right market, segment, product and partners. Our proactive
management creates for us safe and scalable value generators. We also
take pride in our transparency and clarity that lead to alignment with
our associates, both local and international. Overall, our approach
towards success involves smartly identifying trends, systematically
developing opportunities and advancing our execution capabilities
without unduly expanding our risk.
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INVESTMENT BANKING APPROACH TOWARDS
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

We understand the full capability of a property development
platform. We recognize markets, capital structures, syndication and
the importance of alignment. We identify how to bring in partners,
and with them create and share wealth. We understand how to
create a business platform that is open-minded, perpetually scalable
and constantly dynamic. And with this full awareness we are able to
reach beyond traditional borders and typical approaches to create
something truly outstanding.
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Financial Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$81.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of
approximately 8.2% as compared to the year ended 31 March 2011.
The increase in turnover was mainly due to the increase in turnover
of the hotels and hospitality division and increase in rental income
during the year. The loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2012 was approximately HK$156.4 million
as compared to the profit of HK$45.4 million in 2011.

The basic loss per share for the year was HK5.36 cents when
compared with the basic earnings per share of HK1.72 cents in the
previous year.

(@)  Property development

Charlton Residences, a freechold cluster housing development
of 21 units in Singapore’s Kovan precinct which sits on
34,154 square-foot freechold plot (the former Foh Pin
Mansions), was launched for sales in November 2011 and
sold out by March 2012, recording an aggregate sales value of
approximately HK$364 million. The development company,
Charlton Residences Pte. Ltd, is 80% hold by a subsidiary of
the Group. The construction is in its preliminary stage and no
revenue has been recorded for the year under review. Based
on the completion schedule, the Group expects to recognise
approximately half of the construction contract revenue for
the year ending 31 March 2013.

(b)  Hotels and Hospitality Division
The turnover of the hotels and hospitality division in financial
year 2012 was approximately HK$42.4 million, representing
an increase of 4.9% from last year. The segment loss was
approximately HK$3.7 million, down 4% from last year.

(© Securities Trading
During the year under review, the Group’s securities business
recorded an operating loss of approximately HK$17.6 million
as compared to a profit of HK$15.9 million for 2011.

(d)  Property Investments and Trading

The property investments and trading division contributed
revenues of approximately HK$32.3 million (2011: HK$25.0
million) and operating losses of approximately HK$51.8
million (2011: gain of HK$164.3 million) to the Group,
including a fair value loss on revaluation of investment
properties of approximately HK$63.7 million compared to a
fair value gain of approximately HK$146.7 million in 2011.
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(e) Other Investments
As at 31 March 2012, RSI International Systems Inc. (“RSI”),
a Canada listed associate of which is 29.2% hold by a
subsidiary of the Group. During the year, the Group shared a
profit of approximately HK$1 million from RSI.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the total equity of the Group was
approximately HK$861.2 million (31 March 2011: HK$902.4
million).

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately HK$119.4 million
(31 March 2011: HK$192.6 million) mainly dominated in US
dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. The
Group had total borrowings (including bank overdraft, borrowings,
finance leases, and liability components of convertible bonds and
non-convertible bonds) of approximately HK$1,126.7 million (31
March 2011: HK$736.5 million) mainly dominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. As at 31 March 2012,
the Group’s current ratio was 3.5 (31 March 2011: 1.5) and had a
gearing ratio of 44.6% (31 March 2011: 30.3%), defined as the ratio
of total borrowings less bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits to total assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals for Material Investments

(a) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of a property situated in Hong Kong for
a consideration of HK$140.6 million and a property situated
in Singapore for a consideration of approximately SGDG6.9
million.

(b) During the year, the Group via subsidiaries of SingXpress
Land Ltd. (“SingXpress”), acquired two property development
projects in Singapore for SGD21 million and SGD123.9
million respectively.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had made capital commitments of
nil (31 March 2011: HK$116.6 million) for acquisition of properties
under development for sale in Singapore contracted for but not
provided in the financial statements and commitments for various
contracts for property development projects of HK$600.7 million (31
March 2011: nil). The Group did not make any capital commitment
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment authorised but not
contracted for as at 31 March 2012.
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Events After the Reporting Period

(@  On 30 January 2012, the Group entered into agreements to
purchase five units situated at #02-19, #02-20, #02-21, #02-
22 and #02-23 UB.1, 81 Ubi Avenue 4, Singapore 408830 at
an aggregate consideration of approximately SGD3.9 million.
The transaction has been completed on 3 April 2012.

(b)  On 29 February 2012, the Group entered into a conditional
option agreement with the purchaser to dispose the property
situated at 200 Jalan Sultan #08-11 Textile Centre, Singapore
199018 at a consideration of SGD18 million. The transaction
has been completed on 23 May 2012.

() On 14 May 2012, the Group jointly with other two partners
formed a consortium had successfully bid SGD233.5 million
for a land parcel for an Executive Condominium public
housing development, in which SingXpress has an effective
30%-stake. The land parcel is located at Tampines Central 7/

Tampines Avenue 7/Tampines Avenue 9.

Contingent Liabilities

Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited and CASH Retail
Management Group Limited (together referred to as “Pricerite”)
respectively claiming that a subsidiary of the Company has, among
others, divulged confidential information of Pricerite in breach of
agreement for damages which are not quantified. The litigation was
arises due to the acquisition of such subsidiary by the Group in 2000.
In the opinion of the Directors, it is not practicable at this stage
to determine with certainty the outcome of the litigation. Further
details of the litigation is set out in section headed “The Compromise
Agreement” in the Letter from the Board in the circular of the
Company dated 8 July, 2002. The litigation has been standstill for

more than 8 years.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
engaged in litigation or arbitration of material importance and so far as
the directors are aware, no litigation or claims of material importance
are pending or threatened by or against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Singapore dollars, Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Canadian dollars and Japanese Yen. Due to the currency peg of the
Hong Kong dollar to the US dollar, the exchange rate between these
two currencies has remained stable and thus no hedging or other
alternatives have been implemented by the Group. Going forward,
the Group may formulate a foreign currency hedging policy to
provide a reasonable margin of safety in our exposure in Japanese Yen
and Singapore dollars transactions, assets and liabilities.

Human Resources

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to
prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from salary payments,
there are other staff benefits including mandatory provident fund,
medical insurance and performance related bonus. At the end of
the reporting period, there were approximately 110 employees
employed by the Group. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees and persons of the Group.

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately HK$1,019.5 million were mainly secured by the
investment properties, land and buildings, prepaid lease payments,
properties under development for sale, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, motor vehicle and bank deposits of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$2,006.1
million.
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Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 67, is the Managing Chairman of the
Company. He has been a director of the Company since September
1992. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall business development
of the Group. His experience and expertise are in the finance and
banking sectors. Since taking over as Managing Chairman, he has
grown the Net Asset Value of the Group to approximately HK$861
million. Mr. Chan is the Managing Director of SingXpress Land
Ltd., a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
was formerly (i) the Executive Chairman of China Gas Holdings
Limited (www.chinagasholdings.com.hk), a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which under Mr. Chan’s
guidance and direction, was restructured from a formerly failing
fashion retail company to become one of a few large participants
in the investment, operation and management of city gas pipeline
infrastructure, distribution of natural gas and LPG to residential,
commercial and industrial users in China; The share had traded in
value from HK$0.25 to present value of HK$3.86 as at June 29,
2012 in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; (ii) a director of Global
Med Technologies, Inc (www.globalmedtech.com), a medical
company listed on NASDAQ which engaged in the design, develop,
market and support information management software products
for blood banks, hospitals, centralized transfusion centers and
other healthcare related facilities; (iii) a director of Skywest Ltd
(www.skywest.com.au), a Australia listed airline company; and (iv)
the Chairman and Director of American Pacific Bank, a commercial
bank publicly listed on NASDAQ from 1988 to 2005. In 1987 Mr.
Chan acquired American Pacific Bank, a US full service commercial
bank, out of bankruptcy. He recapitalized, refocused and grew the
bank’s operations. Under his guidance it became a US NASDAQ high
asset quality bank, with zero loan losses for over 5 years consecutively
before it was ultimately bought and merged into Riverview Bancorp
Inc. Prior to its acquisition and merger it was ranked #13 by the
Seattle Times “Annual Northwest’s Top 100 Public Companies”,
ranked #6 in Oregon state, and ranking ahead of names such as Nike,
Microsoft, Costco, AT&T Wireless and Amazon.com. Mr. Chan had
restructured over 35 companies in different industries and countries
in the past 40 years. He is the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

ZEFE-"FFH  Annual Report 2012

33

BEEEN

REBEE  RF ST RAKAAFNITER - RELER
—NNZFAABREEARRAIES - REEABRHITAEEZE
BEBERER ReRRROTEZEEETLEREER - BHAE
HMAITERNUR  REEEAREE 2 EEFEERE#861,000,0008
TC © BR 5 4 R ET DK FE 55 R 5 BT | 1 A A SingXpress Land Lid. 2
BERAKE  RELEGHEOTEMRRERBRAR ZATER
(www.chinagasholdings.com.hk) * —RHREBHAER S ETM AT -
KREEZBET - BHAMSBRGRERZRETEAREISHEHR
—RARBRA] TEETFEAEREFRE 2R K2 EEW
TRREBEMEE  MER WX ABNIZRFPBXSE
MR ERONREBMRIA 2R HEH02E T EAZER_E—=
FXRNAZ+NHEZIRE386BIT ¢ (i) Global Med Technologies, Inc.
(www.globalmedtech.com)zz§$ CREBRMTER TS LT EE
RE AR - Bt - RRE DB O REMREEEEREERE -
% CHEEAEEEHER (iii)@fj““iﬁﬁ?QaSkywest Limited
(www.skywest.com.au) Z EF i ) EBRAFLFRITZEFEBRES -
RITR—NANN\EFE_ZTRFREBRMEER TS LT o REER
— AN FRER A2 WIS < B AT FRIT - LRITHER
WE - RREEETEAREAE  ZERARBITES - RITEERK
i & I B Riverview Bancorp Inc.& $F AT - EE R F K AEBEANHTER
MHZEmEEEENRIT  BEREREAT - BB A -
EB KT FIRIT D& A 7 HE B FF 3R (Seattle Times) [ FA1L 382 100
A M2 8] ] (Annual Northwest's Top 100 Public Companies) £#13%
AR N HE 8 E#6 - B Nike * #EX * Costco * AT&T Wireless &
Amazon.com ° RBAMN+F - BRAEERTRBEREABB=+HES
T3 2 RA] » RIREEL T2 B o



Xpress Group Limited FFREEFRAF]

34

DIRECTORS &
MANAGEMENT PROFILE

BEENEEASEHN

Mzr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 37, is the Managing Director of
the Company. Mr. Chan is an executive director of SingXpress Land
Ltd. He has over 15 years experience in investment banking related
vocations. Mr. Chan specialized in Asian equity financial products for
two international investment banking firms, originating and dealing
in listed and over-the-counter structured products. Mr. Chan has
also acted as a securities’ principal in a NASD licensed brokerage
house. Mr. Chan joined the Group as a non-executive director in
January 2000, was appointed as an executive director in September
2002 and was appointed as Managing Director in August 2003. As
the Managing Director of Xpress Group Limited, Mr. Chan’s duties
include overseeing Xpress Group Limited group’s principal strategic
investments activities in both publicly listed and private companies.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree with honours, with
a Finance specialization, from the University of British Columbia.
Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke
Keow and the brother of Mr. Chan Tung Moe.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 63, has been a director of the
Company since January 1992. Ms. Chan is a non-executive
director of SingXpress Land Ltd. She is responsible for the general
administration and financial planning of the Group. She has over 25
years experience in financial management and administration. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. She is the
spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.

Mzr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 63. Mr. Fong is a director of Fong
Law Corporation, a legal practice. Mr. Fong graduated from the
University of Singapore with a LL.B. (Honours). In 1976/77 he
was awarded the Colombo Plan Award to attend the Government
Legal Officer’s Course in the United Kingdom. In 1986, he attended
the NITA Advocacy Programme at Harvard Law School. He was
appointed to the Board in 1995. He served as Chairman of the
Disciplinary Committee of SGX-ST from 1995 to 2007 and was
member of the Securities Industry Council between 1992 and 2003.
He was also a Council Member of the Law Society of Singapore from
1990 to 1992. He is a director of several public listed companies.

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 70, has over 32 years experience
in the fashion industry including distribution, sourcing, overseeing
manufacturing and exporting to international clients in France, the
United Kingdom, Germany and the United States. Mr. Wong was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in September

1998.

Mr. Wong Tat Keung, aged 41, has more than 15 years of audit,
taxation, accounting and business advisory experience. Mr. Wong
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in December 2009. Mr. Wong is an independent non-
executive director of SingXpress Land Ltd. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration (Financial Services) from
The University of Greenwich. From 2006 to February 2010, he was
the proprietor of Aston Wong & Co., Certified Public Accountants
practicing in Hong Kong. Since January 2010, he has been a director
of his own corporate practice namely Aston Wong CPA Limited.
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Mzt. Chan King Fai, aged 42, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in August 2011. Mr.
Chan is currently a partner of Lau Chan and Company, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chan holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration and a Master’s Degree in Accountancy.

He is a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and associate members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and is a Certified Tax
Advisor in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ang Hay Kim (Aileen), aged 53, is the Senior Manager of the
SingXpress Land Ltd. She has over 20 years’ experience in finance,
legal and office administration work and is responsible for the liaison
with financial institutions and professionals for bank financing
for its property acquisitions and development projects. She also
handles the SingXpress Land Group’s corporate secretarial work. Ms.
Ang holds a Cert-in-CEHA and was Senior Sales Director, Resale
Division with DTZ, a prominent property agency company. She is
the Key Executive Officer of BMI Realtors Pte Ltd, a 49% owned
associate company of SingXpress Land. Ms. Ang is also responsible
for implementing the Group’s strategy and managing the Group’s
property business and operations in Singapore.

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 41, is an Executive of the
Group. Ms. Chan is involved with the securities operations. Ms.
Chan was an Executive Director of the Company and has previous
experience with one of the leading banks in Hong Kong where
she was involved in sales and marketing as well as relationship
management for the Regional Securities office. Ms. Chan is the

daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 34, the Chief Investment Officer
of the Company, is responsible for the overall management of
the Investment Division of the Group. Mr. Chan is an executive
director of SingXpress Land Ltd. Previously, Mr. Chan was an
Executive Director of the Company and Mr. Chan was the Chief
Executive Officer of Xpress Finance Limited, Xpress Group’s credit
card business and also has experience in technical and business
development in the finance and technology industries. He holds
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration with honours from
the University of Western Ontario, a Master’s Degree in Electro-
Mechanical Engineering with honours and a Bachelor’s Degree
in Applied Science with honours from the University of British
Columbia. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan
Yoke Keow and the brother of Mr. Chan Tong Wan.
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Ms. Chang Soy Lee (Catherine), aged 54, Ms. Chang is the
General Manager, Strategic Planning and Business Development.
She has over 30 years of project management experience in hotel,
residential and commercial development. Ms. Chang has worked as
a Project Engineer, Structural Engineer and Geotechnical Engineer
in the past. Ms. Chang holds degrees in Bachelor of Engineering
(Civil), Masters of Science (Civil Engineering) and Masters of
Business Administration from the National University of Singapore.
Ms. Chang is also awarded to use the Charter Financial Analyst
designation by The CFA Institute.

Mr. Ho Jin Wei, Eugene, aged 36, Mr. Ho is an Architect of
the Group. Mr. Ho graduated from the University of Newcastle,
Australia with a degree of Bachelor of Architecture. Mr. Ho has over
9 years of professional experience in architecture and construction a
variety of development projects in Singapore.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 41, is the Senior Accounting
Manager of the Group. He is responsible for the financial reporting
of the Group and focus on the financing operations, securities &
treasury investment. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration and he joined the Group in 1997.

Mr. Ong Kang Lin, aged 34, Mr. Ong is the Director, Strategic
Development to oversee the strategic development and capital
markets initiatives. Prior to joining the Group, he worked at leading
commercial and investment banking institutions such as United
Overseas Bank, Morgan Stanley and China International Capital
Corporation. Mr. Ong specialized in the areas of corporate finance,
real estate investing and corporate lending. He graduated with a BBA
(Hons) from National University of Singapore and holds a MBA
degree (Palmer Scholar) from the Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania. Mr Ong is also a CFA charterholder.

Mr. Tan Tong Chee, aged 53, Mr. Tan is the Project Development
Manager. Mr. Tan has over 20 years of construction and project
management experience in Singapore. He is trained as a quantity
surveyor and has in-depth experience in costing and contracts
management. He has been Project Manager for several residential
developments and commercial developments in Singapore. Mr. Tan
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Construction Economics from RMIT
University, Australia.
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Mzr. Tsui Chi Hou (Danny), aged 47, Mr. Tsui is the General
Manager, Business Development of the Property Development
Division and responsible for the building project business
development of the Group. Mr. Tsui graduated from The University
of Salford (United Kingdom) with a degree of Bachelor with honours
in Building Surveying and qualified as a Chartered Building Surveyor
(MRICS) in 1991. He has over 20 years” experience in building and
construction industry. Mr. Tsui is also a Corporate Member of the
Association of Building Engineers (MBEng), a Professional Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS), an Authorized
Person (List of Surveyors) under Hong Kong Buildings Ordinance
and a Registered Professional Surveyor (Building Surveyings
Division) under Hong Kong Surveyor Registration Ordinance. Mr.
Tsui worked as a divisional General Manager of a listed construction
company prior to joining the Group.

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group and responsible for the financial and management reporting
of the Group, including internal control and policy review, taxation,
audit, legal and regulatory affairs. Mr. Wong is the Chief Financial
Officer of SingXpress Land Ltd., the shares of which are listed on
the Singapore Exchange. He has over 15 years in public accounting,
taxation, and financial consultancy and management in Hong Kong.
He worked with an international accounting firm prior to joining
the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration and is currently practicing as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute.

Mzt. Yuen Ping Man, aged 48, is the joint Company Secretary and
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and responsible for the
corporate secretarial function and business operations. Previously, Mr.
Yuen was the Chief Operating Officer of Xpress Finance responsible
for compliance, human resource, operations, sales & marketing,
customer service and general administration of Xpress Finance. Mr.
Yuen has over 20 years’ managerial experience in corporate secretarial,
business development, human resources and general administration.
Prior to joining Xpress Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked
in two listed groups and a financial institution. Mr. Yuen holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK) and
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a senior member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a professional member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management,
a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute, the Chartered
Institute of Marketing (UK), the Hong Kong Institute of Purchasing
& Supply and Society of Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Yuen is
also a certified risk planner and a licensed estate agent.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 19 and 20 respectively to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 58.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Notes 16 and 18 respectively to
the financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES

Details of movements in the properties under development
for sales of the Group during the year are set out in Note 26
to the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March
2012 are set out on page 209.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 37 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves during the year of the
Company are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE SOCIETY

The Group aspires to be a responsible corporate citizen
placing attention on local community needs. During the year,
the Group made donation of 300 pieces of baby quilt and 20
sets of VTech Learning Laptop to Pok Oi Hospital.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Heng Fai
Chan Tong Wan
Chan Yoke Keow

Non-executive directors:
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive directors:

Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Da Roza Joao Paulo (demised on 16 May 2011)
Wong Tat Keung

Chan King Fai (appointed on 16 August 2011)

Alternate directors:
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Chan King Fai retires by rotation
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. Mr. Chan
Heng Fai will hold office until the 2012 AGM, and being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election. The term of office of
each non-executive director and independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation and
each one of them can be re-appointed in accordance with the
above articles.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

ESRESZ2ER

REZ—"F=A=+—H BFERARAETETBRAEBRAEAR
Al EEMAREE B (E & R R A E G0 ([ 785 M ATE 1561 )
EXVER) 2ty - BN RESFT - BAREESRATED
EXVIBETREIDHBEMNE AR A REBHMAZHMER AR
(B3 F ) 2 i ROAR (BRI EREE S MG RHIZFHRX
WEERRIERA 2 BETORR) - HRIBEF M EGHI£352
BABRNZIGEFTALE LM 2w MR R - FRIE LM AR I EL
EHRAREFETEFRINEETABMNG R AR LB RHMZ
BEIORRIT

#E
(a) ZF2ATRBREEOIBTZEER

Number Percentage of
of issued the issued
ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held  of the Company %
e 1T EARATE BT
EEnE 513 ZEREA RABDHE
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 3,124,300 0.1
FRiEME fk 2SN
Held by controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,535,335,806 49.58
Frzslc AEE (M)
1, 538,460,106 49.68
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 150,936,643 4.87
R E 45 EmEA A
Held by controlled corporation (Note 2) 592,039,274 19.12
Frizlc A ERE (Hat2)
742,975,917 23.99
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 7,333,600 0.24
BRI 18 EmliB A
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 11,425,522 0.37
BRAEE EmEB A
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner 280,000 0.01
F&#% BEmBEAA

2,300,475,145

74.29
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(b)  Share options (b) EBRE

Number of  Percentage of

Exercise share options the issued share

price per  outstanding at capital of the

Name of director Date granted Exercisable period share 31.3.2012 Company

R-E——F

=B=t+—H EARAT

i RATREZ ERITRAE

EEns b gee=p TEHE BRITEE BREHE ADLt

HKS$
BT

Chan Heng Fai 11.15.2004 11.20.2004-5.8.2013 0.1583 123,885,800 4.00

BRiENE 5.22.2006 5.22.2006-5.8.2013 0.1534 49,008,000 1.86

8.6.2010 8.6.2010-5.8.2013 0.1340 340,000,000 10.98

Chan Yoke Keow 11.1.2004 11.1.2004-5.8.2013 0.1567 15,313,500 0.49

PREE 11.15.2004 11.20.2004-5.8.2013 0.1583 35,731,500 1.15

2.18.2009 2.18.2009-5.8.2013 0.0684 18,376,200 0.59

Chan Tong Wan 11.15.2004 11.20.2004-5.8.2013 0.1583 15,313,500 0.49

PREE 5.22.2006 5.22.2006-5.8.2013 0.1534 5,104,500 0.16

Fong Kwok Jen 11.15.2004 11.20.2004-5.8.2013 0.1583 4,594,050 0.15
B 18

Wong Dor Luk, Peter  11.15.2004 11.20.2004-5.8.2013 0.1583 3,062,700 0.10
FZ%

610,389,750 19.69
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(c) Bonds of HK$100 each of the Company (00 ALXREHEELIBTZES

Percentage of
Number of  the issued bond

Name of director Capacity issued bond held of the Company %

B RT EARRRE BT

EEpSR 37} BH¥E BESFEDHL

Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 403,869 38.23
FRiEME BEmEAA

Held by controlled corporation (Note 3) 7,200 0.68

PTHESI 2 NRR A (H1523)

411,069 38.91
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 134,217 12.71
BRES BmEAA
Held by controlled corporation (Note 2) 234,319 22.18
Pzl 2 R E1RE (f512)
368,536 34.89
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 1,680 0.16
RPE4E BmEAA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 4,528 0.43
PRTE BalEBA
Held by controlled corporations (Note 4) 60,000 5.68
Pzl N ERE (Hat4)
64,528 6.11
845,813 80.07
Notes: HraE -
1. These shares are owned by Heng Fai Master Holdings Limited, 1. ZERNAREBREERVER T AR —HE2REEREETZ
which are ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Heng Fai Master Holdings Limited %% ©
Mr. Chan Heng Fai as settlor.
2. These shares/bonds are owned by Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in 2. FER D (&5 i R & LA 2 50 2 Prime Star Group Co. Ltd.#
which Mrs. Chan has 100% equity interests. g
3. These bonds are owned by Heng Fai Holdings Limited, in which 3. ZE B 5 BR B £ A 2 5 2 Heng Fai Holdings Limited#%5 ©

Mr. Chan Heng Fai has 100% equity interests.

4. These bonds are owned by Tango Bay Limited, which are 4. ZEBEFARGELEERMERTAR L —EA2REERKEFTZ
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Mr. Chan Tango Bay Limited# A ©
Tong Wan as settler.
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Options

Particulars of the Company’s and subsidiary’s share option
schemes are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share

options in issue during the year:

Name of director

EEpP

Category 1: Directors
FHEF

Mr. Chan
BRak

Mrs. Chan
Bt

Chan Tong Wan

Fong Kwok Jen
e

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
5%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Total for directors

Rt

Category 2: Others
FTE AfAL

Total for employees
EE 85t

Total for all categories

A BRI st

Date granted

RiLAA

11.15.2004
5.22.2006
8.6.2010

11.1.2004
11.15.2004
2.18.2009

11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.15.2004
11.15.2004

5.27.2005

11.15.2004
5.22.2006
4.18.2007
9.14.2010
3.25.2011

Exercisable period

TESE

11.20.2004-5.8.2013
5.22.2006-5.8.2013
8.6.2010-5.8.2013

11.1.2004-5.8.2013
11.20.2004-5.8.2013
2.18.2009-5.8.2013

11.20.2004-5.8.2013
5.22.2006-5.8.2013

11.20.2004-5.8.2013
11.20.2004-5.8.2013

5.28.2005-5.8.2013

11.20.2004-5.8.2013
5.22.2006-5.8.2013
4.18.2007-5.8.2013
14.9.2010-13.9.2016
4.1.2012-5.1.2016

BRE

TE-TEER Annual Report 2012

43

AR HE AR B B IS BN M TS MR M 38

TREBARRNEAZ D BHITHBEMEFS

Exercise
price
per share

BRITEE
HKS$
BT

0.1583
0.1534
0.1340

0.1567
0.1583
0.0684

0.1583
0.1534

0.1583
0.1583

0.1469

0.1583
0.1534
0.2841
0.1400
0.1410

Outstanding Exercise ~ Cancelled Outstanding
at during during at

4.1.2011 the year theyear  3.31.2012
R-B——% R-2-Z%
A—H FR =ZB=+-H
WARTE  FARTRE e e RATHE
123,885,800 - - 123,885,800
49,008,000 - - 49,008,000
400,000,000  (60,000,000) — 340,000,000
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
35,731,500 - - 35,731,500
18,376,200 - - 18,376,200
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
5,104,500 - - 5,104,500
4,594,050 - - 4,594,050
3,062,700 - - 3,062,700
2,041,800 - (2,041,800) -
672,431,550  (60,000,000) (2,041,800) 610,389,750
21,255,138 - - 21,255,138
10,209,000 - - 10,209,000
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
41,964,138 - - 41,964,138
714,395,688  (60,000,000) (2,041,800) 652,353,888
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At 31 March 2012, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 652,353,888, representing 21.06%
of the share of the Company in issue at that date.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

On January 29, 2010, a service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“Mr. Chan”)
for a term of three years commencing from February 1, 2010.
The service contract provides for the payment of an annual
salary equal to 5.9% of the net assets value of the Company
as shown in its consolidated audited accounts at each financial
year end. In addition, Mr. Chan is also entitled to receive
an accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per month. In
the event that either party terminate the service contract,
the terminated party shall be entitled to receive, and the
terminating party shall pay and transfer to the terminated
party, as liquidated damages, a lump sum equal to the sum
which would have been payable by the Company to Mr. Chan
as gross salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), not to exceed
12 months of salary, in respect of the unexpired term of the
service contract on the date notice of termination is given.

On 2 February, 2010, a service contract was entered into
between SingXpress and Mr. Chan for a term of three
years commencing from 1 February, 2010. The service
contract provides for the payment of a monthly salary of
S$30,000. In addition, Mr. Chan is also entitled to receive
an accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per month. In
the event that either party terminate the service contract,
the terminated party shall be entitled to receive, and the
terminating party shall pay and transfer to the terminated
party, as liquidated damages, a lump sum equal to the sum
which would have been payable by the Company to Mr. Chan
as gross salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), in respect of
the unexpired term of the service contract on the date notice
of termination is given.

RZZE——F=A=+—0  BREBREFZEELENEKTE
2R N 2 IR0 81 B 5652,353,888% ¢ (E AR ARINZBEZE
BTN 21.06% o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, according to the register of interest in
shares and underlying shares and short positions kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiries
by the directors, the persons (other than the Directors of the
Company or their respective associate) who were interested in
5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company are as

follows:
Name Nature of interest
=t Mg

Beneficial owner

BEHEEAA

Heng Fai Master Holdings Limited

Beneficial owner

BEHEEAA

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no person other
than the directors of the Company whose interests are set
out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’
interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company, and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares that was required to be recorded in the register of
interest pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total turnover and purchases.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are set
out in Note 49 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2012 with the Code
of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). Detailed information
on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report contained in pages 47 to 55
of the Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited (“Lo and Kwong”),
the Company’s auditors, will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and will not seek for re-appointment. An
ordinary resolution will be proposed at the annual general
meeting for appointing ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited as the new auditors of the Company to fill the
vacancy arising from the retirement of Lo and Kwong.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

29 June 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and strives to continually improve on its
governance processes as articulated in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out by the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2012 with the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo (“Mr. Da Roza”), an independent
non-executive director of the Company, passed away on 16
May 2011. Following Mr. Da Roza’s demise, the Company
has two independent non-executive directors, which falls
below the minimum number of independent non-executive
directors required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed a new independent non-
executive director, Mr. Chan King Fai on 16 August 2011
to fill the vacancy. Save as disclosed above, in the opinion
of the Directors, the Company has complied with the Code
provisions listed in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is presently composed
of seven members, comprising three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors are, collectively and individually,
aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders. The
Directors’ profile are set out on page 33 to 35 of this Annual
Report. The relationship among members of the Board are
also disclosed.
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The Board members as at 31 March 2012 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai (Managing Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Wong Tat Keung

Mr. Chan King Fai

The Board is responsible for directing the Group to success
and enhancing shareholders’ value by formulating the Group’s
overall strategy, key objectives and policies. The Board
monitors and oversees the operating and financial performance
of the Group pursuant to these objectives.

To assist the Board in its functions, the Board established and
delegated specific responsibilities to two Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. The respective roles and responsibilities of each
Board committee, their work and activities are included in this
Report.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experience and
independent judgement to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflicts of interest and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors
make positive contributions to the orderly management and
effective operation of the Company.
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The Board has also delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s business to the management team.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are segregated
and their positions held by different individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to and
overseeing the function of the Board while the Managing
Director is responsible for implementing the Board’s strategy
and managing the Group’s business and operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four non-executive Directors on the
Board, three of whom are independent. They have been
appointed for a specific term and subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association and thus submit themselves, on a rotation basis,
for re-election by shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 February 1995
and the composition during the year and up to the date of
report is set out as follows:

Mr. Wong Tak Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Mr. Chan King Fai

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
formulated in accordance with the requirements of the new
Code on Corporate Governance Practices. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include the review of financial
information, overseeing the financial reporting system and
internal control procedures as well as maintaining a working
relationship with the external auditors.
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During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Audit Committee
met 2 times to review, consider and discuss: the appointment,
scope, plan and fee of the external auditors; the external
auditors’ audit findings covering internal control and risk
management issues; the interim and annual financial results
and statements and other financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30
September 2005 and the composition during the year and up
to the date of report is set out as follows:

Mr. Wong Tak Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
was formulated in accordance with the requirements of the
new Code on Corporate Governance Practices. The primary
objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his associates will participate in
deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the Managing Director/Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during
the year to review matters mainly concerning a review on
remuneration and performance of executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, as well as directors’ fees.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March
2012 and the composition during the year and up to the date
of report is set out as follows:

Chan Heng Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Tak Keung
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately
skilled in the issues of the nomination of directors to
the Board. The Company has provided the Nomination
Committee with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Nomination Committee may seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

The written terms of reference include the specific duties of
reviewing of the structure, size, composition of the Board and
to make recommendation on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate policy. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the Company’s website.

As the Nomination Committee was formed at the end of
March 2012, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
during the year.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE EZERZEESRZLETH
MEETINGS

The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Audit FR FSEERNEEFLLH  BERLEghFNZETSTH 2
Committee and Remuneration Committee meetings during JEIEREHTIOT -
the year are set out below:

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held
HEESBRRE BTEERRE

Audit  Remuneration

Directors Board Committee Committee

= By EREEEY REEEE

Mr. Chan Heng Fai FRIBHE L A 4/4 N/A N/A
TEMA TEA

Mr. Chan Tong Wan PR iB S A 4/4 N/A N/A
TEMA TEA

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow PR EIE 4+ 4/4 N/A 1/1
TEMA

Non-Executive Director FEHITES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BRI S 3/4 N/A N/A
TEMA TEA

Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHITES

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter Tt 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. Wong Tat Keung HE A 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. Chan King Fai PRRIE S
(appointed on 16 August 2011) (R=—ZE—FNA+BEZT) 1/1 1/1 N/A
TEA
Number of meeting held during the year FRETEZRE 4 2 1
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BEECRERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities ARTEHRMEMREN 2 EMEFEITAEFETIEFRHNITLE
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules  BI([#R%#<FAl]) - (EREFETAREIREF 2 - KIEHA
as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the #&i#f& @ KNAFHER @ 2RESREE_T——_F=A=1—
Directors (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry, -5 EA—EEFRAESTRIPTE 2 HRE LR -

the Company confirms that all Directors have complied

with the required standards as set out in the Model Code

throughout the year ended 31 March 2012.

.
St
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The Company has established and adopted written guidelines,
“Code of Best Practices on Securities Transactions by the
Company and its Officers”, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code, for securities transactions by relevant employees
and officers who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Audit Committee acknowledges that the Group’s system
of internal and operational controls has a key role in the
identification and management of risks that are significant to
the achievement of its business objectives.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls, including operational controls regularly and
is responsible for the overall internal control framework. The
Board acknowledges that no cost effective internal control
system will preclude all errors and irregularities. A system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Management has adopted a Code of Conduct for the
Group. The Code incorporates principles and values that
the Company and the Group uphold in their dealings with
employees, customers, suppliers and business associates.

Based on the discussions with the auditors and the
management’s responses to the auditors’ recommendations
for improvements to the Group’s internal controls, the Board
opines, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee,
that there are adequate controls in place within the Group
addressing material financial, operational and compliance
risks to meet the needs of the Group in their current business
environment.
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The system of internal control and risk management
established by our Company provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that our Company will not be adversely
affected by any event that can be reasonably foreseen as
it strives to achieve its business objectives. However, the
Board also notes that no system of internal controls and risk
management can provide absolute assurance in this regard, or
absolute assurance against poor judgement in decision making,
human error, losses, fraud or other irregularities.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the accounts of the Group and that the
accounts are issued in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the external auditors
provided the following services to the Group:

RRRRULZ NFRE R RARERGIER AR (MIEBE)RE
RAEBEBEEBBRE ST X AEAIEEERZE
2 M E - R EFETEL - SECAAEZEEER
ERFIE R UL IR M B ERTE - SR BERE DI AR I 2
HHAR - ARRRR ~ B MR EMBRITR

EERRE ZEEM

EEMARERELAKBERBEZEE  YERBEEREIER
SEHERITIRR -

BB AT &

BETZ-—_HF=-A=+—BIFE IERBEMCAREER
B ARAS -

HK$’000

FHET

Audit services ZEPRTE 780
Non-audit services IERZEARTS

— Other professional services — Bt B X 55

Total 5T 835
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of
communicating with shareholders, investors and the public.
Various channels of communication have been established
and maintained to ensure that they are kept abreast of the
Company’s latest news and development. Information
relating to the Company’s financial results, corporate details,
notifiable transactions, property projects and major events
are disseminated through publication of interim and annual
report, announcements, circulars and press release. These
publications can also be obtained from the Company’s website
(Wwww.xpressgroup.com).

In addition, the Chairman, members of the Board and
external auditor will attend the annual general meetings
of the Company where the directors will answer questions
raised by the shareholders on the performance of the Group.
To ensure the general meetings are conducted in a fair and
transparent manner, the Chairman has demanded voting by
poll on each resolutions considered at the general meetings
held in the past year and appointed the Share Registrar as the
scrutineers to count the votes and explain to the shareholders
at the meetings the procedures for voting by poll. The poll
results were subsequently posted both on the websites of the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkexnews.hk).

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of these transactions are set out in Note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.

HRRBER
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EBSMEHBEMBIRAE

LO AND KWONG C.P.A. COMPANY LIMITED

AUDIT « TAX ¢ BUSINESS ADVISORY

TO THE MEMBERS OF XPRESS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58
to 207, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Ho Yiu Hang, Ricky

Practising Certificate Number: P05494

Suites 313-317, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

29 June 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE T —F=A=t+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

(Loss) gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value (loss) gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value (loss) gain on revaluation of
investment properties, net

(Loss) gain on disposal of investment
properties

Administrative expenses

Gain on remeasurement of previously
held interest upon step acquisition of
subsidiaries

(Loss) profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of associates

(Loss) profit before income tax
Income tax credits (expenses)

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

Notes

Was 5
SHERA

E7

Hip & EWA 5

HERAFEFABR Z SR
BE(BER) s

BAVERHABRZ EREEZ
NFE(EE) YK

EAREMEZ AFEGER)
LoEmye ki

HEREBEME (BB s

TTHFAX
BT EZSWBHBRRIR
BIEFTFS S 2 Was

= (R ER
BERA 7

DIEEE R RIS

BRATS AT (B518) 5 F 8
PRS2 (S H) 9

FE(ER) &

FE(ER)E RS
EAN/NSIE ZSUN 10
FEIE e

sR(BR) AR 11
&N
BE

2012 2011
—g-=fF —g——f
HKS$'000 HKS$’000
FHET FHBT
81,529 75,321
(8,946) (8,052)
72,583 67,269
4,408 4,391
(12,892) 17,660
(9,044) 327
(63,722) 146,667
(9,034) 451
(144,875) (160,846)
- 10,869
(162,576) 86,788
(23,317) (6,405)
1,095 (2,498)
(184,798) 77,885
27,471 (26,603)
(157,327) 51,282
(156,421) 45,417
(906) 5,865
(157,327) 51,282

(5.36) cents &l
(5.36) cents &l

1.72 cents &1l
1.71 cents &1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e EH SR

BT —F=A=t+—HILFE

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
Exchange fluctuation reserve:
Exchange differences arising on
translating of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income
of associates
Share of reserve of an associate
Realisation of reserves of an associate upon
step acquisition

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

B (B8 2
B 2E (M%) WA

FE 5 B

RIE SN B TR 2

[ 3¢ 348

SEBE R A BERA

S —RIBE DG
BRI BRI E AT RE
R E () BA
FE2E (ML) WARE

S 2E (R WMARE -

EA/NCIEZ 2PN
FRIE R

2012 2011
—g-=fF —g——f
HKS$'000 HKS$’000
FHExT FHExT
(157,327) 51,282
(3,397) 49,863

- 529

- 3
- (16,431)

(3,397) 33,964
(160,724) 85,246
(159,756) 78,350
(968) 6,896
(160,724) 85,246
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BAEE IR DL 2R

R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—~H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates
Available-for-sale financial assets
Goodwill

Pledged bank deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development for sale

Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Loan receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from an associate

Bank balances and cash

EERRE

FRBEE

nE - BEREE
BEREEHE
RS=RYES
RSB AR 2 e
RIS AR 2 R
AfHESRERE
mE
BHERRITIER

RBEE
RE
FRPFEDE

B 5 REMBYFOA -

BE RBNFUR
FEWER
BAFER AR

SREE
B2 FRR
—fERE R AR

RITEBRKES

Notes

ByaE

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
24

25
26

27
23

28
19
20
24

Group Company
r5E KAT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F ZE--H% ZEB--f Z=ZB-—-F%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT THET THET THET
57,703 59,930 947 1,016
21,953 22,430 - -
908,383 1,159,931 1,050 1,050
- - 4,647 4,647
3,246 2,248 - -
1,463 1,464 - -
10,544 10,544 - -
3,116 7,492 - 1,531
1,006,408 1,264,039 6,644 8,244
464 388 - -
1,099,541 138,403 - -
18,837 32,742 1,297 1,257
617 635 - -
16,453 175,417 14,975 163,649
- - 704,117 613,730
185 172 - -
116,333 185,071 5,783 107,330
1,252,430 532,828 726,172 885,966
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N
B AR R IR T+
R_ZT——F=A=+—H
Group Company
by 3L AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f =ZB——§ =ZB--f =ZB——§
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MaE TExT THET THET THET
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 REMENTIEN R
FEEtEM 29 87,328 34,627 2,816 3,151
Bank overdraft RITEX 24 515 86,486 193 86,273
Borrowings B®E 30 155,543 216,763 - 62,535
Obligations under a finance lease BhE 4R 31 108 - - -
Tax payables [ESIMITE 22,676 20,370 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests % /X FEFE R IERS TR 32 67,714 7,456 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries HRMBATZE 19 - - 287,478 297,992
Amounts due to an associate R — kg N RIFIE 20 478 515 - -
Amount due to a director R —ZEETIE 32 28,294 - 24,835 -
362,656 366217 315322 449,951
Net current assets RBEEFE 889,774 166,611 410,850 436,015
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTEER 1,896,182 1,430,650 417,494 444 259
Non-current liabilities FrRBEE
Borrowings BE 30 863,944 327,279 - -
Obligations under a finance lease RhE A LR 31 641 - - -
Deferred taxation ERERIE 35 64,376 95,071 224 224
Convertible bonds AR ES 33 339 293 - -
Non-convertible bonds SERT R E S 34 105,633 105,633 105,633 105,633
1034933 528276 105857 105,857
Net assets EEFE 861,249 902,374 311,637 338,402
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BAEE IR DL 2R

R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—~H

Group Company
AEE ERH
2012 2011 2012 2011

—g--F —B-—-f ZB--F =-B—-f
Notes HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
MaE FET FTERT FEx FTERT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR
Share capital [N 37 30,970 26,408 30,970 26,408
Reserves i 39 727,690 843,197 280,667 311,994
Equity attributable to owners of FOREEAELER

the Company 758,660 869,605 311,637 338402
Non-controlling interests FEERER 102,589 32,769 - -
Total equity EHBE 861,249 902,374 311,637 338,402

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 207 were F58F207 B v A MERERCR - E——F A+ LBHE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  Fe#tE RIEETE  YHTHESAREE
29 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Managing Chairman Managing Director
HiTEE BRI
Chan Heng Fai Chan Tong Wan

BR1EIE BR#E



For the year ended 31 March 2012

REEmSER

BE_T——HF=-A=+—HItFE

At 1 April 2010 R-Z-ZEMA-R

Share of other comprehensive ~ HEBEAFEf

income of associates 2EHA

Exchange differences arising ~~ FAEFI £
on translating of foreign EE/EHER
operations

Share of reserve of an associate M-S AEGEE

BANERERR

associate upon step acquisition B Al (S

Realisation of reserves of an

Other comprehensive income ~ FEHH2EUA
for the year
Profit for the year EEER

Total comprehensive income for  FE2HMALE
the year

Step acquisition of subsidiaries A WEHERE]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREAEGRE
Employee
Assets share-based  Convertible Non-
Share Share  Warrant ~ revaluation Other  Translation ~compensation bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
AEE  GEER EaRE  TER
ke RiEE i i BtRE REBE BERE BERE  EZHER a FEREE  RRAE
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEn  TER  TEn  TER  TEn  TEr  TER  TER TR TEx  TEn  TEn
W48 8340 S0 69010 SN 2450 - (8T TIE B
- - - - - 529 - - - 529 - 529
- - : : - B8® : : Sos® 1B 4986
- - - - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
- - - - - (16,446) 15 - - (16431) - (16,431)
- . . . SR 18 : B T R N B X
- . . . - - - B VA Y| VAREY VI )
- . . . SR 18 oA I 66 85246
(Note 4) (W) - - - - § § § 190 § 90 R4 3261
Adjustments arising on acquisition WM A FJEM
of additional interests in BrEr/ %
subsidiaries - - - - (434) - - - - 34 (6618 (7052
Transfer of reserves upon lapse of FERRIEX MM ER
share options THE - - - - - - 17 - 27 - - -
Employee share-based BB EERR
compensation expenses BERX
recognised - - - - - - 18,820 - - 18,820 - 18,820
At31 March 2011 WoE——F
ZE=+- K408 8340 5160 600 (34 B 20 190 (39043 89605 376 902374
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-_T——F=ZA=+—HItFE

At April 2011 RZF-—4¥mA-A
Exchange differences arising RN EHT
on translating of foreign EEVENES
operations

Other comprehensive expenses  FEE 2 AR
for the year
Loss for the year EREE

Total comprehensive expenses ~ FE2 AR 45
for the year

Issue of shares pursuant toan ~~ BEAFEE

open offer (Note 37) Rl sy
Transfer of reserves upon exercise 7\/7(FERRIER

of share options (Note 38) RER5)
Transfer of reserves upon R SRR

cancellation of share options ~ EEEEE(7738)

(Note 38)
Issue of share upon exercise of /7P ERRIER
share options (Note 36) SR Ez8)
Release upon disposal of REERENEE

investment property (Note 39) BB (f7£39)
Capital contribution bynon- 3£ &R TE

controlling interests

Employee share-based ERRESRAGE
compensation expenses R
recognised

Issue of right issue by L INTE G
a subsidiary (Note 46) (hi46)

Transfer of reserves upon RAREEE R
expiry of warrants BREREH)
(Note a)

Deemed disposals of a subsidiary R /ER R AEHI1E
without loss of control BRATHE-H
(Note 46) HERR i)

Acquisition of additional interests &N B 17

in subsidiaries (Note 46) BohEa i)
At 31 March 2012 W-B--E
ZR=t1-H

Share
capital

kA
HK$'000
Thn

26,408

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Accumulated

losses

ZHER
HK$'000
TART

(130,043)

Total

&5t
HK$'000
TAR

869,605

Non-

controlling
interests

FERER
HK$'000

TER

32,769

Total
equity
REAT
HK$'000
TR

902,374

(333)

(62)

(3307)

(156421)

(333)
(156421)

(62
(906)

(3307)
(157377)

(156,421)

(159,756)

968)

(160724)

3,962

2

57,048

3575

525

(1,997)

(1,516)

184

1,235

64722

6,250

(1449)

3575

8,040

1,235

525

62725

4764

(1,265)

30,970

(232,329)

758,660

102,589

861,249
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-_T——F=ZA=+—HItFE

Notes:

(a)

In September 2006, the Company issued 172,000,000 unlisted
warrants (“2006 Warrants”) at the issues price of HK$0.03 per
warrant to Mr. Chan Heng Fai, an executive director of the
Company. Each warrant carries the rights to subscribe for one new
share of the Company at initial exercise price of HK$0.17 per new
shares, subject to adjustments for, among other things, subdivision
or consolidation of share, rights issues, extraordinary stock or
cash distribution, and other dilutive events, at any time during a
period of 5 years commencing from the date of issue of warrants.
Consideration of HK$5.16 million was received in respect of
warrants issued during the year ended 31 March 2007.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the 2006 Warrants was
lapsed in October 2011.

Bt -

REZZERFNA - AARAEH RRIEF0.03B T2 B EBRAAR
ZHITEERERE K A %17172,000,00017 FE_E T RARHERE ([ Z T TN
FERBAEE]) - ARBEER T AR RAFHRAZEERE - 80
R HE B EFIA BRI 0.1 78T 2 MF T EEREARE—
Rt - MEZE R (R 248 ) IR IR sk & 0F - AR - BRI IR S
SEREMESEEELAE - FEREBE_ST+F=A=+—A81
FRERT 2 RIAEFE D WA IERS,160,0007 7T

REBEE-_T——FZA=1+—HLFE "
——F+ABERM -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2012

nv_\ é }E ﬁ 3)2&: % %
HE-_T——F=ZA=+—HItFE

Operating activities
(Loss) profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Fair value loss (gain) on revaluation of
investment properties, net
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Gain on bargain purchase
Gain on remeasurement of previously held
interest upon step acquisition of subsidiaries
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share of results of associates
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Write-off the property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Loss (gain) on disposal of investment properties
Loss (gain) on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Impairment loss recognised in respect of:
— loan receivables
— financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— trade receivables
— other receivables
Employee share-based compensation expenses
Impairment loss reversed in respect of:
— trade receivables
—loan receivables

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in properties under development for sale

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Decrease in loan receivables

(Increase) decrease in amounts due from
an associate

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
and accruals

Increase in amounts due to non-controlling
interests

Increase in amount due to a director

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to an associate

Cash used in operations
Tax (paid) refund

Net cash used in operating activities

e
B PSR A (R 1R) i
ETBIBIRFE -
EERENEZAFE
BB (et )34

ROV EF ARG SMEEL

NP EEE (M)
EER B

ENETEZSWBHBRRRBE

FrRsiEes < Yaas
W - BB R RETE
MEBA
e
XL UNCIES
TR E SRS
WEHME - BE MR
HEME - BB ERBZER

HERBE R 2 BB (Ra)

HERAFEABReRMEEL

&8 ()
BLNDISIARER 2R EEE
—EWER

Ho =
—BAHES ABHEZ
EREE
— B SRR
— B U IR
EERMFHENS
5L BI S IR MR E R -
— B SRR
—EWER

AT EE ABRZ SMAE
S ()

R ()R

TR e

B 5 RAMEIGE e R
7B OB (1 h0)

R B

— BB D R 3K (34 )

B 9 R R R
s ORD)
R SRR 25 2 B D

R —ZEEZ B
B R — R A AIEOR GRLL ) B 0

REXBAARS
(X)REIFHIR

BRI HE 2 FRE

2012 2011
—B——%F —B——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(184,798) 77,885
63,722 (146,667)
9,044 (327)

- (839)

- (10,869)

4,384 4,046
(1,082) (5,101)
23,317 6,405
(1,095) 2,498
477 477

6 —

- 2

9,034 (451)
12,892 (17,660)
16 -

- 734

- 23

- 1,678

525 18,820

- (21)

- (45)
(63,558) (69,412)
136,978 (22,539)
(76) 21
(961,059) (8,476)
13,905 (5,961)
2 315

(13) 9,356
52,701 (78,375)
60,254 7,456
28,294 -
(37) 505
(732,609) (167,110)
(918) 7,700
(733,527) (159,410)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2012

GmEBEERER
HE-_T——F=ZA=+—HItFE

Investing activities

Decrease (increase) in available-for-sale
financial assets

Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries

Amount paid for shares cancelled by subsidiary

Interest received

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

New borrowings raised

Inception of obligations under a finance lease

Repayment of obligations under a finance lease

Capital contribution by non-controlling interests

Net proceeds from open offer

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of
share options

Proceeds from issue of right issue by a subsidiary

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of non-convertible bonds

Purchase of convertible bonds of an associate

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
represented by

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft

TE-TEER Annual Report 2012
67
2012 2011
—g-—% —g——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
REEH
AR E S B ER A (8M)
1 )]
WIEMTB AR 2 RERAFE - 47,360
EIEIRERI T SO A (38 ) 4,376 (4,079)
BAYE - BRE RE&E (2,049) (2,441)
BAREMZE (1,825) (161,358)
HEREYETSHIE 179,978 27,251
BAMB A R MER (1,265) (7,052)
ol S)ESNGIEE R Sy S X D BN 4,764 -
EUF S 1,082 5,101
RE GBI FTi7 (AT ) H 2 F5E 185,062 (95,220)
REEE
BEEE (201,359) (123,119)
FisEE 676,588 348,313
7 4R R & R 40 RIE 827 -
BiEmEHAEE (78) -
IR R E 1,235 -
NHRBEEMGRIEFE 43,575 -
AT REREMEITRGN 2
FriS 38 8,040 -
—MRM B A R BT RRETE R 62,725 -
EAF 8 (23,271) (6,405)
BATIEM R E S TS RIR - 105,633
BE—EBE AR ARRES - (87,236)
BB FB T H 2 FEE 568,282 237,186
HeRELEHEER
BOR L) FEE 19,817 (17,444)
REVzEEeRESEHEIER
98,585 125,572
HNEEXRESBFETFHE (2,584) (9,543)
REAZESRESEEER 115,818 98,585
REAZESRESESEERIE
IRITHEHB LIRS 116,333 185,071
RITEX (515) (86,486)
115,818 98,585
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

BE T —F=A=t+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) include investment holding, property
investment and trading, hotel operations, securities
trading and investment, treasury investment, property
development and financing business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 29 June 2012.

—REHR

FEREEARAR(ARAE ) REEBEMRLILIAETE
Rtz EHARAR  ERNEEEHARIAER
REN([BERZPT]) £« ARRZ MM ERIE R T ES
EHHONFERE ARER | —HPIKE -

ARBIREMBRR(ATGRERIARE D 2 EBZEBL
REZR MERENREE  BEER  EFEERK
B MERE  MEEREBEE -

RaMBmERAET(BIT) 2 ERRAREZIIE

T o

BEZ—_H-A=1t-HUIFEZEAMBHRER
TR CERAITNARAKERSIEET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”), amendments and interpretations
(“Ints”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
HKEFRSs 2010

Amendment to  Limited Exemption from

HKFRS 1 Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosure
for First-time Adopters
HKAS 24 (as Related Party Disclosures
revised in 2009)

Amendments to  Classification of Rights Issues
HKAS 32
Amendments to  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

HK(IFRIC*) Requirement
—Int 14

HK(IFRIC*) Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
—Int 19 with Equity Instruments

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretation Committee

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010)

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity may
choose to disclose an analysis of other comprehensive
income by item in the statement of changes in equity or
in the notes to the financial statements. In the current
year, for each component of equity, the Group has
chosen to present such an analysis in the statement of
changes in equity. The revised standard has no impact
on the consolidated financial statement of the Group.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
EUH))

AEBENAFECEATNEELESMAS([FAEF
B )M 2 #a] RIS BB g R ([ BB gt 4
A1) - R kRB(RE ) CATRE A REERTE
BUBRELED])

BB RES R E/‘_g T ERBME B
1BETAR R ER 2 Pk

?\ B iR 5 22 R BIRRNE B RERRE S

FISFIERTA WMEERFE 7R ELLE
ARz BRER

BB GRTERIE 245 FEATHE
(ZEZNFEIEE)

B G ER HAE D LR
FEI2RIBET AR

H57% (BRI BRE2E REERRTEZ

ZEgY) —REF14R IR
PACTIES

AR (ERMBHRERE URATA
ZEEY)—REF19R HiHeRaE

* BRAREREZ R AERYBRERARESR

BTN XXPTsN - RAFERAIE] REIERTEEMBRE
EAHAEEAFE BEFRE 2P BEREARLMBARR
R/ S EGRAMBHRRPABRETRLBEEATE

BB ERE IR BREES T (ERH —F—
R EBUBREERKEZ —E7)

BRGEREIREIAES  BERTERNESEHE
ﬁﬁﬁ%%&i‘iﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ?&%ﬁf@i@&)\ DT o FEAF

E-ARasioms  ARECERRERZHRAZ
SIBBENIT - BIER /iﬁ'Ji‘J$‘§@ZZ EUMBRRLES

& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to

HKFRS 7

HKEFRS 9

HKEFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKEFRS 12

HKEFRS 13
Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 12
HKAS 19
(as revised in
2011)
HKAS 27
(as revised in
2011)
HKAS 28
(as revised in
2011)
Amendments to
HKAS 32
HK(IFRIC)
—Int 20

2011
2012
2012
2013

2014

2015

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities*

Fair Value Measurement*

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

FERAHIRKETEBUBREEN(FEMBREE

B (4&)

AEE IR R A T I E R/ E MR ERZHET R

BRI BB HRELER :

BB B RERAETH
BT

BB E BN

BB B HRELERE1055%
HBM RS EANF115R
FRMBREEANF 125

BN B MELRE 135
R G EREIRERT A

ERGFTERFE 125
1BRTAR

BB GFTERFE19%
(R=—ZE——F &)

BEGHERIE275R
(R=F——FKIEFT)

B EFHERFE285%
(R ——F&E7])

B GRHERSE325%
CHEN

E8( IWHW%&%%%%%
ZEE) - REF20%

BE-HZopEE

WE-HHEEREEN
TREE

BRI REERFEIR
ZEEH AR B
R RS

‘i\ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ

NSRRI e
HFZ P

%Emﬁﬁf%ﬁéZﬁ@‘

DF(E B
Kb 2ERAHR 2 255

EAERLIA - Y AR &
RERAN
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N

Nk NCIDE

BERAZE
EHEREER
TREE
BRESLERRZ
FUBRR A

! RZZ——FE ARz RAKZFERREER
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4H

LT
NHI
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s n=
6 i S

——F—-A-RARZERAI FEHREER
“FEA-BaZERRZ FERREX
=F-A—BzRRAZFERRER

—ME—-A—RARZ&RIEZ FEHREER
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of
financial assets. These amendments are intended to
provide greater transparency around risk exposures
when a financial asset is transferred but the transferor
retains some level of continuing exposure in the
asset. The amendments also require disclosures where
transfers of financial assets are not evenly distributed
throughout the period.

The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKFRS 7 will affect the Group’s
disclosures regarding transfers of financial assets in the
future.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to
disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements)
for financial instruments under an enforceable master
netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
and interim periods within those annual periods. The
disclosures should also be provided retrospectively for
all comparative periods. However, the amendments
to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
AlD) ()

BBUBREERE 7R E - BRALHEEZIETE

BAMBHRELERETRETNEMSREREEZER
HZPBERE - RFEFNEENEBRTREEMEREAR
BZEE—TRE FHFERBRAERE R AR 5 H
B o ZIERTATFERNZ AN SR EEERLIFTE
DHTELEE -

SRR AV BRE LR E7THRET AR E R EER
THERERTHEEZ RBEENBRTE -

BB ERER A EHLHEERTHEEBZIETEIR
BB B REERE 7K E - R B EERTHERZ
CHIEN

ARG ERERZZREITABESTREHEREAWLREE
PR - LER - BRI AEB BEHEB S A RHMITZ
HiEE | R RNEHRLEE |2 HE -

BANBREENSB7RIET AR EERBAMNEA AR H1E
HITZR— FRREEHEIAULR T 2R TANE
BRI AE MARR 2 B (AR S BAR IR e ) B2 BHY -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

- HKEFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

BB BHREERFoRETHMTA

ERPBREERESR(R BT NFEM)SIEFH DR
BENBNFEZHRE - BEMBREEFIR (K=

T-TFEFDMASSRBED BRI ERSIRER 2R

.
iE °

BAMBHRER BN TBREHANT ¢

— BAMBREENEIRREBE LS HENFE3R
EBHTA  BRARFEGBEAZMBCEREME
ERRARBEKARAFENE - FHE - B
MREBEHNREREZEBRANMTE - L
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FZA=Z+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities relates to the presentation of changes in
the fair value of a financial liability (designated as
at fair value through profit or loss) attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future may not have significant impact on the

Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

BB BHREERFOR T TR (H)
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards.
For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures
based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by
HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its
scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January
2013 and that the application of the new standard
may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception
to the general principles in HKAS 12 that the
measurement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities should reflect the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the entity
expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes
of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is
rebutted in certain circumstances.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 in future accounting periods
may result in adjustments to the amounts of deferred
tax liabilities recognised in prior years regarding the
Group’s investment properties of which the carrying
amounts are presumed to be recovered through sale.
Please see Note 35 for details of the deferred taxation.

However, the directors have not yet performed a
detailed analysis of the impact of the application of the
amendments and hence have not yet quantified the
extent of the impact.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of
a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance (effective from 1 April
2010 onward).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it (i) derecognises the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is
lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being
recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss
attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a jointly controlled entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.3

3.4

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less identified impairment loss. Income from
investments in subsidiaries is accounted for on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.5

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.5

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in
the Group losing significant influence over that
associate, any retained investment is measured
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as
a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying
amount of the associate attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it
loses significant influence over that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.6

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

(a) Interest income from credit card receivables
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on an accrual basis, except where
a debt becomes doubtful, in which case,
recognition of interest income is suspended
until it is realised on a cash basis.

(b) Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

()  Other interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

(d) Rental income, including rentals invoiced
in advance from properties under operating
leases, is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

() Income from hotel operation is recognised
upon provision of services.

()  Sale of hotel accommodation is recognised
upon issuance of the hotel vouchers.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

(g)

Revenue from sales of uncompleted
residential properties is recognised using
the percentage of completion method
when the Group determines that (i)
control and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the work-in-
progress transfer to the buyer in its current
state as construction progresses, (ii) sales
price is fixed and collectible, (iii) the
percentage of completion can be measured
reliably, (iv) there is no significant
uncertainty as to the ability of the Group
to complete the development, and (v)
costs incurred or to be incurred can be
measured reliably.

The percentage of completion is measured
by reference to the work performed, based
on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total costs. Profits are recognised
only in respect of finalised sales contracts
to the extent that such profits relate to the
progress of the construction work.

In all other instances, revenue from sales
of completed development properties
is only recognised upon the transfer of
control and significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the property to the buyer.
This generally coincides with the point
in time when the development unit is
delivered to the buyer.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.9

3.10

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land
and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the statements of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.11

3.12

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can

be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.12 Impairment losses on tangible and intangible

assets other than goodwill (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTBRE)
(continued)
3.13 Leasing 313 #HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rental are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13

3.14

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent of allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the three categories, including FVTPL,
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets, and
loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of
which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading
and those designated as of FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

J it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

J such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
or

o the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

J it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments.

AFS financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, deposits,
loan receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
amounts due from an associate, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTESTBEA)

(continued)

3.14 £HITHEE)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve. For AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis of which the interest expense is
included in net gains or losses.

ERBRE(E)

3.14 £HITEE)

FTHEERKRATA
SEERRTZERABEREATATNRIEME]
MZEHMTHATURERABEMBEATAZTE
ENBERERABEIMA -

BRATA

AT ARZBRARAEBSNGREMBEREER
BEFEHSBER 2 EANELH - AEBBIT R
ARTEEBRAD WGBS RIBEBNREEZEITK
$ o

ERFIE%
BERAMSAT A E SR A B2 B AR RN AR
A EME X2 T70E - BERFEIIRY) L HE
RBReRBBE2BEFFHL(NER) BEH
> EEGEFRRREN R (BEERERF
KRR HRE D 2 —ENHCRER - XHK
AR E s (B o8 ) IR ERREDFEZ F K

MEXHHRERNEEERER - Wit ARERE
1BFHE -



B -TEER Annual Report 2012

99

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

I
HE-_T——F=A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEESTBRE)
(continued)

3.14 £HITEE)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible notes issued by the Group

Convertible notes contains liability and equity
components

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and
the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the notes into equity, is included in
equity (convertible notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of
the Company, will remain in convertible notes
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible notes
reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be released to the retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible notes issued by the Group (continued)
Convertible notes contains liability and equity
components (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible
notes using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes contains liability component
and conversion option derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group
that contain both liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is
a conversion option derivative. At the date of
issue, both the liability and conversion option
components are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible notes issued by the Group (continued)
Convertible notes contains liability component
and conversion option derivative (continued)
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability
and conversion option components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the conversion option derivative is
charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and
other payables and accruals, bank overdraft,
borrowings, obligations under a finance lease,
amounts due to non-controlling interests,
amounts due to subsidiaries, amounts due
to an associate, amount due to a director,
convertible bonds and non-convertible bonds are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will
be settled by a fixed amount of cash for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument. Otherwise,
they would be classified as derivate financial
instruments, which are recognised at their fair
values at the date of issue. Changes in fair values
in subsequent periods are recognised in profit or
loss.
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FZAZ=Z+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises as associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial when, and only
when, the Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.15 Borrowings

3.16

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.17 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development, which are
intended to be held for sale, are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes costs of land, development
expenditure incurred, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy and other direct costs attributable to such
properties. These assets are recorded as current
assets as they are expected to be realised in, or
are intended for sale within the Group’s normal
operating cycle. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all anticipated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing and selling. Upon completion, the
assets are recorded as properties held for sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.18 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group'’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEESTBRE)
(continued)
3.18 Taxation (continued) 3.18 HHE(#&)

AEFESRNMB AR MBERRZIREMES

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for

taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the statements of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less.

3.20 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

(@) Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are
provided through defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity.
Payments to the defined contribution plan
are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
operate in Singapore and Japan is required
to participate in the defined contribution
plans regulated and managed by the local
government. The contributions to the
defined contribution plans are charged to
the consolidated income statement in the
period to which the contributions related.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

TEETBRRA)

3.20 Retirement benefit costs and short-term

3.20 RUEFIHEIRZHESEF (H)

employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Short-term employee benefits
Employees’ entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

3.21 Share-based payment transactions

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their values are appraised at the grant
date and exclude the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding credit
to share option reserve. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if
there is any indication that the number of share
options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally vested.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.21

3.22

3.23

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the
shares issued are reallocated to share capital with
any excess being recorded as share premium.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.

3

3.21

3.22

3.23
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(continued)

TEETBRRA)

323 HIBEREXN (E)

3.23 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy.

3.24 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

3.24

RAKEZITMIFEE REAFERFABRZE
BREREREH  RERERR UL EREER
BT BREREOMSIBLZ X HRASE © 124
FHERE - AREZ()REF LS ERFE3T7
SEE  AARRERIALZEEE2ANEESR
%’E K (i) VI 1R 2 2 BOR (4038 A ) AR IR e e

R Z R #HE(ARSE RE) T EMBER
/a\%@ °

BEAL

T MBA TR - B AR E 2 BEA
+:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through (a) ZAFBR—MHAEEPNRAEE LM
one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is %: : (1)T %M% = - x$% B 22 i 3 BA AR
controlled by, or is under common control B HERZES ()R AEBHES R
with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Rid —J %a lH: %‘J REBITEERTE N &K
Group that gives its significant influence (iii) ZEEIE B AL E

over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;

(¢) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or its

parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family
of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(b) A/ EBER

el

U\E

() ZARHKRENE

(d) ZIREEEXEFARZIBEREAS

() & AE)(d)FrAERERIA LT
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.24 Related parties (continued)

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

(g2) the party is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

TEETHRRA)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying
amount of goodwill is approximately HK$10,544,000.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 22.

Estimate the fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is current prices in an active
market for similar properties. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within
a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgment, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources including:

(6] current prices in an active market for properties
of different natures, conditions or locations (or
subject to different leases or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing leases and other
contracts, and (where possible) from external
evidences such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

RS HERET TABRE 2 TERR(H)
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value is the estimated selling price (based on the direct
comparison method) less estimated selling expenses
and estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are determined based on best available information.
Any loss will be recognised on the properties under
development for sale in the consolidated income
statement.

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, the directors have made
in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment of AFS financial assets

For AFS financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment. Judgment is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value
has been significant and/or prolonged. In making this
judgment, the historical data on market volatility as
well as the price of the specific investment are taken
into account. The Group also takes into account other
factors, such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuer/investee.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group should determine whether a property
qualifies as investment property or owner-occupied
property. In making its judgment, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in
production or supply of goods or services.

Some properties comprise of a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use for administrative purposes.
If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out
separately under finance lease), the Group accounts
for these portions separately. If the portions cannot
be sold separately, the property is accounted for as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use for administrative purposes. Judgment
is applied in determining whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify
as investment property. The Group considers each
property separately in making its judgment.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5. WEREMEERA

Wk (TRiE AR B2 2 50) BN N 2 B UE AR AL B
A BRERBE WA BREMA - FIEMA - FERA
RBERBBA - FRAEEREDIHWT

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
revenue arising on interest income from credit card

receivables, income from provision of services, dividend

income, interest income, rental income and income

from hotel operations for the year. An analysis of the

Group'’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2012 2011
e e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT
Financial interest and service income T RISEEFE R ARFEWA 263 658
Dividend income &% B U A 5,556 4,091
Interest income FBUA 1,022 5,101
Rental income A 32,262 25,045
Income from hotel operations B IEESUA 42,426 40,426
81,529 75,321
Other operating income HE &P A
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT
Other income E bl A 2,958 3,486
Exchange gain, net B 5 e AR 802 -
Bad debt recovery on trade receivables B S EWGRIBE 2 iR 588 -
Interest income from duel currency units EHEWBEN 2 FSHA 60 -
Gain on bargain purchase EEREY - 839
Impairment loss reversed in respect of ME U FRIAR
trade receivables ZREEE - 21
Impairment loss reversed in respect of MK E AL
loan receivables ZREEE - 45
4,408 4391
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s reportable segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other reportable segments. Details of
the reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

- provide financing to
individuals and acquiring
services for members

Securities trading and  — trading of securities

investment

Treasury investment

Financing operations

— asset management and cash

operations
Property investment ~ — letting properties and trading
and trading of properties

Hotel operations — hotel operations in Japan
Property development - development of properties

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker considers the
business from both product and geographic perspective.
From a product perspective, the chief operating
decision maker assesses the performance of (i) financing
operations (ii) securities trading and investment
(iii) treasury investment (iv) property investment
and trading (v) hotel operations and (vi) property
development. In addition, the chief operating decision
maker further evaluated the result on a geographical
basis (Hong Kong, North America, Singapore and
Japan).

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
prices.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
as described in Note 3. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue, contribution to the results from operations for
the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 and certain
assets, liabilities and expenditure information regarding
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

DEER

AEB K EERBDRE S E R ARt Em MR
BYABNRER - AEBEREARE DR REHER
MRTS 2 REG MR EN - B ERBEMGEATER
FIEEEE A AT E D B E 2 AR Kk - RIBEEE
M ImELERESS - AIIRELENMzABEMAIT

B e - AERALRHERE R
e BIRHREBEERS

HEHREBENMRE - BEES

MERE - REBENRSER

MERENES - HHEREEYE

LE - REARKEEEEY

MEER - BRYE

ARARESEE([ESE))  EBEEBRRBERERR
WEAEEEEL HEMAE  ETBEERARETHE
(REER  (()EFEEERRE © (HDFAERE © (iv)
MEREBEREE  (V)BEEER  R(VI)VEEZEREZE
o s FEFERREBINIRME(FE - LM -
RTINS e B A ) — R A -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Revenue Wi

- External sales ~HoMEE

- Inter-segment sales -HHERE
Total Eh
Segment results AHEE
Unallocated corporate revenue AARRANE
Unallocated corporate expenses NG5
Unallocated finance costs RARRERNA
Unallocated share of results of associates AP R ERBELFEE
Loss before income tax i
Income tax credits FEnES
Loss for the year ERpE
Segment assets PHEE
Unallocated associates AOMBELT
Unallocated assets AOWEE
Total assets BESE
Segment liabilities PHEE
Unallocated liabilities AOWAE
Total liabilities i
Capital expenditure EREX
Unallocated capital expenditure AORERR
Total capital expenditure ERRY %
Depreciation e
Unallocated depreciation RARE
Total depreciation nEEs

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value

RHEENE B
ZOVEFABRL

through profit or loss SHEEATHEEE
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair ~ (HERATEFABEL
value through profit or loss SRAEEE
Loss on disposal of investment properties ~ HERENE 2 BB
Write-off the property, plant and equipment  #3¥1% « BERRE
Bad debt recovery on trade receivables BARYGENE 2

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan receivables

PERENEDLAERR

6. DEER (E)
DBz RFEE
BE-ZE--F=-A=+—-HLFE
Securities
trading Property
Financing and Treasury ~ investment Hotel Property
operations investment  investment  and trading operations  development Elimination Total
] 578 ESHR
EEES R&E BERE EE EEER  DEER i Eh
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tén TR Tén TR Tén TEn TR TEn
263 5,556 1,022 32,262 42426 - - 81,529
- - 11,197 - - - (11,197) -
263 5,556 12,219 32,262 42,426 - (11,197) 81,529
(506) (17,588) 729 (51,753) (3,720) (33) - (72.875)
3820
(100,766)
(16,072)
1,095
(184,798)
241
(157327)
187 17,920 7,504 908,383 52,003 1,009,541 - 2,085,538
3246
170,054
2,258,838
- - - (381,925) (11,759) (836322) - (1,230,006)
(167,583)
(1,397,589)
- - - 2362 - - - 2362
1512
3874
- - (287) (2,073) (1,759 - - 4119
(263)
(4384
- - - “n - - - “m
- (9,044) - - - - - (9,044
- (12,892 - - - - - (1289)
- - - (9,034) - - - (9,034)
- - 0 - - - - G
588 - - - - - - 588
0 - - - - - g
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER (&)
Segment revenue and results (continued) s eI ES D)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE-—B——GF=-A=+-ALEE
Securities
trading Property
Financing and Treasury ~ investment Hotel Property
operations investment investment  and trading operations  development  Elimination Total
o #5EE - %#&ﬁ& 5 N N
MEER R&E It il NERR ki a5
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn TR Tén TER Tén TR TER TR
Revenue ey
- External sales -EMEE 658 4091 5,101 25,045 40426 - - 75321
- Inter-segment sales -DHRHE - - 9,236 - - - (9,236) -
Totdl 53 658 4091 UB /M5 4042 : On6) B3
Segment esl HBE8 66 1593 4780 164250 (3875 (1o B TR
Unallocated corporate revenue ABAINE 16,013
Unallocated corporate expenses AARAFRT (114391)
Unallocated finance costs FORBENK (1,369)
Unallocated share of results of associates AP R ERBZLFEE (249)
Profit before income tax WA AR 77,88
[ncome tax expenses b (26,603)
Profit for the year EREA 51,28
Segment assets NHEE M3 176,881 6,845 1,159,931 53,867 155,273 - 1,553,040
Unallocated associates AORBELT 248
Unallocated assets KOuBE 241579
Total assets BESE 1,796,867
Seqment il 5985 (14) G50 (@840 (3506 (6276 (106213) N )
Unallocated liabilities AORAE (229.334)
Total liabilities BEAE (894493)
Capital expend1ture EM& - - - 163,333 305 - - 163,638
Unallocated capital expenditure APRERRR 161
Total capital expenditure EARY S 163,799
Depreciation S (37) - (321) (1,746) (1,759 - - (3,863)
Unallocated depreciation AOEHE (183)
Total depreciation eSS (4,046)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  BIEEFE #H - - - (“m - - - (“m
Fair value gam on financial assets at fair value  RAFEF AERZ
through profit or loss SHAEATENE - 327 - - - - - 327
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair (1% iiz}ﬂﬁﬁ)\ Bl
value through profit or loss cHEENE - 17,660 - - - - - 17,660
Gain on disposal of investment properties {47 % Zqﬁlm - - - 451 - - - 431
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE B
equipment FELE fﬁ 2) - - - - - - 2
Impairment loss recognised in respect of: N TVERBAZBIESE
~ financial assets at fair value through ~BAT 5 Jr]\fﬁ v
profit or loss SHEE - (734) - - - - - (734)
- trade receivables -BoRNNE - - - - (3) - - 3)
Unallocated impairment loss recognisedin ~ Ef1 EUFER B
respect of otEer receivables APIREER - - - - - - - (1678)
Impairment loss reversed in respect of; ﬁ’ﬁwlﬁ B W‘@Z HEEE:
- trade receivables SR 2 - - - - - - 2
- loan receivables MTS 45 - - - - - - 4
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER (&)
Geographical information HEER
The Group’s operations are located in four (2011: four) AEBEBETELZNANE(ZZ——F : WEDHE - T
main geographical areas. The following table provides RREHASEZRET SO E 2 WaEm T - M RE
an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical o MRS 2 JREHD -
market, irrespective of the origin of the goods and
services.
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FTHET
Hong Kong a5 11,519 15,615
North America JEZEM 4,331 4,160
Singapore bk 23,252 15,120
Japan SPiN 42,427 40,426
81,529 75,321
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of UT A EEEREEMEERNFAZIZEEMTEED
segment assets and capital expenditure, analysed by the 2T e
geographical areas in which the assets are located.
Segment assets DEEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET
Hong Kong BE 265,012 682,784
North America LM 8,319 10,524
Singapore I 1,852,408 967,701
Japan SN 133,099 135,858

2,258,838 1,796,867
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Capital expenditure

Hong Kong
Singapore
Japan

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, no
individual customer of the Group contributed over 10%

of the total revenue of the Group.

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interests on:

Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable

within five years

Bank loans not wholly repayable within five

years

Effective interest expense on convertible bonds

(Note 33)

Interest on obligations under a finance lease

Interest expense on non-convertible bonds

(Note 34)

Less: Amount capitalised in properties under

development for sale

6.  DEER(HE)

BB

2012 2011
—B-—F —EB——fF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FiExT T
B 292 18,270
bk 3,582 145,224
=N - 305
3,874 163,799

EHETEEFZEH

BE_Z——Fr-_F—F=-A=+—HILFE  #
EAEEERZFERIAEBERUREETI0% M £ -

7. 5= 2%:N
2012 2011
—F-—=F =F——%
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FHET FHET
TESEZFE
BERRAFANEHEEZ
RITEREES 10,157 2,988
BERTFREHEE S
IRITEK 5,158 2,993
AR ES 2 BB
B H (#13233) 46 14
BREM A EIE 2 F B 22 —
FERI AR ES 2
MBI (Ha34) 15,845 868
31,228 6,863
i RERPEEME
BRER & (7,911) (458)
23,317 6,405
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8.

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

(Loss) profit before income tax is arrived at

after charging (crediting):

Operating lease charges on land and buildings

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of:
— financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— loan receivables

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of investment

properties

Write-off the property, plant and equipment
Auditor’s remuneration

Staff costs including directors’ remuneration

(Note 12)

Exchange loss, net

Rental income from investment properties less

outgoings of HK$12,092,000
(2011: HK$9,581,000)

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

8. BRFTSBLAT(EIR)ER

B P {SBLAT (B518 )i A
B GEA) AT RIA

T R FRERERX

M BB RREINE

ENEERREZ B

AT B IRMER 2 RERE

—RAHEFABEZ
THMEE

—B5RERIA

—H b FEUGRIA

—EWER

HEWE - BB R
&R

HEREMEZ
BB ()

2 GIE

BTRA(BIREELHH)
(H1a£12)

P& 5 B 18R 4R

REWERSWAR
12,092,000/ (=%
——% : 9,581,000/ 7T)

AR ZFERA

2012
—EB-——F
HK$’000
FET

1,248

4,384

477

9,034

780

91,935

(20,170)

8,946

2011

S
HK$’000
FT

1,166

4,046

477

734
23
1,678

(451)

600

100,230

5,837

(15,464)

8,052
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9. INCOME TAX (CREDITS) EXPENSES 9. FBHOER)
2012 2011
—E——F —=——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHERT
Current tax NEATRIE
— Hong Kong — &5 1,717 38
— Overseas —gaN 1,442 725
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENE 329 687
Deferred taxation (Note 35) EIEFIE (M1 5235) (30,959) 25,153
(27,471) 26,603
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the MIEF E 2 BAENE IR RGN 16.5%1 5
estimated assessable profit for both years.
Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on BINEF 2 FTEB I E R ER TR TR B B
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates FREBR 2 RATI G E -
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
entity operates.
The tax (credits) expenses for the year can be %W\T%IE(Tﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁéﬁiv’é\WE H 7 BRATS AT (8
reconciled to the (loss) profit before income tax per the B)EFEEAT
consolidated income statement as follows:
2012 2011
—E——fF —E2——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHBT THET
(Loss) profit before income tax BR PRS- T A1 (E518 ) A A (184,798) 77,885
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% EEEFEHEEICS%(ZF
(2011: 16.5%) ——4%F : 16.5%)5E 2 1A (30,492) 12,851
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AT B 7 s £
purpose 34,202 16,158
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBMA 2 B2
purpose (12,271) (34,426)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RIERAENBIIAEEIEZ
MBTE 16,024 9,491
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRBERER ZTRIAEE
recognised (1,236) (903)
Balancing charge on disposal of investment HEREME EHBI D
property 2,242 -
Under-provision in prior years BTEFERETE 329 687
Tax effect of share of results of associates DEEE NP RE BT E 180 412
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries TEEM R EE R EE
operating in other jurisdictions MT%’A\E%R Z_H d-7Z (36,068) 22,547
Effect of tax exception granted to Singapore  FTIIK B A
subsidiaries R %Z 2 (381) (214)
Income tax (credits) expenses for the year FERMEHRGER) S H (27,471) 26,603
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10.

11.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$156,421,000 (2011: profit of approximately
HK$45,417,000), a loss of approximately
HK$78,905,000 (2011: HK$34,175,000) has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$156,421,000
(2011: profit of approximately HK$45,417,000) and
on the weighted average number of approximately
2,917,996,000 (2011: 2,640,836,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2011 is based on the profit of
approximately HK$45,417,000 and on the weighted
average number of approximately 2,661,814,000
ordinary shares in issue during the year. The calculation
of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2012 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding share options since their exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share for the year.

10.

11.

FAREE AEEFR(ER)EF

KARHEEAELEFERGZEEEBELDR156,421,0007% 7T
(ZZF——4%F : % F#45417,00087T) 2 - BED
78,905,000/ 7L 2 518 ( —ZF ——4F : 34,175,0008T) B
AR Z FIEIREFEEE o

BR(ER) &R

BRER(ER) BN RARGHEEARGEFRERY
156,421,000 70( = Z ——F : jmH4945,417,0007%87T) &
FREETE B2 NEFHE0492,917,996,0008% (==
——%F : 2,640,836,0000%) 5t & -

HE-_ZT——FZAZ+—HILLEFE  SREEER R
i A 49454170008 L R FRE BT E B 2 NEFH
##412,661,814,000f& 518 - REFEHEZE-_ZT——F=A4
—T-HIEFEzSREETHEE - WARIAQRZM
RITEEBREEER  REATTEZSERESERFENRN
BREERD -



TR -TEFR

Annual Report 2012

123

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

BE_ T —F=A=t+—HILFE

11.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings

11. SRUER)ERE)

per share attributable to owners of the Company is BETE

based on the following data:

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company, used in the basic
and diluted (loss) earnings per share
calculation

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of the basic (loss) earnings
per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings
per share

ARBHEE ANEEFA(ER)
A AR EERER R
E(ER) &N

KG#E

AEESRER(ER) BN Z
Rl RSk

BEEEERRIYE
B

STEESREE(EE) 282
BB e T8

RRAFHEA ARG SRERLEE(ER) B THRIATE

2012 2011

o —B——f
HKS$'000 HKS$’000
TR TR
(156,421) 45,417
2012 2011
—E——fF —2——fF
000 '000

TR TR
2,917,996 2,640,836
- 20,978
2,917,996 2,661,814
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12.  EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (INCLUDING 12. {EEME(EEESEHH)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

2012 2011
—E--F —2——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHER
Short-term employment benefits RHEEER
— Basic salaries and directors’ fee —HEARFENEFHES 86,194 76,693
— Housing allowance — FEERL 4,497 4,298
Employee share-based compensation expenses (& & f&{n# &R 2 525 18,820
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRAAR — TR HEGTE 719 419
91,935 100,230
13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. E=HH
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight ENSENTNE(ZE——F : £R)EFFEZ2HMT
(2011: seven) directors were as follow: I
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
E 2 A= 321 HERMR
Hus REYEF*  FEZEX et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHERT FTHER
For the year ended BE-—ZT——-€=A1
31 March 2012 =t+—HILFE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Heng Fai FRIEE ST A - 54,168 22 54,190
Mr. Chan Tong Wan PR8I - 2,200 60 2,260
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow PREBZ T - 4,080 60 4,140
Non-executive director EHITES
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen FEREItE 5 A 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BIAFHTES
directors
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter FEZEEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulot 4
(Note i) (H15%i) 24 - - 24
Mr. Wong Tat Keung EmER L L 213 - - 213
Mr. Chan King Fai [oE e S A
(Note ii) (B 7tii) 60 - - 60

537 60,448 142 61,127
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

For the year ended BE-Z——%=A
31 March 2011 =t+—HLFE

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Chan Heng Fai FRIEE L&

Mr. Chan Tong Wan FRATE S &

Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow fREE L

Non-executive director EHTESE

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BBt 5T A4

Independent non-executive BIAFHTES
directors

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter FEIRELE

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulost 4
(Note i) (Hfzti)

Mr. Wong Tat Keung HIERIAE

Notes:

(i) Demised on 16 May 2011
(ii) Appointed on 16 August 2011
* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2

“Share-based payment transaction” that is attributable to
the directors.

13. EEHME)

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
e B HERAMR
we EEMEF Bl Z AR wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FH&xT FH&xT FHET
- 64,611 6 64,617
- 2,331 60 2,391
- 3,319 60 3,379
105 - - 105
105 - - 105
118 - - 118
164 - - 164
492 70,261 126 70,879

()
(if)

RZF——FRHA+/NBEHE

RZZB——FN\ATBEZRE

BERBEEVBREERE2RUARNAERZNKZS

SHEEERERUR -
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13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration in respect
of the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2011: three) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2011: two) highest paid individuals
during the two years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011
were as follows:

13.

14.

E=HME)

BEZ— Sk T——F=A=1+—HIFE  #E
EEMERRBREREMHIM 2k -

BE—_Z——FR-_ZFT——F=ZA=Z+—HILEFE K&
B EREES IS EAINBEASLESMBERER
B 2 HSED o BEBG S (8 -

BERBHFAL

FEEREZRFALERE=2(Z2——F : Z8)FRQ
AEE  HMSFBN EXME1BZHEANRY - BE—
T_HERITZ-—FZA=T-HILWEFE ENT
HpME(—F——F : MB)RSFALZHEMT

2012 2011
—E——fF —2——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHER
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind* H4e 2L REMEN 2,850 2,647
Contributions to defined contribution plans ¥ F#BH T 2 3k 79 24
2,929 2,671
* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 * BERBEBMBRELERFE2RARDAER AKX S ]

“Share-based payment transaction”.

FHEZ R -
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e MR
HE-_Z——F=A=+—HIFE
14. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 14. SHEBAEMSE(E)
(continued)
Five highest paid individuals (continued) BEEREFHFAL(E)
The emoluments of the remaining two (2011: two) BTIREG(ZZ——%F MB)ERSFALZHENTF T
highest paid individual fell within the following bands: #E -
Number of employees
EEA”
2012 2011
—E-—=f —g——f
Emolument bands B < 53 =
HKS$ nil to HK$1,000,000 T7E7021,000,0008 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 2 1,500,0003% 7 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,013 77 22,000,0003% 7 1 -
During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, no BHE_Z-——FR_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE K%
emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals BEMAERSHA TS EAMSESINBEAREREK
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or INERA & RS 2 AEED S RERLAEE -

as compensation for loss of office.
15. DIVIDENDS 15. BRE

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended BHE-_ZT-——F=ZA=+—B EFEHERM B IRK
31 March 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed B B# i SHEAEERARTERREORE(ZT——
since the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil). F
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16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

At 1 April 2010

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Closing carrying values
Year ended 31 March 2011

Opening carrying values
Additions
Step acquisition of subsidiaries

(Note 44)
Disposals

Depreciation
Exchange realignment

Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2011

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Closing carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2012

Opening carrying values
Additions

Write-off

Depreciation

Exchange realignment

Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2012

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

Closing carrying values

R-E-TFHH—H
AR
ZFERRE

FREMmE

BE-_T——F
—A=t—BI%FE

FENERTEE

NE

EHW BB AR
(H1:#44)

HE

IE

fE 5 %

FRAREE

RZE—F
ZA=1+-—H

PRA
R ERAE

FREMmE

BE-Z——%
=A=+—-HLEFE
FHIRAEE
NE

s

e

P& AR
FRIEEMA
R-ZE—=F
=B=+-H

B
ZEHTERRE

FRIEREE

16.  ¥%¥ - BERKRME

rEH
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and
buildings improvements motor vehicles Total
i HE B KB
REF MELE RARE et
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx TiERr THERr THEx
46,797 14,024 6,989 67,810
(4,178) (6,713) (4,838) (15,729)
42,619 7,311 2,151 52,081
42,619 7,311 2,151 52,081
- 1,245 1,196 2,441
- 164 117 281
- - (2) (2)
(1,129) (2,127) (790) (4,046)
8171 784 220 9,175
49,661 7,377 2,892 59,930
55,370 17,258 8,929 81,557
(5,709) (9,881) (6,037) (21,627)
49,661 7,377 2,892 59,930
49,661 7,377 2,892 59,930
- 433 1,616 2,049
- - (6) (6)
(1,206) (2,327) (851) (4,384)
87 - 27 114
48,542 5,483 3,678 57,703
55,447 17,449 10,439 83,335
(6,905) (11,966) (6,761) (25,632)
48,542 5,483 3,678 57,703
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16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Group (continued)

The carrying values of land and buildings held by the
Group are analysed as follows:

M BERRE(HE)

FEE (F)

AEERFHZ T REFREEINAOT

2012 2011

—g-—% S

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FHER

In Hong Kong, held under long-term leases REBRA 2 REAMELD 2,371 2,421
In Japan, freehold RARZKAFERE 46,171 47,240
48,542 49,661

At 31 March 2012, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying values of approximately
HK$48,448,000 (2011: HK$49,563,000) has been
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

At 31 March 2012, a carrying value of motor vehicle of
approximately HK$1,100,000 (2011: Nil) in respect of
assets held under a finance lease (Note 31).

MR-B——F=F=+—0 ' NEEEHE448,448,000
BIT(ZE——1F : 49,563,000/870) 2 T T NIEFE
IS ALEB 2 EE (H7E30) o

MN-Z——F=ZA=+—H REREHESBEZEEY
REREFELA1,100,0008 T ( = ——4 « ) (MisE
31)°



Xpress Group Limited $FREBBRAE

130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

BE_ T —F=A=t+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company

At 1 April 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Closing carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying values
Additions

Depreciation
Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Closing carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening carrying values
Additions

Write-off

Depreciation
Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Closing carrying values

16.  ¥% - BERREHE)

QT

R-E—TFNA—H
(DN
REtiE

FREmE

BHE"T——F=A=1+—HILFE
FHREE

NE

wE

FREmE
KRZB——F=A=+—H

XA
Rt E

FREmE

BE-E-——F=ZA=t—-HLEE
FYRMEE

RE

Hif

e

FHRIREE
R-B—=-F=HA=+—H
%N

REINE

FREEE

Furniture,
fixtures and
motor vehicles
HH - KB
kAE
HK$’000
FERT

3,920
(2,727)

1,193

1,193
144
(321)

1,016

4,064
(3,048)

1,016

1,016
224

(6)

(287)

947

4211
(3,264)

947
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16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term or 2% on straight-line
method

Leasehold Over the term of the lease or

improvements 6.67% — 20% on straight-line

method, whichever is the
shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20% — 25% on reducing balance

motor vehicles method

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Group
The Group’s prepaid lease payments and their carrying
values are analysed as follows:

17.

M BERRE(HE)

Lt - BERRERBRATERNE

T M AEF SR EREZ2%
(AEEEAE)

HEmEERE RHRRIEESREZ
6.67% — 20%
(AEEEAE)

R HRBERRE 20% — 25% © FRFEREBIEIRE
FE

ENEERE

AEME

REBZENHAEFRREREEITET

2012 2011

—g-——# —g——#&

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAEx

Long-term leases held in Hong Kong REBUAFAB 2 KEHEL 22,430 22,907
Opening carrying values FYRREE 22,907 23,384
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A & R T 5 (477) (477)
Closing carrying values FRIEEE 22,430 22,907

Prepaid lease payments FERHEERE

— Non-current portion —3ERBIE D 21,953 22,430

— Current portion (Note) —nBE S (H75E) 477 477
22,430 22,907

Note: The current portion of prepaid lease payments has been
included in trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments as stated in the consolidated statements of

financial position (Note 27).

Brat - BB SRER L - ENEEFRZ B MO A

5 REMBYFIR - Re REARAMFE27)A -
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17.

18.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s prepaid lease
payments of approximately HK$21,378,000 (2011:
HK$21,833,000) have been pledged to secure the
Group's borrowings (Note 30).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured at fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment

18.

BENREREAE)

MN-E——"F=ZF=+—H AEBBEMNHEEZEY
21,378,000/ L (— & ——4F : 21,833,0007 7T ) B LA
BSAEE 2 EE(KIFE30)

BREME
AEBEMAENKEHENABAURDE S HIEEAREE

Rz MEEREUATFERNAGFE  XDBA/REME
N

properties.
Group
AEH
2012 2011
e e
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THERT
Fair value NFEE
At1 April WmA—A 1,159,931 742,501
Additions RE 1,825 161,358
Disposals e (189,012) (26,800)
Step acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 44) EW BB AR (M it44) - 63,620
Fair value (loss) gain on revaluation of BEhREMEZ AHEEE)
investment properties, net W25 %58 (63,722) 146,667
Exchange realignment [ H (639) 72,585
At 31 March R=B=+-—H 908,383 1,159,931
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's interests in investment properties are held

under the following lease terms:

Long-term leases in Hong Kong
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong
Long-term leases outside Hong Kong
Medium-term leases outside Hong Kong
Freehold outside Hong Kong

Fair value

At 31 March

The Company’s interests in investment properties are

held under the following lease term:

Medium-term leases in Hong Kong

18. REWEE)

AREERBETIEMSE 2 REM R

2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FTEx
HAEZRBAD 45,620 44,017
EiE 2 RHEATEL 80,192 207,504
BAEAINZ REAFELY 683,354 808,495
FBABAINZ R EATEAY 25,255 24,129
BBAINZ KA 73,962 75,786
908,383 1,159,931
Company
AT
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FTEx
ATE
R=A=+—8~ 1,050 1,050
RATRE TOIERE 2 REY s
2012 2011
—E-CF —=——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TEx
BB 2 R EIFAL 1,050 1,050
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18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
(“Properties”) at 31 March 2012 and 2011 has been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by Messrs. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The Group’s Properties have been valued on market
value basis, which conforms to Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable
market transactions for similar properties.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, which are leased out under operating leases,
amounted to approximately HK$32,262,000 (2011:
HK$25,045,000).

At 31 March 2012, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying values of approximately
HK$890,350,000 (2011: HK$1,139,920,000) have
been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note
30).

BREWEH)

REBZRENENYEIR _T——FR-T—F=
A=+ —AZAHENEREARBEN EEE 2 BIAS
REREERMEBTEHBAERATNZ B HAMETH
BEEN - XEBFEZAERATNEFEEER  OHE
BAN AR SHBUNZETHEZLR - AKEZ
YELTMERE  TaRBAEMBEMEMGEEER -
EN2ERUME ZATLBRM SR HER °

AEENEREYEMBERZEeWRALE32,262,0007%
TL(ZZ——4 1 25045,000/57C) * MABBIREYETL
EERERAL -

RZE——F=ZA=+—H  AEEIRMEELS90,350,000
B (ZZ——14 :1,139,920,0008 70 ) 2 & TIREMED
IAPLAERUA L ®E 2 B8 (7E30) ©
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RHEBATZ#EZR MEBARIR(EXKEBEATKE)
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES
Company
PN
2012 2011
e e
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHER
Investments at cost BE - IRKAE
Unlisted shares FEETHIRG 73,184 73,184
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (68,537) (68,537)
4,647 4,647
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB A RIR R (—F N EIH)
within one year
Interest bearing at 2% per annum RFNE2E
(2011: 2%) (ZZ——F : 2B)HE 625,896 527,798
Non-interest bearing 7% 8 509,180 516,891
1,135,076 1,044,689
Less: Provision for impairment o RE B (430,959) (430,959)
704,117 613,730

Amounts due to subsidiaries within one year  #5/&K B A FFIAE
(—FRNEE) (287,478) (297,992)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RHEBARAZEZR HMEBARXZK(EXHMEBELRRE)
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March MRZZE—ZF=A=+—HZEXEZWBREERMT :

2012 are as follows:

Place/country of
incorporation/operation

Particulars of

issued share capital/

Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
ELEAVE ES 7 BRIRA/
8 BXRAEERER EMErEn FERRRLAl TEEH
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest  the Company subsidiaries
TEE mALRE  ANELR
BERER bz )
% % %
Charlton Residence Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD1,000,000 488 - 80  Property development
company 1,000,000%7 103 7T NEER
Mg BRAR
China Credit Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD13,417,282 100 100 - Investment holding
company 13,417 28237 T REBR
Mg - BRAR
China Xpress Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD5,670,002 98.8 - 988  Investment holding
company 5,670,00257 M T RERK
Mg - BRAR
Corporate Residence Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD1,000,000 64.8 - 100 Property development
company 1,000,000%7 713 70 NEER
Mg BRAR
eBanker USA. Com, Inc. United States of America, Common stock 818 - 81.8  Financial investment
limited liability company USD115,487 TRRE
ZHEBATE  ERAA One Series A
preferred stock
EER115487% T
—RAZFIEER
Expats Residences Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD25,002 100 - 100 Property investment
company 25,0028 1% T NERE

g ARAT
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RKEARZEZ MEBATDIRXK(EXHEQRRE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/operation issued share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
BAVE-E:1- Ve BRIKRA/
£ BRREEERER EREREH g 2 3:3e2] TEXH
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company subsidiaries
rEE HAAR  ENEAR
ERER S )
% % %
Global Growth Management, Inc. Canada, limited liability USD1,000 100 - 100 Property investment
company 1,000%7T NERE
MEX - BRAF
Heng Fung Capital Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$2 100 100 - Securities investment
EBREFRAR company BT EHRE
E BRAF
Heng Fung Capital (Canada) Inc. Canada, limited liability CADI1 100 100 ~ Property investment
company 1MEAT NERE
MERX - BRAR
Heng Fung Underwriter Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$2 100 100 - Securities trading
company AT HHEE
EE BRAR
Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Limited Japan, limited liability JPY60,000,000 81.8 - 100 Hotel operating
company 60,000,008 BEEE
BE - BRAR
Ichi Ni San Enterprises Company Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 100 100 - Property holding
Limited company 10,0007t nERE
FE ARAR
Japan Xpress Hospitality Limited Japan, limited liability JPY495,000,000 81.8 - 100 Investment holding
company 495,000,008 RERR
AA - BRAF
Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya Japan, limited liability JPY30,000,000 81.8 - 100 Hotel holding
company 30,000,008 i

A% BRAH
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RKEARZEZ MEBATRAXRK(EXMEQRRE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/operation issued share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
BAVE-E:1- Ve BRIKRA/
£ BRREEERER EREREH g 2 3:3e2] TEXH
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company subsidiaries
rEE HAAR  ENEAR
ERER S )
% % %
Keng Fong Foreign Investment United States of America, USD250,000 100 - 100 Property investment and
Co. Ltd limited liability company 250,000% 7T development
ZNBATE - ERAF NERERER
Sansui Resorts Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 60.9 - 100 Property investment
Ik E AR AR company 10,000t MERE
E BRAF
Sapporo Holdings Inc. Japan, limited liability JPY3,000,000 81.8 - 100 Hotel holding
company 3,000,0008 B
AR BRAR
Singapore Service Residence Pte Ltd  Singapore, limited liability SGD1,250,000 100 - 100 Property holding
company 1,250,00057 103 7T ESSE
Mg BRAR
SingXpress Capital Pte Ltd. Singapore, limited liability SGD650,200 60.9 - 100 Property holding
company ordinary shares ESSE
A - BRAR SGD1,675,000
preference shares
60,2005 s T &A% -
1,675,0008T % LB R
SingXpress Investment Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD800,000 98.8 - 100 Investment holding
company 800,0003 1% T REER
Mg - BRAR
SingXpress International Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD2 100 - 100 Property holding
company BT ESLY

g ARAT
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RKEARZEZ MEBATRAXRK(EXMEQRRE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/operation issued share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
BAVE-E:1- Ve BRIKRA/
£ BxREERRER EREREH g 2 3:3e2] TEXH
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company subsidiaries
rEE mARE ANELT
ERER S )
% % %
SingXpress Kaylim Pte Ltd. Singapore, limited liability SGD1,000,000 488 - 80  Property development
company 1,000,00057 A5 7T NEERE
g - BRAR
SingXpress Land Ltd (formerly known ~ Singapore, limited liability SGD54,201,643 60.9 - 60.9  Property development,
as SingXpress Ltd) (“SingXpress’) company Publicly traded in property investment,
SingXpress Land Ltd(§178 A - BRAR Singapore properties trading and
SingXpress Ltd) ([ SingXpress]) 54,201,6433 T - investment holding
RETIRAREE NEER NERE
NEEERKEEMN
SingXpress Land (Pasir Ris) Pte Ltd.  Singapore, limited liability SGD2 60.9 - 100 Investment holding
company MR RERR
Mg BRAR
SingXpress Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$1,250,000 60.9 - 100 Property investment
company ordinary shares hEiRE
&E BRAT 1,250,000/8 7 & @M
Wai Kin Investment Company Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$600,000 100 100 - Investment holding
BREZERAR company 600,000 T REHR
B ARAA
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$1,260,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
BREEERAT company 1,260,000/ T REER
FE ARAR
Xpress Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$133,866,230 711 - 72 Financing services
BRI BERAR company 133,866,230/ 70 LAk

&E ARAA
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

There was one (2011: four) subsidiary of the Company,
which were incorporated in Hong Kong (2011: in
Japan), was inactive and has completed the procedure
of deregistration during the year.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year except for SingXpress Land
Ltd (“SingXpress”) which has issued SGD16,320,240
convertible bonds during the year ended 31 March
2011. SingXpress had outstanding convertible bonds
of SGD13,320,000 (2011: SGD13,320,240), in
which one of the subsidiaries of the Company has
SGD13,239,677 (2011: SGD13,239,677) interest as at
31 March 2012 (Note 33).

19.

RBA R @S HEARRK(ERKELARE)
(A7)

R EERA/EIBFEARBAFEREABRAE
E@ARHDEEFEZARBMBEAR - EERE - H&F
PIEACI B R R AR SRR RBNIUE

ARTE—M(=F——F : I EEE(=F——%F A
)L L2 B A RUAMEERS - WERF R I
F o

HE-ZT——F=A=+—HLFE ' KSingXpress Land
Ltd ([SingXpress])Z£1716,320,240% N3 7T 2 Al A RS
Hoh - EMBARIRFEBESRTEAEBES - RZT
——HF=ZF=+—H - SingXpresslfEiA 13,320,000 13
TL(ZZF——4 1 13,320,24057 b3 T ) 2 18 A 1718 AT 2 f%
&% MARRER—FHNBERENEFHE13,239,677
IR IT(— T ——4F : 13,239,677 I3 T ) 2 #e s (B s
33) °
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20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE  20. RE&EARZER —HBEEATANNRER—HBHEEQTE

FROM (TO) AN ASSOCIATE MIH)
Group rEH
2012 2011
—B——fF —2——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FTER
Share of post acquisition results DIRUERR AR 1,087 (82)
Goodwill on acquisition WEES 2 /mE 4,552 4,552
Exchange realignment & H 32K 1,207 1,378
6,846 5,848
Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE (3,600) (3,600)
3,246 2,248
Amount due from an associate within one year —Ej#i%& QTR (—ERFIH) 185 172
Amount due to an associate within one year 45K — 54 A 7 IE
(—FREHED) (478) (515)
At 31 March 2012 and 2011, amounts due from (to) an R FR_ZB——F=A=1+—H —HEEQF
associate are unsecured, interest free and repayable on KRR (EER—FEHE A RFRIE) DEER - RS RAKREX

demand. 1818 -
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20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. REEATzERE —BBHEATIR(ER—HEHE AT
FROM (TO) AN ASSOCIATE (continued) MIE) ()
At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the directors of the RZE——FR-_ZE——FZA=Z+—08 ' ARREER
Company are of the opinion that the Group has RAEER T ERRTREEATE N R
significant influence and interests on the following
associates:
Proportion of ownership interest
FrE R b
Country of Group's effective Held by
Name of entity Class of shares held incorporation interest subsidiaries
BREE P R 43 48 5 AR ER FEBERER HE QRS
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--F -5 -B--f -—B-——%
BMI Realtors Pte. Ltd Ordinary share of Singapore 29.9% 30.8% 49% 49%
(Formerly known as no par value G
SingXpress Realtors EEEZEER
Pte. Ltd) (“BMI")
BMI Realtors Pte. Ltd (F 1%
SingXpress Realtors Pte. Ltd)
(IBMIJ)
RSI International Systems Ordinary share of Canada 23.9% 24.4% 29.2% 29.8%
Inc. (“RSI) no par value JIIEFN

RSI International Systems EEEZEAR

Inc.([RSI))

RSI is listed in Canada, the market value of the listed
shares held by the Group as at 31 March 2012 is
approximately HK$2,026,000 (2011: HK$1,102,000).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of interests in associates, since
RSI generates profit throughout the year, the directors
of the Company determined that no impairment is

needed.

RSIAMERE™M  AEBAFELETROR-ZZE—=F
—AZ+—BZmE#XAE2026000EFT( T ——F :
1,102,000 70) - N & BEAEE R - AEBFFHNE
PNRZ R ZAIRE S5 - HRRSIRFREEGZT - A
RAIEERABUERETE -
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20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results of the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

The financial year end date for BMI is 31 March, which
is conterminous with the Group.

The financial year end date for RSI is 31 December.
For the purpose of applying the equity method of
accounting, the financial statement of RSI for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (Year ended 31 March 2011:
31 December 2010) have been used as the Group
considers that it is impracticable for RSI to prepare
a separate set of financial statements as of 31 March.
Appropriate adjustments have been made accordingly
for the effects of significant transactions between that
date and 31 March 2012.

20.

REpE AR 2B — MBS A DK (SR M E AT
$OR) (4)

RIS EERAREIBYEARBAFEREABRAE
BEAMOBEEFELAEERZAR - NRAREER
R R RS QR ER SR REN IR -

BMIZ TR FEEERA=A=1+—H BERER % -

RSIZHMBMFEHER AT -_A=1—H BN LEERA
RSIBTHEEHEE=ZA=Z+— A ZHBERERLRATIT © 8
RSIEHHEEBEZ-_T——F+_A=+—RHEFEE=Z—
FZRA=+—HUEFE : —E—ZSF+_A=+—H)ItF
EZMBRERARSSTE  YERZBEZ—ZF
ZACT—HAETEAR G ZHEFLEE AR -
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. REEARZERD —HEEATNIR(ER—HEHEEQ
FROM (TO) AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group'’s associates are set out below:

Assets
Liabilities

Net assets

Group’s share of net assets of associates
Revenue

Profit for the year ended

Other comprehensive income

Group’s share of profit (loss) and other
comprehensive income (expense) of
associates for the year

IR) ()

B

BEEFE

REBDEBERRZBEEFE

FEEF

Hit2EEA

REE DGR E AR FEEHN
(E18) R EMh2E A ()

REEBERNR M BEERBEEIIT

a

2012 2011
—EB-—F —EB——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT
8,280 4,125
(4,874) (4,101)
3,406 24
1,087 (85)
18,076 10,868
3,056 185
3,056 191
1,095 (2,498)
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21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21.
Non-current SERE
Equity securities (Note a) WA ES (Ml ita)

Unlisted, at cost

Club membership (Note b)
Unlisted in Hong Kong, at cost

Total

Note:

(@

(b)

et

They represent investments in unlisted equity securities
issued by a private entity incorporated in Canada. They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period and the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

It represents club membership which is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. As it does not have a quoted
market price in an active market and fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

ST (MED)
REBIELT - REAE

FELET - RAE

ARHESRERE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET THERT
38 39
1,425 1,425
1,463 1,464

Hiat

(2

(b)

HIERNEREMAL Z LA BRAEITIE LTRAFSZIR
& o EEMRARER RS RHAE RIRR AR ETS -
MARBEERAEAFEEERFHAE

HIggmes HERRARZMREBRSIER  REARLE
M5 LT ETSRERATEEEAEBAE



Xpress Group Limited $FEREBBRAE

146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

BE_ T —F=A=t+—HILFE

22. GOODWILL 22, HE

Group

AEH
2012 2011
S —e——f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THERT

Gross and net carrying values FREEENRFE

At 1 April and 31 March RUA—HE=A=+—H 10,544 10,544

EEERENRT  BEZEREECHREA TREES

The carrying values of goodwill are allocated to the

following cash generating unit in the annual impairment B
test:
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHERT
Hotel operations in Japan AR S %5 10,544 10,544

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined
that no impairment associated with that cash generating
unit. The recoverable amounts for the cash generating
unit given above were determined based on value-in-
use calculations, covering a detailed five (2011: five)
years budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flows at the growth rates stated below.
The growth rates reflect the long-term average growth
rates for the respective business operations:

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are:

Growth rate 18 E 5=
Discount rate BEI8 &

RBEWHEER  AREFREEAKE2E - B8
FAMEARSELBAMLAE - FARSELERLY
AR E S EREREESE  BEHAY IS (2
o RE)BENE AR EATHEERENBRRS R
8 o ERERBIIBML LT 2 RETYEEE

SEMEEFTEMAZ TEMK

Hotel operations

BB %5
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——fF
6% 6%
5% - 10% 5% — 10%
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22.

23.

GOODWILL (continued)

The management made key assumptions for the Group
which are determined based on past performance and
its expectations for the market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant segments.

Apart from the considerations described in determining
the value-in-use of the cash generating unit above, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any
other probable changes that would necessitate changes
in its key estimates.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Group

22.

23.

BE )

AEEZTERRAEEERRBERBANEN ZMIHHE
RBEMET - AR INEFHIEREERFRERINL
TR —B - PTAZBEIRE T AR K R R ER B B 275 0 &
R ERE

BT LIRS A B (R A E B E R -
785 8 R B R0 A A A P B B
ABAEE S BEHELSEE -

Term loans — secured
Mortgage loans — secured
Installment loans — unsecured

BHER-HER
IR —HER
7 B R — E A

FRME(E

Carrying value
Less: Accumulated provisions

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% (2011: 0.5%)
over prime interest rate in Hong Kong per annum and
are repayable by installments up to year 2011. The
loans are secured by mortgages over properties placed
by the borrowers. The mortgage loans are repayable
on demand due to the default on repayment by the
borrowers.

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 20%
to 40% per annum (2011: 20% to 40% per annum).
The repayment terms of the loans are negotiated on an
individual basis.

B REHEE

e B
REE
2012 2011
—B-C=fF —E——fF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Fox FET
1,266 1,266
4,791 4,791
1,464 1,466
7,521 7,523
(6,904) (6,888)
617 635

BRERDRBAAREEFMNEEGFOSE(ZF——F:
05E)&TE » WAR-ZT——FAINHER - RFEETIA
ERAMEH Z MERBERA - ARERABRIENR - &
BIBERRIRERER -

DHER TR FFENF20EE40E(ZZ——F : F7
RNF0EBEL0E):HE - ZFEERZ BRI E R HAE
Al e
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23.

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.
Note:
(a) The aging analysis of loan receivables that are not impaired

(b)

O

is as follows:

—FRN
BiB—FELD)

Within one year

In more than one year but not more than
two years

In more than two years

EINUES

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
values of loan receivables approximate to their fair values.

The Group has provided fully for all loan receivables that
are determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and
the Group has hold collaterals over these balances. The
movement in the provision of loan receivables is as follows:

At 1 April HIMA—H

Impairment loss reversed B EIREEE
Impairment loss recognised ERERRBEE R
At 31 March R=A=+—H

EWRER(#)
ER
(@  FRRE ERERER AT

INTES

(b)

(©

2012 2011
—g-CF —2——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FExT

- 21

3 —

614 614

617 635

ARREFRARBEFEREREATFERE

AEEREEEATAKREZAERKERZBIELEE - R
BBELSH  EEEMRE ANEEERUERIENERE
PHEAKRERZSHEHRITEENRS - WEARRBEHRIELR
ERE - B RBUEZ BT

2012 2011
B B
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
6,888 6,933
- (45)

16 -

6,904 6,888
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24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

BEMARTENR RTEHKRBASUARBITEX

RekReHEBAREATEE

components:
Group Company
REE AKATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—C—F —F——F —EB——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FH&xT FH&xT FHET
Cash at banks and on hand RITREeLFERS 109,536 48,156 5,783 13,564
Bank deposits RITFER 9,913 144,407 - 95,297
119,449 192,563 5,783 108,861
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BIEIRRITIER (3,116) (7,492) - (1,531)
Bank balances and cash as stated B &k 3= A7)
in the statements of financial RITEBR LIRS
position 116,333 185,071 5,783 107,330
Less: Bank overdraft B SRITIE Y (515) (86,486) (193) (86,273)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkIREEEER 115,818 98,585 5,590 21,057

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
month depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term bank deposits at fixed rates ranging from 0.01%
to 0.53% (2011: 0.01% to 3.29%) per annum. The
carrying amounts of the pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and bank overdraft approximate to
their fair values.

IRITERRIBET BRITERFERIVZBF L - RTAE
EHESTE R 2EYEmMTE  EHEZAa—B K —@A
HRTE - Uo BB ES BEEHETEHIZN T0.01ER
053FE(ZE——F : 001 EE3.29E) 2 EEFHEFE
ZHE - DIIRITER - BITEHRMBEEURRITES
ZEEmEREEAFERE -
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24.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (continued)

Included in bank balances of the Group is
approximately HK$3,675,000 (2011: HK$5,707,000)
of bank balances denominated in US dollars
(“USD”) placed with banks in Hong Kong, US and
Singapore; approximately HK$109,256,000 (2011:
HK$35,077,000) of bank balances denominated in
Singapore dollars (“SGD”) placed with banks in Hong
Kong and Singapore; approximately HK$2,015,000
(2011: HK$1,893,000) of bank balances denominated
in Japanese Yen (“JPY”) placed with banks in Hong
Kong and Japan; approximately HK$98,000 (2011:
HK$14,802,000) of bank balances denominated in
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) placed with banks in Hong
Kong and Canada.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$3,116,000
(2011: HK$7,492,000) have been pledged to secure
long-term borrowings and therefore classified as non-
current assets.

Bank overdrafts carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.001% to 2% (2011: 0.8% to 2%) per

annum.

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows mainly include the following
foreign currencies:

USD 7T
SGD T
JPY H
CAD il

24.

—E-CF

BEMARTENR ROTEHKRBSUARBITES(F)

FTAREERITHE R RBIRITAERK3,675,0008 T (=F
——% : 5,707,000/ 7T) - &= FET))EHEEFRR
B - EB NI 21T RITEE249109,256,0007%
TL(ZF——4% :35,077,000/%870) » N T ([ #i0
WIor D) EHENF RN E A R INE 2 R1T - IRITEHKRY
2,015,000/ 70( == ——% :1,893,000/%7t) * & HE([ B
B DEHELF RN ES KB R ZRIT : $RITHE4998,000
BT (ZZ——4% : 14,802,000/ 7T) » &L= Kol
TDFHESFERREBRINERZRIT o

BIEIFRITERIERRITERIFUIREER FALE 2 R1T7E
B ZER - F58493,116,000/8 7T ( —F——4F : 7,492,000
ST BERALES REIRITIEE - oA R EE -

RITETHENT0001EE2E(-Z——F : 0.8EE2E)
ZHISFEREE o

S

7

RRERERMIRELRSFERBTEZRFE TN

a%

Group
AKE
2012

Company

AT
2012
—EB-——fF
000
F

2011
—e——%
000

T

2011

S
000

Fi

000
Fr
432 707 25 92
17,190 4,718 846 9
21,501 20,223 34 -

13 1,847 - -
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25. INVENTORIES

Group

The amounts represent food and beverage and other

consumables for hotel operations.

26. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE  26.

The Group’s carrying amounts of properties under

development held for sale comprise:

At 1 April

Step acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 44)
Addition

Exchange realignment

At 31 March

Properties under development for sale are held under

the following lease term:

Freehold outside Hong Kong

Analysed as:

At cost

25. ©FE&

FEME

BRPEEWE

ZARIEEIE R R Z ER M EMEE

AEBERPHFEMEZIREERR

o

Group

AEH
2012 2011
e N —B——f
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#5 Fi#5
M A—H 138,403 -
EAWEEN B AR (M it44) - 129,927
NE 961,059 8,476
M 5 B 79 -
R=RA=+—H 1,099,541 138,403

BIE TP 2 ERDSEYE
2012 2011
S —B——f&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHER
BBAINZ KA ZEHE 1,099,541 138,403
PRIV

YN 1,099,541 138,403
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26.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

(continued)

SingXpress have launched three housing development
projects in Singapore as follows:

1) a80% owned Charlton Residences housing
project with 21 residential units located at 1
Charlton Road, Foh Pin Mansion, Singapore
539548 for a purchase cost SGD21.4 million
(“Charlton Project”).

2)  a90% owned Waldorf Mansion housing
project with redevelopment located at Waldorf
Mansion, 235 Balestier Road, Singapore 329699
for a purchase cost SGD21 million (“Waldorf
Project”).

3) a2 80% owned Design, Build and Sell Scheme
public housing project with approximately 447
residential units located in Pasir Ris Central/
Pasir Ris Drive 1 for a purchase cost SGD123.9
million (“DBSS").

At 31 March 2012, the costs of properties under
development for sale of Charlton Project, Waldorf
Project and DBSS are approximately HK$151,407,000
(2011: HK$138,403,000), HK$136,424,000 (2011
Nil) and HK$811,710,000 (2011: Nil) respectively.
The amounts are expected to be recovered after more
than one year.

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s properties under
development for sale with a carrying value of land
cost of approximately HK$1,026,729,000 (2011:
HK$132,068,000) has been pledged to secure the
Group's borrowings (Note 30).

26.

BRRPEENEA)

SingXpressE IRETINEHEL LA N =IEF E#RIEE

1) %A 80%# % 2 Charlton Residences 5 EIEE -
ZIE B RA2VEF=EEN » (21 Charlton Road,
Foh Pin Mansion, Singapore 539548 + B AR A
21,400,000% 10 7T ([ Charlton® B |) e

2) HA%EmEERAEFEEIER - ZEBEHE
B77A235 Balesiter Road, Singapore 3296997 &
EARE - BBARKAR21,000,000%7 I3 7T ([ FEE
Bl -

3) HESOp = 2R ET - BEMIPEEHEIBEE T2
AHERIER  ZEERBOM4TEEESMN - 7
M Pasir Ris Central/Pasir Ris Drive 1+ BEARKA A
123,900,000%7 o3 7T ([ 525+ - EZMIHEE )

M-ZZE——%=H=+—H  Charlton@ R - £&HER
BET  EEMBEETECBRRPFTEMERED RIL
£151,407,00058 7T ( —Z —— 4 : 138,403,000 7T )
136,424,000 (=F——4F : £)&811,710,000/%7T(=
T——F: F) - BHAHSEENBE—FEKD -

WZE——F=ZF=+—H X AEEEYD
1,026,729,000/8 7t (== ——4F : 132,068,000 7T ) Z A
EEBRERFEYECIEIFURGAEEEE (KIFE30) °
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 27. EZRHMEWIE  RERBARE
AND PREPAYMENTS
Group Company
REE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
g% —®-——f —g--F =—¥--%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET THERT THERT
Trade receivables B 5 el EE 19,108 17,679 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful i : REEE#E
debts (10,023) (10,023) - -
9,085 7,656 - -
Other receivables, deposits and H b EWFKIE - 154 K&
prepayments SN NE N 9,275 24,609 1,297 1,257
Prepaid lease payments TEfTIEERIE
(Note 17) (Btat17) 477 477 - -
18,837 32,742 1,297 1,257
The directors of the Company considered that the fair AARESTRAE S RAMEWFHIAZ A FEEAREE
values of trade and other receivables are not materially WHREAZR  ARSTeENELERGEEIEA -
different from their carrying amounts because these
amounts have short maturity period on their inception.
The Group allows an average credit period to its trade TEEGTEESEPZPHEESRNAT
customers are as follows:
Hotel operations 60 days
e S 60H
Financing operations 30 days

BB 308
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS  27.
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period is as follow:

ESRAMEYRRIE  RERFENTRE)

B SRR FIAN R EPRAEE B ZRERATIAT -

0 - 60 days 0£60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H LA L

The aging of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H LA L

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a customer with long business relationship. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
additional provision for impairment is necessary as
there is no significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered to be fully recoverable.

Group

AEH
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——f
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THERT
2,330 1,582
50 91
6,705 5,983
9,085 7,656

RBEHRAE A BAREERELE S BRFIERE

_|

N

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E-—=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHBT THET
50 91
6,705 5,983
6,755 6,074

DRBPREREEZREFATBRAZ IR EIE
Rip$rz &P ERMEERECEZERTATER —
FEAEBERPEBHAEIETS - RIBNELR - B2
BHREIHBIELEINRERRE AEEERRBEAEE

BRRGHKEA 28KE -
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27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances were considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

1 April REA—H

Impairment losses recognised BHERREEE
Impairment losses reversed BREOREERE
31 March R=RA=+—H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
trade receivables were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties. No
impairment is recognised in this year. The Group has
hold collaterals over these balances.

ESRAMEYRRIE  RERFENTRE)

AREE RO EE RN AW E 2 BB FE R TA 2 B B
B BEERBAELRRAS ANEREHRZEEER
WEEMNEREBMAERTR R 2BKE - BELRIE
HRE R -

REBEZZE

2012 2011

—B-—F —B——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET THERT

10,023 10,021

- 23
- (21)

10,023 10,023

REEHREER  AREZESREBSERIEE R
HE - ERRERYGRIRRERT BRSSP AR -
It FRAEERBE - ARERFEZTESG 2 E M
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28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28. #RAFEFTABRZZERMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
REE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—2--f —B-—f =-B--f =—B——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000

FHET FTHET THERT THERT
Listed securities held for trading #EE =~ &%
Equity securities AFES B
_ in Hong Kong 9,018 122,340 9,014 115,628
Equity securities AEANFE 75 — BB LASN
— outside Hong Kong 7,435 43,661 5,961 40,242
Market value of listed securities %7 MmiE 16,453 166,001 14,975 155,870
Financial assets designated RAHERTABRZ
at fair value through ERMEE
profit or loss
- Equity-linked products — IR AR ENMAE - 7,779 - 7,779
— Dual currency notes —BEERER - 1,637 - -

Total 4zt 16,453 175,417 14,975 163,649
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28.

——Ff=RA=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The listed securities are held for trading purpose.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within the section on operating
activities as part of changes in working capital in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. At 31 March
2012, there are approximately HK$14,975,000 (2011:
HK$151,000,000) listed securities was pledged to
Credit Suisse for providing banking facilities to the
Group.

Equity-linked products are designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition as it contains embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract to be
designed as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Terms of the equity-linked products as at 31
March 2011 are as follows:

Principal amount

&

USD 1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,779,000)
1,000,0003= 7T (FBE 7 7,779,000/8 7T)

The equity-linked products are subject to mandatory
redemption clauses at maturity date depending on
the market prices of a United States of America listed
securities underlying the equity-linked products. The
equity-linked products will be redeemed based on the
original principal amounts. The equity-linked products
are interest bearing.

At maturity date, if the equity-linked products,
depending on the market prices of the underlying
equity securities and certain predetermined price levels,
are still outstanding, the equity-linked products will
be redeemed by the issuer at the principal amounts in
cash or shares which may be lower than the principal
amounts.

28.

BRAVEFABRZERMEE(F)

MESBEEERR - BAFENABZZEREER
%‘:ﬁ”é%fx/\45§”f??%ﬁfﬁﬁmugﬁWZ%@ﬁ%%ﬂm
o MZTE——F=A=+—08 " 414,975,000 (=%
——%F :151,000,0008 ) 2 E#EHCEB T IHE - A
ERIBITRE °

HRRAHBERBERANITETR - AFBEHER
FIFEFKE2HAHANEER/RAFEFAREZE
BEE  RRAHEERN VTR RIEE RRATFE

AR EREE BE_T——F=A=+—H 'K
REMHERZ FHOT

Maturity

EIHH

22 September 2011

—ZE——FNAZ+=H

A B A E /AR SR AR R 2 R HI M RE B REK - AR T

B A E mBR 2 B EMESFMEME o A
EmSRIEREARSFERED o RAEEEMBR S

REEB - WA BER(RFHRARAESMERET
B 2 BRAFMRE) HARTTE - BARBEMRGHREITA
T$i%’ﬁuiﬁi‘}zﬁx1’ﬁ@“ CEEz B EER
LR
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. ESZKkHMESREURESER

Group Company
REE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—2--f —B-—f =-B--f =—B——F
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHER
Trade payables B S e 778 980 - -
Accrued interests on non- JERI PR ES 2 JERTR B
convertible bonds (Note 34) (H15#34) 868 868 868 868
Other payables and accrued H e 308 Mgt B
expenses (Note) (B15E) 85,682 32,779 1,948 2,283
87,328 34,627 2,816 3,151
The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods AEBZHERRTAEBEZRERN FI02608(=F
ranging from 30 to 60 days (2011: 30 to 60 days). ——%F :30%860H) - LT RESENFIEN IS MMEE
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables HIRIEHZER 25 2 BRE DT -
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:
Group Company
rEE N
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F —B——fF —B-C-F —E——fF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FHER FTHERT
0-60 days 0£60H 754 761 - -
61-90 days 61290H - - - -
Over 90 days 90HLAE 24 219 - -
778 980 - -
Note: Included in other payables and accrued expenses are Wit EmENFREREAERLERDEHEEREPIMZIZEL
deposits received from customers regarding the sale of 67,971,000/ 70 (11,008,000 i) (2T ——4F : Z) o

properties amounted to approximately HK$67,971,000
(SGD11,008,000) (2011: Nil).
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30. BORROWINGS 30. fEE

Group Company

rEE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011

—2--f —B-—f =-B--f =—B——F
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

T FH&xT FH&xT FHET
Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 697,124 98,739 - -
Mortgage loans HIBER 166,820 228,540 - -
863,944 327,279 - -
Current RED
Bank borrowings RITEE 12,077 81,153 - 62,535
Mortgage loans HIBE =R 143,466 135,610 - -
155,543 216,763 - 62,535
Total borrowings BEE 1,019,487 544,042 - 62,535

Secured B 1,019,487 544,042 - 62,535
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30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. fBE(#E)
At the end of the reporting period, the above RIEBEAEER - DS EEERA T FIER

borrowings were repayable as follows:

Group Company
rEE b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
- —B-——F C—B--fF —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHER
Within one year —FER 155,543 216,763 - 62,535
More than one year but not BB —FENEAMF
more than two years 85,461 17,363 - -
More than two years but not BEMEETNBBRF
more than five years 669,998 150,627 - -
More than five years HBiRRE 108,485 159,289 - -
1,019,487 544,042 - 62,535
Less: Amount due within B ORBEE N —FR
one year shown under b o
current liabilities (155,543) (216,763) - (62,535)
Amount shown under non- EMBEET 2B
current liabilities 863,944 327,279 - -
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30.

BORROWINGS (continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also

30. fEE(#)
EEZERENEZHE(THESRETHZME)IMT

equal to contracted interest rates) on the borrowings

are as follows:

Group
Fixed Rate
=)
Bank borrowings 3.075% to 3.175%
RITEE 3075EE3.175E
Mortgage loans N/A
BIBER PN

E
2012
—E-CF
Floating Rate
28

1.25% over Bank’s
SWAP Offer rate
R E5| R N1 252

2.75% below Prime rate,

HIBOR (1 month) + 0.7%,

HIBOR (1 month) + 0.8%,

HIBOR (1 month) + 1.5%

HIBOR (3 months) + 1.25%,

1.5% over Bank s cost of funds,
1.65% over Bank s cost of funds,
1.75% over Bank s cost of funds,
SIBOR + 1.88%,

SIBOR (3 months) + 1.50%,

1.5% over Bank's SWAP Offer rate,
1.65% over Bank's

SWAP Offer rate,

0.75% over the

Commercial Financing rate
REENER2.75E
BARTRAZERE(—EA)MOTE
EARIRAERS(—EA)MN08E
BRERTRERS(—EA)MLSE -
BEFTRAERS(ZEA)ML25E -
RITERPAMLSE
RITERRHAMLESE
BITESHANLISE -

B FATRZEREN1.88E

FIERTRERS(ZEA) MLS0E -
RATIR S A N5 -

SRITI || 165 -

BEBENEN.75E

Fixed Rate
EE

3.075% to 3.175%
3.075EE3.175E

N/A
Nam

Floating Rate
28

1.25% over Bank’s
SWAP Offer Rate,
0.75% over Bank’s
cost of funds
SRATIR E 5 A
M1.25E -
BITERHAN.75E

2.75% below Prime rate,
HIBOR (1 month) + 0.7%,
HIBOR (1 month) + 0.8%

HIBOR (1 month) + 1%,
HIBOR (1 month) + 1.5%,

HIBOR (3 months) + 1.25%,
1.4% over Bank's cost of funds,
1.65% over Bank’s cost of funds,
1.75% over Bank’s cost of funds,

SIBOR + 1.88%,

1.35% over Bank'’s

SWAP Offer rate,

0.75% over the
Commercial Financing rate
REENER2.75E
BERARITAERS
(—f@A)M0.7E -
BEFITRAZERE
(—@A)Mmo.8E -
BEARITAERE
(—fEA)mE
BEFITRAZERE
(—@EA)mLSE -
BEARITAERE
(=1@A)m1.25E -
BITESRAILAR -
RITESRANL65E -
RITERRAMLTSE -
FIEFATRZEREN1.88F
SR1TH HAS| R N1 .35 -
BERENEM0.75E
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30.

31.

BORROWINGS (continued) 30. fBE(#E)
Company KAFH
2012 2011
-g--f -g—-%
Fixed Rate Floating Rate Fixed Rate Floating Rate
L 28 R p:4 =\
Bank borrowings N/A N/A N/A 0.75% over the
RITEE TER TEH NEm Bank's cost of fund
RITESRAN0.752
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are BEZREBENTIEERENL
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
KEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
- -®——F —B-—% —2——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHERT FTER
HKS$ T 30,360 121,655 - 28,853
SGD TN T 977,049 370,087 - -
JPY =]E| 12,078 18,618 - -
USD 257 - 16,156 - 16,156
Swiss Franc (CHF) 1A BB (3 1 3%ER) - 17,526 - 17,526
1,019,487 544,042 - 62,535
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate fEEZ RmESRE A FERE
to their fair values.
OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 31. ®EENEE
Group REE
2012 2011
—E-——f —g——f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: THEFRENITA
Current liabilities neaE 108 -
Non-current liabilities FEnRBaE 641 -

749
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31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 31. ®EMRAERIEE)
(continued)
The Group leases a motor vehicle under a finance lease AEEREREHELHEERE - FHHEBALF(ZF
arrangement. The average lease term is 7 years (2011: ——%F |  HEREREETAREZ FNXREER
Nil). Interest rates underlying all obligations under SH B BRI R3.66[E o ZFMAW MAE A E BB ER
a finance lease are fixed at respective contract dates FREE BB TR o

is 3.66% per annum. These leases have no terms of

renewal or purchase options and escalations clauses.

Group

Amount payable under
finance lease

Within one year

More than one year but not
more than two years

More than two years but not
more than five years

More than five years

Less: Future finance charges

Present value of lease
obligations

Less: Amount due for
settlement within 12
months (shown under
current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

%
Present value of minimum lease
Minimum lease payments payments
BEESEAR BREHESNRZRE
2012 2011 2012 2011

—g--F —B-——% —B--f C—2-—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHxT FHx FHx
BMEELE T ENRE
—FR 134 - 108 -
BiR—EETBBME
134 - 113 -
BBEMFETBARF
401 - 365 _
BiBAF 167 - 163 -
836 - 749 -
S RRRAR Y (87) - N/ATRBA NATEHR
TRXRIEIRE
749 - 749 _
B @A REH
EE2 308
(RRBEE
F7R) (108) -

TEARRIEMEE L
1g 641 -
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31.

32.

33.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 31.

(continued)

Group (continued)

The Group’s obligations under a finance lease are
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

Finance lease obligations include the following

currency:

SGD

T

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 32.
INTERESTS/A DIRECTOR

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33.

Group

Prior to the step acquisition as stated in Note 44 to the

consolidated financial statements, SingXpress has issued

convertible bonds on 9 November 2010. The principal

terms of the convertible bonds are as follows:

Date of issue

Aggregate principal
amount

Issue price

Interest rate

Maturity date

Conversion price

9 November 2010
SGD16,320,240

97 percent of the principal amount

Nil

4 years from the date of issue

SGDO.03 (adjusted to SGD 0.01151
as a result of the rights issue of
SingXpress in November 2011)

BEENREH)

FEE (F)

REE 2 BERAFEANBEA 2 BEEERIPERER -

BMEBOAERBE TG

2012 2011
—B——f —2——f
000 000

FTr FTr

121 -

BRFERER—REEZRE

FZERBRERR - R B NARERER

ARRES

EE
REGEVBMRMT44m 2 E T WBEETA -
SingXpressBE N T —TF+— AN BT RKRES -
AR ESR 2 E2EFET

BITHH —ZE-ZF+—-ANA

N L 16,320,240%7 hn# ot

BITE KRB Z97%

R il

E#A BITHHARRRAT 45

RE 0.03%T 3% 7T (A SingX pressi®

—E——F+— FEITHR
FHEEA0.011518 10 7T )
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33. TWERES(E)
SingXpress has SGD13,320,000 (2011: RZE——F=ZH=+—H - SingXpressi&&13,320,000
SGD13,320,240) outstanding convertible bonds as st (ZZF——F : 13,320,240 %1 13 v ) 2 Al 2 %
at 31 March 2012, in which SGD13,239,677 (2011: BHBRITE - EF13,239,6775 MM T( =T ——F -
SGD13,239,677) are held by a subsidiary of the 13,239,677 I3 L) B AR RIMB AR REEARA
Company, Xpress Credit Limited (“Xpress Credit”). AI(THBRIEE DIFAE © 13,239,677 IT 2 RITE ]2
The outstanding convertible bonds of SGD13,239,677 RESFAIEEITERAZE S —NF+— AN\ B HABEAE
can be converted into approximately 1,150.3 million R R 2 A491,150,300,0000% (== ——14 : 444,000,000
shares (2011: 444.0 million shares) of SingXpress at %) SingXpressi% {7
any time from the date of issue to 8 November 2014.
After elimination of these convertible bonds which EHB T TRHREEZZENRRES R - ATBRRES
issued to Xpress Credit, the movements of liability and ZEERERTSEEIT
equity components of convertible bonds are as follow:
Liability component Equity component Total
=L R wat
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F %% ZB--% _¥--Ff B-°fF _—B—-F
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
T TEx THER TEx TEx T
At 1 April REA—A 293 - 190 - 483 -
Step acquisition of BHWENHEALR
subsidiaries - 279 - 190 - 469
Effective interest expense EXF|SHY 46 14 - - 46 14
At 31 March m=R=+-H 339 293 190 190 529 483
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33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Conversion period

The convertible bonds may be converted at the prevailing
conversion price into validly issued, fully-paid and
unencumbered conversion shares, at the option of the
bondholder, at any time after the date of issue of the
convertible bonds up to the maturity date, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds.
The conversion shares will, upon allotment and issue, rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares, save for
any dividends, rights, allotments or other distributions,
the record rate for which precedes the date of issue of the
conversion shares.

If the convertible bonds are not converted on or before
its maturity, bondholder shall have rights to request
SingXpress to redeem all (but not less than all) of those
bondholders’ convertible bonds on the maturity date at
100 percent of the unpaid principal amount on maturity
date.

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the convertible bonds were valued by
Messrs. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, not connected with the
Group. The fair value of liability component was estimated
as the present value of a contractually determined stream of
future cash flows, upon maturity redemption, discounted
at the market yield of bonds with similar credit status
and taking into consideration the country risk premium
and liquidity risk premium adjustments if appropriate. In
subsequent periods, the liability component is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 15.1% per annum.

33.

ARRES ()
Hrat -
(a) SRR

(b)

RIB AT RE S 2 R AR - BESRFE ATRER T ERE
FETAHZRETH A ILAREA - BER AR ESF R E A
ZHBBRBBARET BRBRARBERBEZ LR
Do RBEMHEREENBETRARERNESTEZERS
ML - MR BARCER B B R AR 39T A HIRT 2 AR -
F -~ DECREM D IRERSD ©

WRBEI RS Z AR L RARRES  BEFFEAREREE
SKSingXpressN BB B 1R E A 2 R EF A RE100%E R ZEE
FRAEAZ2B(MIERD) TR ES -

BlEH 2 fhE

RETEE > TRREFHEAREYEFECBLAERE
EAEMLFERTEBAERATETHE - Bt AEFS 2
RFERENEEZARKBRSREIUE - WHNE HHE EIRRIR
WEEFTRzEFT SRR - B ABREREE R
PELRABGEIE(NEE) - Bi& - BEPD REHRAIA
BHEFSRIIE - AEED 2 BERFN RV HERR/ISIE
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34.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Group and Company

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 17
February 2011, the Company issued non-convertible
bonds with a principal amount of approximately
HK$105,633,000 on 11 March 2011. The principal
terms of the non-convertible bonds are as follows:

11 March 2011
HK$105,633,000

Date of issue
Aggregate principal
amount
Denomination in HK$100
multiple of
Interest rate 15% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears
Maturity date 10 March 2016
Redemption at the option The Company may redeem
of the Company all or some of the non-
convertible bonds from
the first anniversary to
the maturity date, subject
to giving no less than 30
or more than 60 days of
advance notice, at 101%
of their principal amount,
together with accrued
interest

34.

FEABR AR ES

AEERARDQT

RZZE——F=A+—8  REXQARAHA-ZT——F
ZATEBHZEESE  ANAREITASEL05,633,000
PETLZ IEMTHARRE S o IERTIRREF 2 E BT ¢

BITEE —E——&=ZA+—H

PN ] 105,633,000/ 7T
DEEETEE 100787

Bx FFI5E » BEFRE—X
BHA A —ZT—X¥=A+H
BAQATREED AARAAEEAFAEEH

B EEARIR - B RO
30H T ZH60H =L@ A
T RERSTEZ101%(E
A 25T F).8) BE | 2 56 sk 2P
DI ES
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34.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The movement of the liability component of non-

convertible bonds for the year is as follow:

At 1 April

Issuance on 11 March

Interest expense charged for the year/period
Interest expense paid for the year/period

At 31 March

Non-convertible bonds

Non-current portion
Current portion (Note 29)

34.  FABRREZRH)

REA—A
R=A+—HB%#T
FA,BRING 2 F S
FA/ AR 2 F S

R=RA=+—8H

FEARR A

FEREE D
MBI (H5£29)

FABBRESZ BRSO FEEFHNT

2012 2011
—g-=f —g——f
HK$'000 HKS$’000
T FHT
106,501 -

- 105,633

15,845 868
(15,845) -
106,501 106,501
2012 2011
—E-=f —B——f
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT
105,633 105,633
868 868
106,501 106,501
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35.

DEFERRED TAXATION 35. EEBIEA
Group AEE
The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities AEE

recognised by the Group are as follows:

MAZTBELEHAABEESNT

Fair value
gain on Other
revaluation taxable
of investment temporary
properties differences Total
EfMREYE Ht fERB
2 AFERER TREER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET TR THERT
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZFMA—H 62,023 277 62,300
Charged to consolidated income mefza iRk (Mi19)
statement (Note 9) 25,153 - 25,153
Exchange realignment BEE 35 FE X 7,231 - 7,231
Step acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 44) Z U 81 B8 A &) (H17744) 387 - 387
At 31 March 2011 WZZET——F=A=+—8H 94,794 277 95,071
Credited to consolidated income ST AERE W BR (H7529)
statement (Note 9) (30,959) - (30,959)
Exchange realignment [ i g Ex 264 - 264
At 31 March 2012 R=-B—=—H=A=+—H 64,099 277 64,376
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RBEMHEAER  AEBEGRAFARBAREBEEEY
has estimated unused tax losses of approximately 369,020,000/ 7T (=& ——% : 279,399,000/ 7T) © R
HK$369,020,000 (2011: HK$279,399,000). No REETE R B 1208 HOR - B s IR S R RIR TR IE
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of BE - i ARBARIEERE2 B MR

these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit stream. The whole amount of estimated unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 35.
Company

The movements on the deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Company are as follows:

IEFERLIE ()
AT
AATERZELER B ELBIT

Fair value gain
on revaluation

of investment
properties
EfMREVEZ
AFEWE
HK$’000
FERT

At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and RZZE—ZTFMNA—H - —FT—F=A=+—AHAK
31 March 2012 —E——-F=A=+—H 224

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EE#EHR
Group NEE

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s utilised facilities
of approximately HK$1,020,236,000 (2011:
HK$544,042,000) are secured by:

- its land and buildings and prepaid lease payments
(Notes 16 and 17) with a total carrying value
of approximately HK$69,826,000 (2011:
HK$71,396,000);

- its investment properties (Note 18) with carrying
value of approximately HK$890,350,000 (2011:
HK$1,139,920,000);

- its bank deposits (Note 24) of approximately
HK$3,116,000 (2011: HK$7,492,000);

- its properties under development for sale
(Note 26) with carrying value of land cost at
approximately HK$1,026,729,000 (2011:
HK$132,068,000);

- its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 28) with carrying value
of approximately HK$14,975,000 (2011:
HKS$151,000,000);

- its motor vehicle (Note 16) with carrying value
of approximately HK$1,100,000 (2011: Nil).

R-ZF-—ZF=ZA=+—HB AKECHAREY
1,020,236,000/& 70 (= ——4F : 544,042,000/ 70) A T
ST A

— BR M 42 {8 % 69,826,000 ;T ( =& — — & :

71,396,000/8 70 ) 2 L REF U R IFB A HERE
<W*}16)§217)

— R @ & % 890,350,000 8 7t ( — & — — 4
1,139,920,000770) 2 & W% (H7E18)

- 493,116,000 7T ( —ZF——4 : 7,492,000/ 7T) 2
RITFER(MIRE24)

— AR RBRE(E£91,026,729,00008 T ( — T ——4
132,068,000/ 70) 2 % E AP FEME (FizE26)

— BE M 1 4 14,975,000 8 T ( = & — —

151,000,000/ 70 ) IZ A FEF AEZEZ &/t éﬁ?‘(&ﬁ
IZS)
- BREE491,100,0008 (= E——F : )2 )58

GEIDE
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37.

37.

SHARE CAPITAL

Company

Authorised: EERA

At 31 March 2012 and 2011 RIE——FR_T—4%F
—A=+—H

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZRAE :

At 1 April 2010
and 31 March 2011

Issue of share pursuant to an open
offer (Note)

Exercise of share options

B AFEERIT’RG
(K15z)
TTIE BRI (A7 7238)

(Note 38)

At 31 March 2012

Note:

R-g——F=A=+

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 1
August 2011, the Company made an open offer (the “Open
Offer”) of 396,125,406 offer shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.11 per offer share on the basis of three offer
shares for every twenty existing shares. The certificate
for offer shares was dispatched on 23 August 2011 and
commenced in dealing on 25 August 2011.

R_E-—ZTFHA—AR
—T——§ZA=+—H

—H

PN
Par value Number of
per share ordinary shares Amount
EREE ZEREE &8
HKS$ HK$’000
BT THERT
0.01 1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.01 2,640,836,050 26,408
0.01 396,125,406 3,962
0.01 60,000,000 600
0.01 3,096,961,456 30,970
Mt - BEBBHA-Z——FN\A-—BZARRERERE  ARFMN

BREER7D0.1178 7T 2 REEE51396,125,406 A8 3 & A 1E L
AHBE([AFEE]) &% ZTRABRD AT ERE=
REERD - FERGBRER-_FT——FNAZ+=HFEE
R-B——FN\A-+HEMKES -
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

Company

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended. Eligible persons of the Share Option
Scheme include any employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) and
any suppliers, consultants, agents, advisers,
shareholders, customers, partners or business
associates who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors of the Company, have contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares
which, when aggregated with shares subject
to any other share option scheme(s), must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time and
with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

38.

F e B

(a)

Y=

RZZEZE=FRANA » RRAARMNERIEZ
([EERRERTE)) - RS EERERNERER
REFEMZABBRATH TEENIEE - [BIF
SEGTIHSNER] - BRIERE SIS hZAR—&
BEMIOF - BREAEZAERALTBRERARRE
FEERAGHARNE R KEARANBEARE
FTERZ A AR EEAMBARZE[EE - 17
BABREAEE (BREAARNEEMAKBARZ
HMITRIENTES) RO ER - FREM - K
BB BE B ABAREBBMS -

RIZREARFEST &) - ATREIR H 2 BB IE 5 I 2 AR D 8
B EEAEMERETES R ZROEN &%
TEBBARARTREEITRAZI0% - IREM12
& A EpRAR IR BB A T M BB AR ST B 2 R A B_A
TETZIRHOEBE LR - AARREREEE T
BRI 1% BBR o (A — 9% 1 e 2 [R5 2 BB AR E
BERERIEREASIER - FAIETT -

AARRESE TRTRAERTERRNESE
BB A TR M B - 9BBUS AR RIEL I
TTEFEZERME - tbs - 1218 75 B -
AAREMEREERRIBLIFATEFRBSE
ABEA LR O TABEAARMEMESHEE #ET
f&50.1% K 42 A 8 85,000,000 7T (AR B L FIRK
R B2 B E) 2 BAHE - RIZARERRR
BERAEHER - HAIETT
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)

Company (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the
directors, and commences on a specified date and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme,
whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors of the Company,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of the grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded by the Company in the
share premium account. Options which lapse
or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

38.

B IR 8 ()

(@)

AR E(E)

RERHBRENNRE BRRER  ARAZAR
BRI EERESHRIET - ROBREZTR®
HMERET  AETANEETERRE2BRE
B HIAEET 10F kBB AR &1 m B H Lk AR R &
ERE) -

BREZITRERARTESETE @ ETSERNK
THREZESE  (DARFARONEZXEBH L
ARRXSR)NEZAEARBRMBETE : (i)
ARBBROREZREZRH AMATAER S AR
R RMERAMBFHEHE - K AR F D
EE

RIBREREITER - ARR SRR BT ZRMN R
R EESIERRSMNEA - i B E B2 B RAT
EERLARMDEBR - RITE B HIAT R MHEH
2B EE B R ARITRBRRE M AR o
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

Company (continued)

38.

The following table discloses details of the
Company’s share option in issue under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

31 March 2012

Name or category
of participant

Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai

Mr. Chan Tong Wan

Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo
Sub-total

Employees and others
In aggregate

Sub-total

Total

Weighted average exercise
prices of share options
(HKS)

SERATHERER

=
REESLE

El

BREBLL

BEELE

TE¥RE

Da Roza Joao Paulost &
Pt

EEREM

At

BREMETS
e
(B)

Share option

type

BREER

2004(b)
2006(a)
2010(a)

2004(b)
2006(a)

2004(a)
2004(b)
2009(b)
2004(b)

2004(b)

2005

2004(b)
2006(a)
2010(b)
2011(a)

B IR 8 ()

@ AREE)
TREBEFAREBRET SIAEITZARFBR

R

—E-—H=ZHA=+—H

Number of share options

BREHA
Qutstanding Exercise Cancelled  Outstanding at
at 1 April during during 31 March
2011 the year the year 2012
R=B-——F R-B-=F
mA—H =A=t+-H
e RATHE FRETRE FREEH i RATHE
123,885,800* - - 123,885,800*
49,008,000 - - 49,008,000
400,000,000 (60,000,000) - 340,000,000
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
5,104,500 - - 5,104,500
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
35,731,500* - - 35,731,500*
18,376,200 - - 18,376,200
4,594,050 - - 4,594,050
3,062,700 - - 3,062,700
2,041,800*** - (2,041,800) e
672,431,550 (60,000,000) (2,041,800) 610,389,750
21,255,138 - - 21,255,138
10,209,000 - - 10,209,000
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
41,964,138 - - 41,964,138
714,395,688 (60,000,000) (2,041,800) 652,353,888
0.1450 0.1340 0.1469 0.1423
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)  Company (continued)

31 March 2011

Name or category

of participant BRATHEIER
Directors =

Mr. Chan Heng Fai BRIEMEAE

Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRyng kAt

Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow REFx+

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BElEEE

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter ~ £%i%%4

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Pauloft 4

Sub-total R
Employees and others BEEREM
In aggregate At
Sub-total /NEF
Total st

Weighted average exercise B IRAEHIE

prices of share options FHTEE
(HKS$) (B7)
Note 1:

38.

Share option
type

HBREER

2004(b)
2006(a)
2010(a)

2004(b)
2006(a)

2004(a)
2004(b)
2009(b)

2004(b)
2004(b)

2005

2004(b)
2006(a)

2007
2010(b)
2011(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, 81,672 and
1,531,350 share options are lapsed, amounted to

approximately HK$217,000 in total.

175
BBRRRELT B ()
(@) ARaE(E)
—E——%=H=+—H
Number of share options
BREYE
Qutstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 April during during at 31 March
2010 the year the year 2011
R-Z-2F R-B——%F
mA—A =RA=t+-H
R FREH FREXY 8 RITEE
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)
123,885,800* - - 123,885,800*
49,008,000 - - 49,008,000
- 400,000,000 - 400,000,000
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
5,104,500 - - 5,104,500
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
35,731,500* - - 35,731,500*
18,376,200 - - 18,376,200
4,594,050 - - 4,594,050
3,062,700 - - 3,062,700
2,041,800 - - 2,041,800
272,431,550 400,000,000 - 672,431,550
21,336,810 - (81,672) 21,255,138
10,209,000° - - 10,209,000°
1,531,350% - (1,531,350) s
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
- 7,500,000 - 7,500,000
33,077,160 10,500,000 (1,613,022) 41,964,138
305,508,710 410,500,000 (1,613,022) 714,395,688
0.1523 0.1342 0.2777 0.1450
Bretl

HE-_T——F=A=+—HIEFE ' 81,672(5 %1,531,350(5
BRI R - AEA H£49217,0008 T °
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)  Company (continued)

38. BBRETE(E)

@  AREE)

Details of the share options are as follows: BRI 2 FEIBINT ¢
2012 2011
Exercise Exercise
Share option type Date of grant Exercisable period price price
—E-CF —E--F
BREER RitiAH AfTERE TEE T6EE
2004(a) 1 November 2004 1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HKS$0.1567 HK$0.1567
—FENFT-A-H “EENET-A-RAE-T-=FRANA 0.156778 7T 0.156787C
2004(b)* 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1583 HK$0.1583
“EENFT-AtAA “RENET-A-THE-Z-=FRA/\R 0.15838 7T 0.1583%7C
2005 27 May 2005 28 May 2005 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1469 HK$0.1469
“EERERAZTHA “ERRERACZT\BEZE-=FRANR 0.1469% 7T 0.146978 7T
2006(a)" 22 May 2006 22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1534 HK$0.1534
“EERERAZTZA ZEERFAAZTZREZE-=5RANR 0.1534% 7T 0.153487
2006(b) 21 December 2006 30 January 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1534 HK$0.1534
ZEEAETIACT-R CERLF-AZTRECE-=FRANA 0.15348 7T 015347
2007** 18 April 2007 18 April 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.2841 HK$0.2841
“EREOATNR “ELLFMATN\REZE—=FHANA 0.2841% 7T 0.2841% 7T
2009(b) 18 February 2009 18 February 2009 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.0684 HK$0.0684
“EENE_ATNR ZEENFZATN\REZT-=FHANHA 0.0684%8 7T 0.0684% 7T
2010(a) 6 August 2010 6 August 2010 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1340 HK$0.1340
—Z2-ZE/\ARH —E-2/\AABEZZ-=FRA/\R 0.1340% 7T 0.1340% 7T
2010(b) 14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to 13 September 2016 HK$0.1400 HK$0.1400
—E-ZENATEA “E-EEAATRRE-Z- R EAATZH 0.1400% 7T 0.1400% 7T
2011(a) 25 March 2011 1 April 2012 to 1 May 2016 HK$0.1410 HK$0.1410
—Z——E=-AZ10A —E-—4MNA-BE-Z—~FRA-A 0.1410% 7T 0.1410% 7T

The exercise of these options was subject to the
condition that the audited revenue of the Group
on any financial year during the life of the Share
Option Scheme was not less than HK$1 billion,
which is calculated based on the accounting
policies and presentation adopted by the Group
at the date of grant of option. Since the audited
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2008 was
over HK$1 billion, the above condition for the
share option granted on 15 November 2004 is
satisfied and those option is eligible to exercise.

5

TSR Z SR AR RE R BRET &
MEANER S BFE 2 EBZRETE L RI0EE
T MTRBASERNERERHEAMRACE
ABRERENSTAGE - HRBE_ZTTNF=A
=t RLEFEZEEZREBRIOEET  LiR
ZEEMFE+—A TR BRRE B GSE SEKX
BZERpE 7171 -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)

Company (continued)
o The exercise of these options was subject to the
condition that the audited profit before income
tax of the certain subsidiaries/associates of the
Group for the financial year ended not less than
certain prescribed amounts. When it meets the
requirement, the share option will be exercised in
20% per annum for each achieve year.

o On 16 May 2011, Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo is
demised and hence his option has been cancelled
during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The exercise of these options was according to the
following schedule:

a. 20% of the option shares be exercisable at
the date of acceptance; and

b. the balance will be exercisable in equal
yearly installments over 4 years with the
first installment commencing 1 January

2006.

The vesting period of other share options is
the period from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 642,603,888 (2011: 676,331,388) remaining
exercisable share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of
the remaining exercisable share options were
represented to subscribe for 642,603,888 (2011:
676,331,388) ordinary shares in the Company at
HK$91,457,000 (2011: HK$95,463,000). The
weighted average remaining contractual life of
these outstanding share options is approximately
1 year (2011: 2 years).

60,000,000 share options were exercised during
the year (2011: Nil).

B IR 8 ()

AR E(E)

* TR SRR ZMS R ALAREZETHEAR
S EENRIRM IR F E B 2 BRI ER AT
FTEIRETIEEDHE - BRENEIHTE - BRE
R ERERFENEF20%ITE

o RZZF——FAA+7XH ' Da Roza Joao Paulost A&
e A EERENEE T ——F=A=+—H
IEFEHES -

* ZEBRRETYRBIN TR RRITE

a. Hep20% B R R EAE RTTE &

b. BT 2 BRAE RN MF RS F D RHETR-
FE-RITEHR-TTXRF-A A -

Hibfgho 2 BB e Rk b BT RGN
=R=Nia:

RREMEEER - AR RREBERET 27 F17
FEARITE 2 EIREHE £642,603,888(0 (=%
——% 1 676,331,38817)) o BEITFEH T A] F1T{E
ZBEIAE - A1 AA91,457,0008 (- ——4F :
95,463,000 7T ) 3R B A~ A 7] 642,603,888 (% (==
——% :676,331,388/% ) B o ZF M AKRITE
B MEFHRTANBERAOBIF(ZE——
B 24F) o

FX60,000,000 BERAEEITFE(ZT——F : ]) o
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)

Company (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the
estimated fair values of the options granted on
6 August 2010, 14 September 2010 and 25
March 2011 are approximately HK$18,480,000,
HK$294,000 and HK$592,000 respectively. The
inputs for calculating the fair value are shown as
follow:

Grant date

KRB

Calculation model FEENX

Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility FE K IR

Expected life (year) FEHI G A

Risk-free rate $2 J3 Bs ) 2

Expected dividend yield AR 2R

Number of EREREYAR
share options granted

Fair value per share option BHREREZAYE

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the previous years.

Notes:

a) The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

b) The fair value of the share option is determined
by an independent professional qualified valuer,
Messrs. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited.
The risk-free interest rate was based on yield
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note. Expected
volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of entities with the business in which
the Group is engaged. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

38.

B IR 8 ()

(@)

ARE(4E)

BHE-_ZT——FZA=Z+—HIFE  BREZR
—T-TENAXNA —E-TFALATEBARC
T——FZA-+HARYE  BREGSAFES
R4 418,480,000/ 7T + 294,0007% 7T 5592,0007%

T SHEATEZHABIIRET :

6 August 14 September 25 March
2010 2010 2011
—B-EF —EB-EF —B——F
NARH hBA+mMmA =HA=t+HH
(Note b) (Note a) (Note a)
(K15Eb) (Kizta) (Bi5ta)
Binomial model = Trinomial model = Trinomial model
—ER =N =1E
0.1340 0.1400 0.1410
71.40% 81.80% 65.40%
2.753 6.002 4.233
0.530% 1.855% 2.221%

0% 0% 0%
400,000,000 3,000,000 7,500,000
0.0462 0.0981 0.0790

BB RARFBERFZRERLKRETE -

Kt

a) AAEBREATFEMBERRBRRAEE 2 KER
REE - BREEEBEEES TIBRR 2 TREZEM

£1) -

b) WRERTEOBELERSERMEM L E®BTERE
AARRAEE - BRRANEATBINERSESR A
A - FHRERBUEADRAEBZEREL KR
BE - BREEEMELS TIBERZ TRZBMmE
o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)

(b)

Company (continued)

In total, for the year ended 31 March
2012, employee share-based compensation
expenses amounted to HK$525,000 (2011:
HK$18,820,000) has been included in the
consolidated income statement which gave rise
to additional paid-in capital. As at 31 March
2012, the estimated fair value of the option
granted which was included in the employee
share-based compensation reserve, amounted to

HK$18,797,000 (2011: HK$21,071,000).

SingXpress Land Ltd

On 2 March 2011, Futuristic Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentive to
directors and eligible employees was cancelled.

On the same date, a new share option scheme
(the “SingXpress Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by SingXpress.

The SingXpress Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from that date,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible
persons of this scheme include any employees,
executives or officers of the SingXpress or any of
its subsidiaries (including independent directors
and non-executive directors of SingXpress or any
of its subsidiaries).

Pursuant to the SingXpress Share Option
Scheme, the aggregate number of shares over
which the committee may grant options on any
date, when added to the number of shares issued
and issuable in respect of all Options granted
under the scheme, shall not exceed 15% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the SingXpress on
the date preceding that date. During the entire
operation of the scheme, not more than 25% of
the total number of shares (including any shares
which may issued pursuant to adjustments, if
any, under the specific rule in respect of which
SingXpress may grant options under the scheme,
may be offered to any one participant.

B IR 8 ()

(@)

(b)

AR (&)

BAHE BE_ZT-——_F=-A=+—HILEE
1B B B m BRI A5250008 (T ——4F :
18,820,000/ 7T) + Bt ARG WaERA - EmmEE
HINEHER - R_T——F=A=+—H A
EERMBEREPCRLDERRE G ATER
18,797,000/ 7L(=Z——4F : 21,071,000/87T) °

SingXpress Land Ltd

MWZB——F=A-H EEREEFREEKE
B2 RRBEIIEET BT 1AL -

B A - SingXpressiRANFTEEARE 81 ([SingXpress
BT -

ETNHFEHEHAER 2 BN T + SingXpressIEIXiET
EIE EZERIOFNAENR - T8l zaEB/AL
BIESingXpresssk T ENB AR ZIRES - 17
A B sk 8% B (B #ESingXpresssl (T {a] £ B A
RIZ B ESRIFNITES) ©

BIESingXpressiB a2l - ZE MMM B AR
e 2 BRERTSIRDEER le]LEZqu%JIETT“
oz FTEBARERMSEBIT R BITRMEE -

2 D SR BT tiﬂSmgXpressE\uZEHﬂﬁlZE
BITEBRA15% - Rzt 8l2EmA AR - £/
—R2NETSESRBBRNBEZ25%(BRIE
EIZRSingXpressfEsZsT 218 T~ Al g5 BB A i 2
FrEMBIFTEL R - WA e s T 2 E AR GH (0
B)) o



Xpress Group Limited $FREBBRAE

180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

BE_ T —F=A=t+—HILFE

38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)  SingXpress Land Ltd (continued)

The offer of the grant of an option under this
scheme must be accepted by the grantee within
30 days from the date of grant of that option and,
subject to such modification as the committee
may from time to time determine, accompanied
by payment of SGD1 as consideration.

No share option was granted under the
SingXpress Share Option Scheme since it has
been adopted.

Pursuant to the announcement of SingXpress
dated 14 July 2011, the board of directors of
SingXpress has approved that the SingXpress
Share Option Scheme was terminated.

RESERVES

Group
The amount of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, assets revaluation reserve
represents change in carrying amount of owner-
occupied property when it becomes an investment
property that will be carried at fair value. An amount of
approximately HK$57,948,000 has been released upon
disposal of that investment property.

38.

39.

B IR 8 ()

(b) SingXpress Land Ltd (#&)

ERANBARR L EREE B30 8 AR AL
FETREZBERERY YRR RELIF
BT - AR EE G AR TREL Z SRR -

BSingXpresslE R BIERMAR - BIERHE
JScHE -

BIESingXpressHf AT ——F LA THAZA
fif + SingXpressZEEFE 2 H/EL I ESingXpressiEk
A -

@

REE
RAFELBEFE AEBzFHBBEIEEINGS
RmBEKR2T

R FR-_ZB-——F=F=+—H BEEHLHBE
EEBRMERRBIEAFEIRZIRENER ZEEE
EH) - 4)57,948,000/8 TLEN H EZIRE W ERFRRLR -
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39. RESERVES (continued) 39. fE&E(E)
Company b N
Employee
share-based
Share  compensation Warrant ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EERH
RADRE wERE FAREIRE RHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET TR TERT THERT
At 1 April 2010 R-_ZT—ZFWA—H 803,400 2,392 5,160 (483,386) 327,566
Employee share-based B iR E B k)
compensation expenses HERX
recognised - 18,820 - - 18,820
Transfer to reserves upon lapse [ % A% 1 5k 3%
of share options i 8 48 == ki - (217) - - (217)
Loss for the year, representing FFEE1E » HHE
total comprehensive expenses  AFE 2 E X
for the year HEE - - - (34,175) (34,175)
At31 March 2011 Hom——
—A=+—H 803,400 20,995 5,160 (517,561) 311,994
[ssue of shares pursuant to RIBEAREE
an open offer (Note 37) BT (H15237) 39,613 - - - 39,613
Transfer of reserves upon RT3 BB AR HE RS
exercise of share options BEREE
(Note 38) (K1:E38) 2,772 (2,772) - - -
Transfer of reserves upon R 1
cancellation of share options ~ EFRfEE
(Note 38) (H17£38) - 27) - 27 -
Issue of share capital upon RT3 BB AR HEE RS
exercise of share options BETRRAS
(Note 38) (H13£38) 7,440 - - - 7,440
Employee share-based RERMHFERY
compensation expenses - 525 - - 525
Transfer of reserves upon expiry 52X HESE [E b
of warrants (Note) HEBEEME) - - (5,160) 5,160 -
Loss for the year, representing FFEE1E » HHE
total comprehensive expenses  AFE 2 E X
for the year HE - - - (78,905) (78,905)

At 31 March 2012 N-—TB——F
=A=+—H 853,225 18,721 - (591,279) 280,667
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39.

RESERVES (continued)

Company (continued)

Note:

40.

In September 2006, the Company issued 172,000,000
unlisted warrants (“2006 Warrants”) at the issues price of
HK$0.03 per warrant to Mr. Chan Heng Fai, an executive
director of the Company. Each warrant carries the rights
to subscribe for one new share of the Company at initial
exercise price of HK$0.17 per new shares, subject to
adjustments for, among other things, subdivision or
consolidation of share, rights issues, extraordinary stock
or cash distribution, and other dilutive events, at any time
during a period of 5 years commencing from the date of
issue of warrants. Consideration of HK$5.16 million was
received in respect of warrants issued during the year

ended 31 March 2007.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the 2006 Warrants
was lapsed in October 2011.

OPERATING LEASES

Group

(a)

As lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating
leases during the year:

Premises

UES

39. f#E(E)

ARTF ()

Kiat : RZZZERFNA - ARRIUESHRREF0.03B T2 HEE
[AIZR A RIENFTE B PRI 1B S0 £ 2 17172,000,00015 3E T3 R%
HE(ZEEAFRREE]) - ERREFETZ AR RE
A Z IR - G0 RIEE I HEF A SR 0.175%8
T2 B ITEERBEARR—RFRG - AR (EPBE)R
DI A G - A% - BRI IR S D BC sk b #E EIRIE
HBE - ABARE-TR L= A=+ -ALTEETRR
5 2 B {E 55,160,000 7T ©
REBE-T——FZA=Z+—HLFE  —ZTTFRREE
RZE——F+ABEERI -

40. RKEHE

REH

(@) ERABEA
FR - BRELEHEZENRKERENK

2012 2011
e —B——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET
1,248 1,166
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40. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

Group (continued)

(a)

(b)

As lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-EZERF
(BIEERWE)

The Group leases a number of rented premises
and property, plant and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years (2011: one to five
years). None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the year
was HK$32,262,000 (2011: HK$25,045,000).
Certain of the Group’s properties held for
rental purposes, with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$120,196,000 (2011:
HK$140,630,000), have been disposed of since
the end of the reporting period.

mERE )

FEE (F)

(a)

(b)

HEBREA (M)
RIREEMARE - AEBREE TIHHER
FURHEREREMERN B EXN 2 RERENK
T

2012 2011
—E-=f —B——fF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FH FH
382 816

99 320

481 1,136

AEBRBLLHEEHEHAETHEYEANRDE -
BEERE BONERHA—FE2RF(ZF——
F:—Fz20F)  HEEAEOBEIAES -

EBHBA

FRAERE ZWEMRS WA A32,262,0008 7T
(ZZ——4 : 250450008 7T) - REELN A
120,196,0007 70 ( == ——4F : 140,630,0007% 7T.)
ZETHASBEEEEHERR 2 MECNIREH
MEEALRE -
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40.

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

Group (continued)
(b)  As lessor (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group

had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —F RN
E-_EZERF

In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases its investment properties
(Note 18) under operating lease arrangements
which run for an initial period of two to four
years (2011: two to five years), with an option
to renew the lease terms at the expiry date or
at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals. The properties are
expected to generate rental yields of 3.6% (2011:
2.2%) on an ongoing basis.

Company

The Company does not have any significant operating
lease commitments or any future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

mERE )

FEE (F)
(b)  1ERHEA(H)

RBEMEEER - AEEEBAFPITEUTHER
EEERK

2012 2011

—ZE——F —E2——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHExT

17,973 27,153

(BEEEMS) 6,827 18,310
24,800 45,463

AEERBEEHETHBELAKREDZE (M
18) EMYZ Y HBA_ENF (=T ——
FZERF)  WERRHEHERBSASEEARS
MEEEHE BERMBY - 2SHAIMER SR
A - ZEYEBRITFERN3.6%(=ZF——
F:22%)2HEER -

¥ /N
R-EBE——F=A=+—BR-_ZT——F=A=+—8"
AARIBRBEAAHESCLEHETETANEAKLHER
£ - TRERIERE T B EHEFIA ©
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41.

42.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group
The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

41.

BAERE

FEME
REENREREET A2 ERASENT

2012 2011
—E——F —=——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THERT
Capital expenditure in respect of properties ~ D] 4ERRIEA T BHRE
under development for sale contracted BB BREPEFEMEY
for but not provided in the consolidated e
financial statements 600,683 116,636
Company VNN

The Company does not have any significant
commitments at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42.
(a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent
liabilities of the Group and the Company were as
follows:
Guarantees given to financial ~FEFHIB AR Z
institutions in respect of SRITRVE (MBI TS S
banking facilities granted TEH &R

to subsidiaries

The extent of the facilities utilised as at 31
March 2012 by the subsidiaries guaranteed
by the Company amounted to approximately
HK$288,511,000 (2011: HK$270,565,000).

ARBIR—E——F=ZA=+—HEKZ-_ZE—F=A8
=+ — B E( T E AR -

FREE

(a) AEBRAARANHEHRHEEAZHARBNT ¢

Group Company
rEH ¥NNE|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f =B =ZB-ZF CZET——Ff
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET TERT
- - 474,158 323,280
RZE—ZF=A=+T—H AFRAERZHE

7

NEIEHAEEXA288,511,0008 (=& ——
£ 1 270,565,000 7T) ©
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42.

43.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited
and CASH Retail Management Group Limited
(together referred to as “Pricerite”) respectively
claiming that a subsidiary of the Company has,
among others, divulged confidential information
of Pricerite in breach of agreement for damages
which are not quantified. The litigation was arises
due to the acquisition of such subsidiary by the
Group in 2000. In the opinion of the Directors,
it is not practicable at this stage to determine
with certainty the outcome of the litigation.
Further details of the litigation is set out in
section headed “The Compromise Agreement” in
the Letter from the Board in the circular of the
Company dated 8 July, 2002. The litigation has
been standstill for more than 8 years.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries is engaged in litigation or
arbitration of material importance and so far as
the directors are aware, no litigation or claims of
material importance are pending or threatened by
or against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme of Hong
Kong are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employers are each required to make a
monthly contribution of maximum HK$1,000 for each
employee to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect of
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme
to all employees in Singapore. The assets of the scheme
of Singapore is regulated and managed by the Singapore
Government. Under this scheme, the employers
are required to make contribution to the scheme at
the rates specified in rules of the scheme. The only
obligation of the Group in respect of the scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from these schemes charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid or payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the schemes.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2011:
Nil).

42.

43.

HREEH)

b) EEEEESERARREERMIERARQF (G
MIEEDORBEARE—BMBARIRECES
) RBEEE B ERMER S - ROFMER

TEWBZMBRRAIMES - EFRR - REERY
SRR LZAERTERLTNE AT o LA —

%W%%@ P Z Wi | — 8D o R AAD (RIRES

fr BB - RRAREAINE R BB EESE
MERFRRTE - MUEEME - ARRHEAL
IR R AR T A E R EARRLRE -

BERNETE

AEEREEEESEREERMBHIEATEESHE([A
Bestdll)  BARESECEERXEANES SN
2HIWEANEEEEDFRFA - REBESATE > SEE
AR ANRABE 2L X REREBRBRBES S BIHHR
5% /31,000/87C ° AEREFEE ST 2 - RERRE
e B2 RERR -

AEE AN EBIREE RN o F Gt
B o BEMMMEBNREE REE - RIZZE - BEA
VARZEH BIIR AVIE FE 2 L R [AIRZ AT IR - NEB R LA 8
ZHE—BERRZETBIZREHK -

& At BIE £ CRIREN T BIH NGRS WS R ANER - 1R
BASEBRZEABRAVNESNRENTFTES 2HFEE -

FALEBHEFBOIM (T ——F - 8) -
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44.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

For the year ended 31 March 2011

Step acquisition of SingXpress

In August 2010, the Group has undertaken to make
applications in excess of its pro rata entitlement to
the convertible bonds under the rights issue (“Rights
Issue”) of SingXpress and pay for not less than SGD7
million in aggregate principal amount of the convertible
bonds provisionally allotted to the Group of which the
Group has undertaken to take up. The Rights Issue
was completed on 9 November 2010 and the Group
has subscribed for approximately SGD16.2 million in
aggregate principal amount of the convertible bonds.
On 15 November 2010, the Group converted SGD3
million of the convertible bonds into 100,000,000 new
shares of SingXpress and the shareholding interests have
been increased from approximately 33.3% to 51.4%
and SingXpress became a subsidiary of the Company
thereafter. Since the Group increased its shareholdings
in SingXpress by acquiring its shares in open market
afterwards, the Group held approximately 62.7%
equity interest of SingXpress as at 31 March 2011.

SingXpress is a limited liability, which is incorporated
and domiciled in Singapore and publicly traded on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The
principal activities of SingXpress and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as “SingXpress Group”) are
property development, property investment and
properties trading and investment holding.

44.

ES S0

BE_F——F=HA=+—HIFE

ZE LW ESingXpress

RZZE—ZFNA AEECAFRFBLEER
SingXpresstki% ([ #A% 1) I8 T HZ L FIES 2 AT AR E AR
R W HEAN S B E AL 2 T AN SR B B AR GE R 2 AT AR
BHI MRS B 7,000,000F 10T o HEER
“Z-EF+-ANBEK AEEERERSLEY
16,200,000%7 p3 T 2 AT AR &SR - R=ZF—FF+— A
+HB - AEE 3,000,000 15 T2 AT R ES KB
£3100,000,000/SingX press#ifi% 7 - E MR #I33.3%1%
%51.4% * b1&SingXpressiK AR A T 2B AT o BR
REERZFBN AFRTISWESingX pressiR 7 ME R
SingXpressZ &g - REBR _T——F=A=1+—HBF
B SingXpress#62.7% AR A% o

SingXpress BRI REE 2 BRAR - TR
I EHFZ AR ARAHEE ° SingXpress L Ef
B AR (5 SingXpress&EE |) 2 T EEB AMEER -
YERERYEEE AR EZR -
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 44, EBEO(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) BE_FE——F=FA=+—HULFEE)
Step acquisition of SingXpress (continued) ZE S W HESingXpress (&)
Details of identifiable net assets acquired on 15 SingXpressEER —_ET—TF+—A+HBARKE 21 #
November 2010 and gain on bargain purchase of BB EFENMZBRBRE ZFFBOT ¢

SingXpress Group are as follows:

2011
—E——fF
HK$’000
FHET
Consideration RE
Fair value of conversion of convertible bonds Hgpr ik Es 2 A THE 16,151
Fair value of equity interests in SingXpress Group RE W AE AT AN B T
held by the Group before the step acquisition SingXpress5& E IR Atz 2 N FE 16,062
32213
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired B EERFIARIEEEZ
and liabilities assumed EEIASE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 281
Investment properties REME 63,620
Properties under development for sale BRPEFEME 129,927
Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments B o5 REMBEWIE -« e RFERTIE 12,461
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EATEFABSEZ2REE 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReLReFEER 47,360
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 R HAMER BN L ETE R (11,456)
Deferred taxation IRIERRIA (387)
Borrowings == (133,470)
Liabilities component of convertible bonds RSB T i AR EHE E AT 2
before elimination of convertible bonds which AmRESaERS
held by the Group (42,813)
Non-controlling interests (Note a) FEIERRAE RS (M 7ta) (1,176)
Total identifiable net assets AR EE R EAR 64,367
Non-controlling interests (Note b) FEVERAE SR (M7HD) (31,315)
33,052
Gain on bargain purchase BEWE WS 839
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEELEZRERNFHE

Acquired cash and cash equivalents in SingXpress Group Y SingXpressEE @ 2 & &
ReFEAR 47,360
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 44.

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued)

Step acquisition of SingXpress (continued)
Notes:

a. It represented 20% equity interests of Charlton Residences
Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of SingXpress, which hold by non-
controlling interests on 15 November 2010.

189
¥BEO(E)
B2 —_F——F=F=+—HIFEE)
& W #ESingXpress (&)
M -
a. HEE HASingXpress 2 i B A F]Charlton Residences Pte LtdiA =

T-2F+— A+ A REBIFERIERRTA 2 200 AN o

b. It represented 48.6% equity interests of SingXpress Group b. IBERSingXpressE BN —T—TF +— A TR HBEBIFTK
which hold by non-controlling interests on 15 November W15 A 2 48.6% R A M ©
2010.
45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45. BEALRS
Group rE
(a) (@
2012 2011
—E-—=f —g——f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHERT
SingXpress SingXpress
Subscription of convertible bonds REAMRES
(SGD16.2 million) (16,200,000 0% 7T ) N/ATEA 95,123
Accountancy fee income SHERKA N/ATE A 435
Sansui Resorts Limited Sansui Resorts Limited
Advisory and administrative support fee BREITHEZEERKA
income N/ATEA 480

Note: The Group has entered into the above related parties
transactions with SingXpress prior to the step acquisition
mentioned in Note 44 during the year ended 31 March
2011.

Wt BEZT——F=A=+—HB1EFE  AEEC R F44FTiL
BB HE T TR BASingX pressa] M _FLE@EA LR S -



Xpress Group Limited $FREBBRAE

190

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e ISR

BE_ T —F=A=t+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Group (continued)

(b)

The remuneration of key management personnel,
which are the directors of the Company, during
the year was as follows:

Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind*

Contributions to defined contribution plans

* This includes the amount calculated under

HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment transaction” that is
attributable to the directors.

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Apart from the above, the Group did not have
any other significant related parties transactions
for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

46. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a)

On 17 November 2011, SingXpress, a subsidiary
of the Company, made a rights issue of
2,976,096,000 new ordinary shares in the capital
of SingXpress at an issue price of SGDO0.01 for
each rights share, on the basis of eight rights
shares for every one existing share in the capital
of SingXpress held by the shareholders.

BEEME - #
BWEA

B BB HKET 82 5K

45. BEATIXRE(A)

FEE (F)

(b)

% -

FRATREEBABR(AARRES) ZHMNT

2012 2011
—2-=F —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tz
P lipSd
60,985 70,753
142 126
61,127 70,879

* BERETEWBMELRNE2RARN AERZN
KR JFHEEREIEFOR

EXFMaFrMEE e ENA T 2RA LTSS

EMEE -

BLadh AEERBE_T—_FR_T——%F
ZAZTHLEFESEEMEMERREALR
5 o

46. EFERERIRS

(a)

RZE——F+—A+tH AAFRZHBAF
SingXpress#EfTHA - LA ND0.01 57 103K
TO2 B TBE1TSingX pressiR AN 2,976,096,0004%
LB - EERREMFE —RSingXpressi& A
ZIRBRNEE )\ R RS
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46. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

(b)

@ @

The proceeds of approximately HK$177,244,000
from the rights issue was satisfied by (i) offsetting
the shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$110,525,000 granted to SingXpress by
Xpress Credit; (ii) approximately HK$1,997,000
in cash paid by Xpress Credit and (iii)
approximately HK$64,722,000 in cash from
non-controlling interests.

On 9 January 2012, the Group disposed
80,000,000 shares of SingXpress at a
consideration of SGDO0.01 each. The loss between
the fair value of cash consideration received
and the carrying value of net assets disposed
amounting to approximately HK$1,516,000
was recognised in equity as other reserve and an
increase of approximately HK$6,280,000 was
recognised in the non-controlling interests.

On 13 September 2011, the Group
acquired 500,000 shares of SingXpress.
The gain between the fair value of cash
consideration paid and the relevant
shares acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of SingXpress amounting to
approximately HK$64,000 was recognised
in equity as other reserve and a decrease
of approximately HK$115,000 was
recognised in the non-controlling interests.

(i) On 17 November 2011, the Group
further acquired 17,000,000 rights issue
of SingXpress. The gain between the
fair value of cash consideration paid
and the relevant shares acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of SingXpress
amounting to approximately HK$120,000
was recognised in equity as other
reserve and a decrease of approximately
HK$1,334,000 was recognised in the non-
controlling interests.

46. RFERERRZ(H)

(b)

©

HIGFTSFIEL177,244,00058 70 © ()T REER
FSingXpressZ R E 7 47110,525,0007 7T 84
(i) FFREE RS X 491,997,000 70 K (iii) FE4E
Rt e TS 3R & 4964,722,00078 LB 1+

RZZE—ZF—ANA ' AEBURESRRO0.01F
HN3 7T H £:80,000,0008% Sing X pressAi o FTUIR
SREAFEEMEEEEFEREMEL1,516,000

ATHEZEBERRNERER MR - YR IFER
RERRERIE M2 FHAY6,280,0008 7T

) RZE-——FAA+=8 AEEHKHE
SingXpress 500,000A% &7  prTIRSRAE
N EEFTKEESIingX pressE E FEKEE
2 B R0 ] 2 Y 2 4964,000 78 TT P 25 7
RAEBHMEE  WHRIEERERERRD S
EB4I115,00078 7T ©

(i RZZB——F+—A++tR FEEE-F
U BESingXpress 17,000,0008% fLAEPED © B
MRS REAFEEMKESingXpressE E
FEIREE 2 ABRERR (D f 2 Y8z £7120,0007%
TTRERERAEAMEE - WHRIETRER
HERR & 491,334,000 7T °
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. £®IA
Categories of financial instruments T AR
Financial assets SRMEE
Group Company
REE ¥ N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--f —B-——-% <—B--f <—B——F%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THxT FHBxT FHBT FHT
Non-current assets FkREBEE
Available-for-sale financial AHESREE
assets 1,463 1,464 - -
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRITER 3,116 7,492 - 1,531
4,579 8,956 - 1,531
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFERAERZ
through profit or loss TRMEE 16,453 175,417 14,975 163,649
Loans and receivables: Bk EE
— Trade and other receivables —E 5 REMEI
and deposits FIEA RIS 16,847 31,701 925 931
— Loan receivables —EWER 617 635 - -
— Amounts due from — B ARIRK
subsidiaries - - 704,117 613,730
— Amounts due from an ——EEE ARIRE
associate 185 172 - -
— Bank balances and cash —iRITERKRE S 116,333 185,071 5,783 107,330
150,435 392,996 725,800 885,640
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47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 47. S£®MIAGE)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables
and accruals
— Bank overdraft
— Borrowings
— Obligations under a finance
lease
— Amounts due to
non-controlling interests

— Amounts due to subsidiaries
— Amounts due to an associate

— Amount due to a director

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities measured

at amortised cost

— Borrowings

— Obligations under a finance

lease
— Convertible bonds
— Non-convertible bonds

EHTAZHEG(E)
A==k
Group Company
A%E AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-=F =B——F —B-=F —B——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
REBEE
WHHERAGTEZ
TRIBE
— B REAMENFR
AR EEHE A 87,328 34,627 2,816 3,151
—RITEX 515 86,486 193 86,273
— & 155,543 216,763 - 62,535
— BB AR
108 - - -
— AR
FIE 67,714 7,456 - -
NG FeE - - 287,478 297,992
— R —[EEE AR
FIE 478 515 - -
— R —BEEFE 28,294 - 24,835 -
339,980 345,847 315,322 449,951
FRBAME
REER AT EZ
TREE
—f8E 863,944 327,279 - -
— BB ML IE
641 - - -
— AR ES 339 293 - -
— SERIR A E S 105,633 105,633 105,633 105,633
970,557 433,205 105,633 105,633
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47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments including
available-for-sale financial assets, pledged bank deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade
and other receivables and deposits, loan receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, amounts due from
an associate, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and accruals, bank overdraft, borrowings,
obligations under a finance lease, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, amounts due to subsidiaries,
amounts due to an associate, amount due to a director,
liability component of convertible bonds and non-
convertible bonds. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments including market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Japan and North America with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, SGD, JPY and
USD respectively. Foreign currency risk arises from
financial assets, liabilities and transactions which were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

47.

SRMIAE)
HBEREEREREE

AEETZERTASEARBESRERE  CEMRT
T BAFEFABSRZEMEE  B5HREMBEYGK
BARZE BRER MEBARRK - —MHERF
R~ RiTEH RS - BHREMENFRALEE
B RITEX - BE - REBKEE - ARIEERERR
B ERHEARFIR - SR —EBERRREA  ER—
FEFFOR - ABREFZBERD KIETBREES - £
BMTAFBEREMTIARE - BZFeRTARH AR
BEMSEROMNERR - FIERERRERRR)  FEER
pRRBESRR -  BRBEZSRBRZERHBIINAT
EREERREEZERE - AR LGB REEE
H I ©

SN LB

AREBETZREE  #FN¥ - BARIEZMEEER - X
MARBLNETT ~ FIKTT - AERETHEREE - b
KRhARESERNEEENINERIIEZERE
E AERXFHEL - EREERVEEINERE - LHR
FEREZBETEAINERR
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 47. SWMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBEBREERERKE (&)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) INER R ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies RS BPARERINET B EREEREBAEZR
which denominated monetary assets and monetary HERT :
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:
Group Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—2--%f -B--f =—B--f =—B-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000

FHET FTHET THET THERT
Net financial assets SRIBEERE
SGD Frhnsg T 8,651 58 5,224 58
PY g 3 7,788 3 7,779
USD Eiv 9,274 45,640 6,157 40,960
Australian dollars (AUD) BT CRIT) 781 3,250 - -
Renminbi (RMB) ARB(ARE) - - - -
Canadian dollars (CAD) T (anre) - 14,772 - -
18,709 71,508 11,384 48,797
Sensitivity analysis GRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to HK$, USD, SGD and REEFEAEETT - 270 T RINTT.2 Rk o

CAD.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 47. SWMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EERERBE(E)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) SN R B (4F)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRI AN (4E)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to TESAFEE SRS TS Y BRT « A=Y
a 5% increase and decrease in HK$, USD, SGD and T T ENMETE IR BT TT 4 R FHE R B E 5% 2 &
CAD against the HK$, with all other variable held BRE ST o 5% A [H 5 BSI A B NS85 414 L B B
;onsjcant. 5% is the §e£1§itivity rﬁtetusid when reporting'gc > B J:|:$ ]I e E B Jﬁgﬁi—r_ (B3R EARS 5 |
i ey ok el o)y e iRk - asRonLSRRTe)
‘( L METE &2 £ [T AR T 4L (5K N VR L 36 BA
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates BIVES H BasREE j] Hb/ﬁﬂ PAShZ 5N - R
. . . o . FIEIRS %2 [ER BB FEAIME K -
until the next reporting period. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and foreign currencies other than the
functional currencies of the group entities and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates.
HKS$ Impact USD Impact SGD Impact CAD Impact Total Impact
BReEE ES A 7 Mg % e nrz%é pea
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
g--f “%--% -g3--f “®--F -%-2F “%--F -3-2f "%¥--F -3-F "F--F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS$000  HKS$'000
TER TER TER TR TER TR TER TiEn T#ER TiEn
(Loss) profitafter BSR4
income tax (B8) &7 34 45 386 1912 361 2 - 620 781 2,579
As HK$ is linked to USD, the Group does not have ES T T - REBRNZER I EEAINERR
material exchange risk on such currency.
Interest rate risk =@
The Group income and operating cash flows are TEEZRARKEREREERN ETZMISFEF G

substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates mainly arises from bank borrowings.
Bank borrowings arranged at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
At 31 March 2012, approximately 85% (2011: 83%)
of the bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates.
The interest rate and repayment terms of the bank
borrowings outstanding at year end are disclosed in
Note 30.

2. REBZMHHNREHRABETBEREABITEE - IUF
@ﬂT&.Eﬂ+kﬁZﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁ$$l D Bl &
ReERENERBEAFEFNERRE R_TE—=—F=A
=+—8 " 885%(=F——F : 83%) ZIRITEELUZE
FIR B - REREAEEZRITEEZFIRREEER
RUFE30h IR EE -
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47.

——H=ZA=1t—RHILFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk through the impact of the rate changes on bank
balances which are carried at variable interest rate.

The directors consider the Group’s exposure of the
bank deposits to fair value interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank deposits at fixed rate
are within short maturity periods in general.

At 31 March 2012, if interest rates had increased or
decreased by 1% and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s (loss) profit after income tax
for the year and accumulated losses would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$10,067,000 (2011:
HK$5,440,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to floating interest rates of the
floating rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Management’s best estimate of the effect on the
Group’s (loss) profit after income tax due to a
reasonably possible change in the relevant stock market
index, with all other variables held constant, at the end
of the reporting period is as follows (in practice, the
actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity
analysis below and the difference could be material):

47.

SRMIAE)

BIEBEBEE R BEREKE (&)

F= @k (&)
mﬁ&&EWTJQZEHﬁﬁﬂTﬁ ,,,,,,
i//luiﬂ$ﬂ

P R REASE

EERR ANZEENEFFBZMBRITER AR L J
HARE  WAKEZ RITFEFRAERZ D FEN R
TEKX -

RZZ——F=ZA=+—8 ' AR LFAKTEL% M7
EHMEHRETE  BAREBAFEERAEHEEER)
A N 2 EHEE S MR 2 #£910,067,0008 0 (— &2 ——
4 15,440,000 7C) © b EZARARNEBEENZ B FI X IR
TEEZ 28 FIRETER o

B
REBAZ KD BRIEAFER ARG
RESRZ A ERER -

S EREEZ LT

RBEHREER  EEERAERFMEERZAEE
E ME(ERB BB SR TE 2B T ) HAREBGRT
& (BB EMN 2 &ZEG O T (BR L - BEERXSHERATEE
SEHATHRESMBMERREZRTEBEAX)

2012 2011
e e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FTHER
Increase (decrease) in (loss) profit after PREFIEH & (BE)EF
income tax IO
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB —BEEH
+30% + 30% 2,705 36,702
~30% ~30% (2,705) (36,702)
Singapore — Straits Times Index AN — BRI IE 2K
+20% +20% 1,487 8,732
~20% —~20% (1,487) (8,732)
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47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2012 and 2011.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group. The carrying
amounts of available-for-sale financial assets, pledged
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, trade and other receivables and deposits,
loan receivables, amounts due from an associate, bank
balances and cash represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The carrying amounts of these financial assets
presented in the statements of financial position are net
of impairment losses, if any. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and amounts due from an associate,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
debtors requiring credit and loan receivables over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
debtors’ past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the debtors as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the debtors
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-60 days
from the date of billing. The Group obtains collateral
from customers in respect of trade receivables and loan
receivables.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-ratings agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables and loan receivables are set out in
Notes 27 and 23, respectively.

47.

SMIAM)
198 I R B ()
AT

A E-——FER_ET——F=A=+—H FFESHRIA
ZIRAEREANFTETESKER o

FERR

RBREPEBER - AEEERR 2 &S EERRGEER
SERXSHFREBTEERAEBEIREMEERM
SHBER AHEESREE ESERRTER &
NHEFABRZEREE  B5 REMRYGIANRER
T BEER  —EBEQRRR  ROTEHREBESZER
HEEASERESREERR 2 HESEERR - RH#H
MABER2I 22 EeMEERAECIRIRERSE
) - EEECHRIEERE - WHARSZZZEEERR

EITHRHEERE

ME S NEMEBIWFE - BRER L —EBERF RKM
5 HABEREERERERBA—EERREE T ET
ERMEERTE - ST E 2B E T AT ERISE 28
R RIS 2B - WEBE R Z ABERRES
KB 2 EBEIRIE - BB RUGIEBREH 30260
KAENE - REBEE 5 e IR IE & FE UL & Z 8 = P U
IR o

HRZSEFHHBREEFRRBTE2SERTRZ
Ri7 RERBREFERAZEERRER

AEBEE S LEMREFIEANERERMEEZEER
[ — T B ER D BB PTRE27 ] 23
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 47. SWMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBEBREERERKE (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk ;ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group REBRRBE SRR CERERTHBEREERAR
monitors and maintains a level of bank balances BN AEBKE }y\éf%é‘&i‘jﬁ,ﬁﬁ%},%%ﬁz%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁmqi
deemed adequate by the management to finance the AEBTBFEBELEMEEESNEETE(HIINEREH
Group's operations investment opportunities and It REBITRIER ) MG ECBNEEEESH K -
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and from fund raising activities such as
placement of new shares and issuance of warrants.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s REHEAER  AEBeRAGE 2SN E B Hm
financial liabilities have contractual maturities which I
are summarised below:
At 31 March 2012 R-E——-F=A=+—H
Weighted
average Total
effective ~ Less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Iyear 1-2years 2-Syears Over5years  cash flows amounts
TS RER
13l PR-F k3 —ERf IENE RERELE REE
% HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Trade and other payables 25 R EMEMFE
and accruals URIEEHER - 87328 - - - 87328 87328
Bank overdraft RITEX 0.001-2 519 - - - 519 515
Borrowings (Note) fEE it 1.002-5.32 174,737 102,474 701,244 119,639 1,098,094 1,019,487
Obligations under a finance BEHEE NE(T
lease 3.66 134 134 401 167 836 749
Amounts due to non- R R R
controlling interests - 67,714 - - - 67,714 67,714
Amounts due to an associate /% —EHEAFF - 478 - - - 478 478
Amount due to a director ~ £/R— %§$Za - 28,294 - - - 28,294 28,294
Convertible bonds R ES 15.1 51 59 405 - 515 339
Non-convertible bonds A BE% 15 15845 15845 136455 S 168145 105633
375,100 118,512 838,505 119,806 1,451,923 1,310,537
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47.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 March 2011

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
R
ERAIE
%
Trade and other payables 25 R EMEMFUE
and accruals LR ERA -
Bank overdraft RITEX 0.8-2
Borrowings (Note) [EEH?) 0.13-3.18
Amounts due to non- EY 3 Ty N
controlling interest -
Amounts due to an associate &KX —EEEAFIZE -
Convertible bonds BRkER 15.1
Non-convertible bonds R ES 15

47. SBMIAE)
HEREREEAERKF(F)
REBESRS(E)
RZZE——F=F=+—H
Total
Less than undiscounted Carrying
lyear 1-2years 2-Syears Over5years  cash flows amounts
REB
SR-F —-EmF “ZHE IFENE RERELE RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TRR ThR ThR TER
34,627 - - - 34,627 34,627
88,213 - - - 88,213 86,486
223,190 21,593 164,055 177,745 586,583 544,042
7456 - - - 7456 7456
515 - - - 515 515
44 51 419 - 514 293
15,845 15,845 152,300 - 183,990 105,633
369,890 37,489 316,774 177,745 901,898 779,052
2 A RIS B

The above contractual maturities reflect the

undiscounted cash flows, which may differ to the
carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

Note:

Included in interest-bearing bank loans of the Group are term loans
with an aggregate principal amounting to HK$108,187,000 (2011:
HK$121,911,000) of which the respective loan agreements contain
a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call the loans at any time and therefore, for the purpose
of the above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe
that these loans will be called in their entirely within 12 months,
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with
the maturity dates as set out in the respective loan agreements.
This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of
the Group at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the
lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

ElaHRHBERARBBRRERE -
sHERAZAERAEE -

AEEMSRITERBEASAIER108,187,000/8 T (—F——4F :
121,911,000 70) < EHER - BRAERBAM B EEER - B TR
TTEMGI AR ESER - Bt B LAREBERNE - EOER
[RER] -

BEA LG EFREXFERTE 2B 12(E A NES - MiKZE
RAETERESETGEAREM A EE - WEFEDEEARER
HEGEHBHRERE B 2MBRR - AEEETERZOBR - LEE
WEMHARAEBBE—EERERMIEDL -
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47.

——H=ZA=1t—RHILFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and
ask prices respectively; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

47.

SRMTAM)
BRI B R BF ()
AT

CREENREBABAFENRATIAEE

o WAEZEEERRIEEERERABETMSEE 22/
BEREREBEATEDNDNZEMSEMBEANE
/\/En%ﬁ?gf& P52

(= *;'Ct?gm °

EREDMZA EZJ

TREFIHERAFERVTEBLAEZ SR T AMETT
A ZEEMTANDRBEBRSHZATFEREDR

BE—E=H -

-  F-RATEAERAREEXEBETIRMSZ
BECREHE)MELS -

-  FIRAVEAERBRES -RARER(BNZE
RIIEER(ANHEREL)BEMBZEEREER
ANECGRERINFELS -

-  FZRATEAEREERELFMREBEMETS
BEzEEXABRRABCBIFEEMSGEAEBE)M
A ERMAELS -
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47.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value (continued)

Financial assets at fair value BRATFEFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE

Non-derivative financial assets #{EB & 7 IE0T4
held for trading CREE

Financial assets at fair value BRATFEFABEZ
through profit or loss SREE

Non-derivative financial assets #{EB = 7 IE0T4
held for trading TRMEE

During the year ended 31 March 2012, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

48. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

47. SRIAE)

BIBREEEEZEREE (&)
ATEE)
2012
—E-CF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— EH E=& Fab
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&xT FH&xT FHET
16,453 - - 16,453
2011
—ET——F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ B E=& st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET
175,417 - - 175,417

HE-Z——=ZfA=+—HIFE FHEE-_HH
WEAFEFEZERE  TEEAXEHE=R -

48. EBXRRKBER
AEBEEREARAABERAEEEBENSELE @ RN

BB TS SRS T E AR AR BAR R - AEEE
MRRERE RS TE -
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48.

49.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 48. EXRABEE(HF)
The directors of the Company also balance its overall KAREENTHTHHAREREE - AEEARE
capital structure periodically. In order to maintain or NIEHE - REBE AR AN FIRE D IR S BEE - HALRTT
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust TR o (MR A e P RSN E Y BRAAE
the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, new MRS RBTES Y EBBRAE - AQT T EETE
shares issue as well as of warrants. The directors of EEEEEHEBRAENY S TR o
the Company will also consider the raise of long-
term borrowings as second resource of capital when
investment opportunities arise and the return of such
investments will justify the cost of debts from the
borrowings and bank overdraft.
2012 2011
—g—=f S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET

Debt afE 1,126,723 736,454
Bank balances and cash and IRITEEER IR S IA K

pledged bank deposits EHERITIER (119,449) (192,563)
Net debt B8EFE 1,007,274 543,891
Equity represented by total equity AR BEER 2 EE

excluding non-controlling interests TEEFERER 758,660 869,605
Net debt to equity ratio BEXRE[EER 133% 63%
The directors of the Company also endeavour to ensure RATBZEENBNERBAETEBEESRKRBEAEZ
the steady and reliable cash flow from the normal WEME -
business operation.
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 49. FEFEEXH

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
assets with a total capital value at the inception of the
leases of approximately HK$827,000 (SGD 134,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
converted SGD3 million of the convertible bonds into
100 million shares of SingXpress, and shareholding
interests has been increased from approximately 33.3%
to 51.4% in result of step acquisition. Details disclosed
in Note 44 to this financial statement.

HE-ZT——F=-A=t+—HIFE AEEREEAH
LIFFIAN 2 B R E(E 49827,0007 7T (134,000 AN3% 7T ) 5T
S RbERE T HE -

HEZZ——F=-A=+—HLFE FEEHEE
3,000,000 % 10 % 7T 2 B] # j% f& % X, 32 /& 100,000,000 %
SingXpressf&fn » EPAEITE S U - HARIEHKI33.3%4
INZES1.4% ° BRFFISEN R BEERKRMTT44
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50.

F=ZA=+—HILHFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

©

As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 January 2012, SingXpress Credit Pte.
Ltd, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into five option agreements
with the vendor, BF Twentyeight Pte. Ltd, to
purchase five units situated at #02-19, #02-
20, #02-21, #02-22 and #02-23 UB.1, 81 Ubi
Avenue 4, Singapore 408830 at an aggregate
consideration of SGD3,912,068 (approximately
HK$23,668,000). The transaction has been
completed on 3 April 2012.

As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 April 2012, Xpress Credit, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
changed interest from 2,040,192,000 shares to
1,880,192,000 shares, representing the existing
issued share capital of SingXpress changed from
60.94% to 56.16%. Due to Mr. Tng Kay Lim,
the purchaser, has purchased 160 million shares
of SingXpress (“Sales Shares”) at a price of
SGDO0.018 per Sale Share through married trade
in the open market, representing approximately
4.78% of the issued and paid-up capital of
SingXpress at a consideration of SGD2,880,000
(approximately HK$17,712,000).

As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 19 April 2012, Xpress Credit has
changed interest from 1,880,192,000 shares to
2,253,494,422 shares, representing the existing
issued share capital of SingXpress changed
from 56.16% to 57.43%. Due to (1) disposal of
200,112,000 ordinary shares of SingXpress at
an average price of approximately SGD0.0204
per share through open market, representing
approximately 5.98% of the issued and paid-
up capital of SingXpress at an aggregate
consideration of approximately SGD4,078,000
(approximately HK$25,081,000) between
16 April 2012 and 18 April 2012; and (2)
573,414,422 new shares of SingXpress were
allotted to XCL upon conversion a principal
amount of SGD6,600,000 convertible bonds.

50.

BEHEKER

(a)

(b)

()

BOARRAHA-ZZE——F—A=+HZA
P, - AR El 2z EEE ENE 2 A SingXpress
Credit Pte. Ltd#2E 77BF Twentyeight Pte. Ltd5]
SORIAEIRE AR - LAARR(E 3,912,068 % MK T (X
23,668,000/ 7T ) & AL #0381 Ubi Avenue 4,
UB.1 #02-19, #02-20, #02-21, #02-22 K& #02- 23(@3
F408830%:) 2 A - REZHER =
FHA=H5MK -

HAARBSHA-ZE——FWNA+=0H 2 AfGFFH
AR ZEREE2ENBARFREERGE
%% 2 B 2 H2,040,192,000 A% £ A 1,880,192,000
&% - #E M SingXpressIi A B TR AR 60.94% %
£56.16% * JYFRAE FTng Kay Limt B BIEA
FMIHEIT AR HEESingXpress 160,000,000
MR (TEHERD 1) - ERAREREERD0.018
BT - MHE RSingXpressB 21T MR R AL
4.78% - X {8 £2,880,000% i1 7. (£717,712,000
BTT) o

BNARBARAE-T——FWMA+NAEZAMH
B HREEEARR ZRME H1,880,192,000
&% 52,253,494 4ZZHX *E%EASmgXpressiﬁﬁE
%éﬁHxZi&aaSts 16% % A57.43% » TYARR ()R =

_imﬂ-h\ﬁi_? _imﬂ-ﬂ\ﬁ iﬁL
EARTISHEITR S RERTFER0.0204 57 K
JCH & SingXpress 200,112,0000% Z@% - fHE R
SingXpress= 1T R B RAKI5.98%  BREL A
4,078,000 AN 7T (4925,081,0005 7T) + M (2)5F
RIS 5E6,600,00057 M1 T2 IR ES 1A 0 M)
R E ERIE4573,414,422%SingXpressHTA% °
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50.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(d) Assetoutinthe Company’s circular dated

(e)

2 May 2012, SingXpress International Pte
Ltd, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an option
agreement with the purchaser to dispose the
property situated at 200 Jalan Sultan #08-
11 Textile Centre, Singapore 199018 at a
consideration of SGD18,000,000 (approximately
HK$111,600,000). The transaction has been
completed on 23 May 2012.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated
11 May 2012, SingXpress Property Development
Pte Ltd (“SingXpress Development”), a
subsidiary of SingXpress, together with Kay Lim
Realty Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of Kay Lim Holdings
Pte Ltd (“Kay Lim”") and Creative Investments
Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of Amara Holdings Limited
(“Amara”) was successful in joint tender for the
acquisition of land parcel located at Tampines
Central 7/Tampines Avenue 7/Tampines
Avenue 9 (the “Land”) at the tender price of
approximately SGD233.5 million (approximately
HK$1,447.9 million) on 14 May 2012. Tampines
EC Pte. Ltd., a joint venture company (“JV
Company”), was formed in Singapore on 21
May 2012 to undertake the development of
an Executive Condominium (the “Project”).
SingXpress Development, Kay Lim and Amara
are participated in the Project through the JV
Company in the equity proportion of 30%, 30%
and 40% respectively. The Project is expected to
be completed by 2016.

50.

BREMEKRERA)

(d)

(e)

BUAARBRA-ST——_FRAA-_AZREXK
Fr#l - AAFZ B2 EME 2 F SingXpress
International Pte LtdE2 58 5] Btk + DB
PAFT AN 200 Jalan Sultan, Textile Centre #08-11
(EB#R1990185% ) 2 M2 - 1B 4&18,000,000%7 N3
JL(#9111,600,0007%87T) - RHER_E—_F A A
—FZHREK e

WA RFHBEA-ETE——FRAAT—HZAMH
FT&k + SingXpressZ fff/8 72 FlSingXpress Property
Development Pte Ltd([ SingXpress Development |)
##[FKay Lim Holdings Pte Ltd([Kay Lim])Z K
B2 F]Kay Lim Realty Pte Ltd &2 Amara Holdings
Limited ([ Amara ) 2 [ff/& /2 &) Creative Investments
Pte Ltd R =T —ZF A A+ HFWELR
Tampines Central 7/Tampines Avenue 7/Tampines
Avenue 92 ¥R ([ T4 ) FEFIZ - HIZELH A
233,500,000 % 03¢ 7T (491,447,900,000/87T) ° &
/N & Tampines EC Pte. Ltd. (A& QT )N -F
—ZFRAZT—BEHRMEKT - AERKEE
NE([THE ])ERE - SingXpress Development *
Kay Lim&Amara§ BB RFEEE A RERL
{5130% - 30% 5 40% 2 HEIFE - FMHEB KR -F
—NEFZEI e
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50.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

(0

(g)

As set out in the Company’s overseas regulatory
announcement dated 17 May 2012, SingXpress
has completed the private placing of 123,000,000
subscription shares at an issue price of
SGDO0.0162 per subscription share in accordance
with the terms of the subscription agreement,
raising gross proceeds of approximately
SGD1.99 million. The total number of issued
shares has increased to 4,624,087,926 shares
upon the subscription. The details are set out
in the overseas regulatory announcement of the
Company dated 26 April 2012.

As set out in the Company’s overseas regulatory
announcement dated 19 June 2012, SingXpress
has completed the private placing of 243,000,000
subscription shares at an issue price of
SGDO0.0126 per subscription share in accordance
with the terms of the subscription agreement,
raising gross proceeds of approximately SGD3.06
million. After the subscription, the total number
of issued shares has increased to 4,867,087,926
shares and the Company’s interest in SingXpress
was decreased from 55.16% to 52.40%. The
details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 1 June 2012 and the overseas
regulatory announcement of the Company dated
31 May 2012.

50.

BREMEKRERA)

®

(g)

HINAATBERA-—ZE——F A A++HHZEIE
ENMFTH, 0 SingXpressB e R IERE Haz 2 15
HIRBTESRRERG0.01623T M TR AR
123,000,000 R EER 1D - HEFASRIBRLTELY
1,990,000% i3yt - R - BEITAD 2L N
%4,624,087,926/% - B BEENAAT A A=
T FNAZFNBZBINEE DM -

AR T RSP A-ZE——ENAtARZEIE
ENMFTH, » SingXpressE e R IERE HE 2 15
FIZBETEERRBERK0.0126 37 M3 T A B
5 243,000,000(8 REE 1D - BSFAEHIELTELD
3,060,000 M3ETT © 3REE1E - B 31T 2 E0E N
%£4,867,087,9261% + MALQF M SingXpressZ
F155.16%f £52.40% - B BHNA AT A A
BIE——FRNA—AZRAHBEARRIHEA=ZE
——FRA=T—HZBINEE LM o
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e MRk EE
HE-T——F=A=1+—HIEFE
51. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 51. HhBEZF
In order to conform with the current year presentation, BERXFEZE2Y - RZTE——F=ZA=+—HZH
an item in the statements of financial position at 31 BARRRERIEECEHRHLE -
March 2011 has been reclassified.
Amount Amount as
original stated Reclassification restated
223z
RE#F =R i REIHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET THERT
Items on statements of financial R-E——HF=H=+—H
position at 31 March 2011 Z R R BRIER
Trade and other payables and & 5 N H M FE FRIEA K
accruals e+ BB (42,083) 7,456 (34,627)
Amounts due to non-controlling MR IEEIR 2R FIE
interests - (7,456) (7,456)
The reclassification has no impact on the comparative E%ﬁ’\’@lﬂ%’; ANE-—TFNA-—BZURET
figures as at 1 April 2010. Accordingly, no statements CREEIN - -TFMA A 2B ERE

of financial position at 1 April 2010 has been presented.



Xpress Group Limited $FREBBRAE

208

Financial Summary

MEHE

Results

Revenue
Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit (loss) for the year

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

FRm A (EE)

FEAG -
ZA/NCIE 2SN
IR R

FEBEN(ER)

BEERERE

REE
mas
FEIER R AR

RATRERA
PEfS R

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLHEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—F —T—F IZE-TF —TThF ZEITNF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT FET FAET T
81,529 75,321 77,013 1,112,218 1,430,713
(157,327) 51,282 190,074 (111,587) 9,315
(156,421) 45,417 191,005  (111,587) 12,229
(906) 5,865 (31) - (2,914)
(157,327) 51,282 190,974 (111,587) 9,315
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H

(Restated)  (Restated)

(E&51) (E51)
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—F —T—F EZ-TF _TThF ZZEITN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT FET FHET T
2,258,838 1,796,867 1,138,823 578,072 939,821
(1,397,589)  (894,493)  (366,144)  (150,337)  (380,151)
(102,589)  (32,769) - 31) (2,332)
758,660 869,605 772,679 427,704 557,338
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FTEVFBE
WZZE——F=H=+—H
PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE BRPGEYE
Estimate  Estimated
Stage of Land gross floor  completion Effective
Location completion area area date % held Type Lease term
ftst
2 T IR THEE AHEEEE TIAH EREEE(%) E iR
Pasir Ris Central/ Pasir Ris Drive I~ In design stage 176,400 sq ft 441,000 sq ft 2015 48.8% Residential  Long-term
BEIEES 176, 4005 R 441 000F 5% —T—HF ffe lease
BB
235 Balestier Road, SingXpress Design development  11,384sqft  31,875sqft 2015 64.8% Residential  Freehold
Mansion, Singapore 329699 stage 11,384F /R 31875FFR —Z—HF £ KSR
R REBER
Foh Pin Mansion, Construction works 34,154 sq. ft. 46,199 sq. ft. 2013 48.8% Residential  Freehold
No. 1 Charlton Road, in progress 34154FHR 46,19FFR —T—=%F = KAERE
Singapore 539548 BETRETH
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Gross Effective
Location area % held Type Lease term
i HEE BREEE(%) Ehl iR
No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on 34,760 sq. ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
1/F. and 32 Home Office 34,760F 'R FKEMRDE KAL)
Units on various floors,
Southbank, Singapore 198785
No. 200 Jalan Sultan, #08-11 2,378.96 sq. m. 100% Office premises Long-term lease
Textile Centre, Singapore 199018 2,378.96F 75K MAEYE REIMEL
No. 237 Arcadia Road, #05-01, 3,757 sq. ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
The Arcadia, Singapore 289844 3,757 /R BT REIFHA
Shophouse No.35 North Canal Road, 4,844 sq. ft. 100% Office premises Medium-term lease
Singapore 059291 4,844 F 7R YNELY HERTRAT
No.8 Eu Tong Sen Street, 1,195 sq. ft. 60.9% Office premises Long-term lease
#23-81 The Centre, 1,195F 5 R N ES REFAL

Singapore 059818
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R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—~H

Location

1o Bk

8 Residential Units,
Dakota Residences,
34-42 Dakota Crescent,
Singapore 399939

4 units on various floor, Amoy Gardens,
No. 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BRNENEESEABITRANCE
TEEE4EE R

7 units on various floor, Parkland Villas,
No. 1 Tuen On Lane,
Tuen Mun, New Territories,

Hong Kong
BEMAEPEZRIRBAE
TREE7EER

6 units on various floor, Beneville,
No. 18 Tuen Kwai Road,
Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BRI R HEPIEERSER I
TR E6EE L

2 units on various floor,
Affluence Garden,
No. 33 Tsing Chung Koon Road,
Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BA AT EIEEI3TELER
TREE2REE

Gross

area

HEE
14,682 sq. ft.

14,682F 7R

1,821 sq. ft.
1,821F AR

3,881 sq. ft.
3,881 F 7R

3,460 sq. ft.
3,460F R

1,015 sq. ft.
1,015F AR

Effective
% held
BEREERE (%)

100%

60.9%

60.9%

60.9%

60.9%

Type
8al

Apartment

B

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Lease term

=k

Long-term lease

D

Medium-term lease

FEIRE A

Medium-term lease

REIFE A

Medium-term lease

REIREA

Medium-term lease

REITRA
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Location

1o Bk

11 units on various floor,
Tsuen Wan Centre,
Nos. 88-105 Tsuen King Circuit,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BEEMRLEERE-R- 105K EEH L
TEEREEN

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on
2nd Carparking Floor,
Wyndham Place,
No.44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong
BERPREMEM4FEREES L3012
K2 FE 5 CRR L

Parcels of Land located at 671-180-012,
013,014, 015,016, 017, 018
Desert Hot Springs,
Country of Riverside,
State of California,
92503, U.S.A.

Townhouse unit on Strata Lot 7,
No. 1281 Alberni Street,
District Lot 85 District,
Strata Plan LMS3094,

City of Vancouver,

Canada

Car Parking Spaces Nos. 22, 23,
24 on Lower Ground Floor,
Inverness Villa,
No. 22 Inverness Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BEABNELEE B2
TESRIZEH 22 ~ 23 ~ 2457 8 {1

The Hamilton, 1-238, Nishi 15-chome,
Minami 060-0061 1-jo, Chuo-ku,
Sapporo, Hokkaido, Japan

Gross

area

BEE

4,810 sq. ft.
4 810F AR

3,480 sq. ft.
3,480 F R

67.5 acres/
273,200 sq. m./
2,940,300 sq. ft.
67.5,
273,200 5K,/
2,940,300F R

1,572 sq. ft.
1,572 53R

30sq. m./
322 sq. ft.
307K/
322¥7R

3,209 sq. m.
3,209F 77K

Effective
% held
BEREERE(%)

60.9%

100%

100%

100%

100%

81.8%

BT EFR

Office premises and
Car Parking space

Car parking space

Annual Report 2012
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Lease term
=k

Medium-term lease

REITEA

Long-term lease

REHD

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA

Medium-term lease

REITEA

Freehold
KAFERE
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R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—~H

LAND AND BUILDINGS

Location

1%

24/F and Carpark No. C12 on
3rd Carparking Floor, Wyndham Place,
No. 44 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong
ERPREREM4REREES D241
RIBFEESCI2SREN

Aizuya, 733 Shiobara,
Nasu-shiobara City,
Tochigi 329-2921, Japan

Miyazaki Hotel Plaza,
1-1, Kawahara-cho,
Miyazaki, Miyazaki 880-0866,
Japan

T RETF

Gross

area

BER

3,480 sq. ft.
3,480F /5 R

3,152 sq. m.
3,152 5K

17,721 sq. m.
17,721 753k

Effective
% held
EREERE(%)

100%

81.8%

81.8%

Type
Bhl

Office premises and
car parking space

E/NELYEJNEE

Hotel

BEE

Hotel
BIE

Lease term

=)

Long-term lease

D

Freehold
KAERE

Freehold
KA



Track Record of Projects Completed
by Xpress Group over 50 Years
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Hong Kong

Housing Estates and Home Ownership
Schemes (“H.0.S”)

Butterﬂy Estate, Phase V, H.O.S., Hong Kong
Cheung Ching Estate Phase II Extension, Hong Kong
Cho Yiu Estate, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase ITA, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IIB, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase ITI, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IV, Hong Kong

Fu Shan Estate, Hong Kong

Kwun Tong Central H.O.S., Hong Kong

Lower Wong Tai Sin Estate, Phase I1I, Hong Kong
Po On Market & H.O.S., Hong Kong

R.AF. Kai Tak Estate, Phase I & II, Hong Kong
Shek Wu Hui Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong

Sun Chui Estate, Phase III, Hong Kong

Tai Yuen Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong

Tsing Yi Estate, Phase I, H.O.S., Hong Kong
Tsing Yi Tiger’s Head Village Resite, Hong Kong
Tung Tau Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong

Wang Tau Home Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong
Wo Che Estate, Hong Kong

Wong Kong Shan Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong
Wong Kong Shan Estate, Phase III, Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Factories

Cheung Sha Wan Flatted Factory, Hong Kong
Fo Tan Yeuk Flatted Factory, Hong Kong
Keng Fong Industrial Building, Hong Kong
Kowloon Bay Flatted Factory, Hong Kong
Kwai Chung Industrial Building, Hong Kong
Kwong Luen Tai factory, Hong Kong

Tuen Mun Area 9, Flatted Factory, Hong Kong
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Hong Kong

Residential

217-223 Shanghai Street, Hong Kong
222-224 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong
Cedar Apartments, Hong Kong

Chea Jun House, Hong Kong

Inverness Villas, Hong Kong

Kin Fook Mansions, Hong Kong

King Lam Apartments, Hong Kong
Moreton Terrace, Hong Kong

Rhenish Mansions, Hong Kong

Tak Yan Mansion, Hong Kong
Townhouses at 26 Shouson Hill Road, Hong Kong
Tung Shan Villas, Hong Kong

Villa Dorado, Hong Kong

Y.Y. Mansions, Hong Kong

Yik Kwan Villas, Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Offices and Commercial Buildings

Dao Heng Bank Building, Hong Kong

Tai Lee Building, Hong Kong

Tak Yan Commercial Building, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate Community Centre, Hong Kong

Fire Services Headquarter, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Hong Kong
Judiciary Building, Gascoigne Road, Hong Kong

Kai Tak Airport, 747 Nose-in-pier No. 1727 Bus

Docks, Hong Kong

Kai Tak Airport Terminal Building, Extension, Hong Kong

Kai Tak Airport Terminal Building, Fitting Out work, Hong Kong
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Kwai Chung N.T.S.D. Garage, Hong Kong

Ngau Tau Kok Housing / Marketing Complex, Hong Kong
Red Cross Blood Transfusion Centre, Hong Kong
Secondary School, Area 3D, Shatin, Hong Kong

Shatin Lawcourt, Hong Kong

Shun Lee Estate, Secondary School & Community Centre,
Hong Kong

To Kwa Wan Market and Government Office, Hong Kong
Tsuen Wan Multi-storey Carpark & Transport Interchange,
Hong Kong

Overseas Project

United States of America

Townhouses, Monterey Park, California
Condominiums, Alhambra, California
Townhouses, Alhambra, California

Canada
Windsor Gardens, Vancouver, Canada
Ladner Pointe, Delta, B.C., Canada

Malaysia
Sri Tunku, luxury condominiums, Malaysia
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Xpress Group Limited SingXpress Land Ltd BEEEARATH SingXpress Land Ltd
24th Floor 81 Ubi Avenue 4, #02-20 UB One, Fs 81 Ubi Avenue 4, #02-20 UB One,
Wyndham Place Singapore 408830 FRIRE R 1540-445% Singapore 408830
40-44 Wyndham Street EREFE L2418
Central, Hong Kong Tel: 65 6533 9023 B 16565339023
Fax: 65 6532 7602 EAE 8522258 6888 fHH 1 6565327602
Tel: 852 2258 6888 B85 © 8522258 6800
Fax: 852 2258 6800 Website #ik
www.singxpressland.com ESpl www.singxpressland.com
Website WWW.XPIessgroup.com
WWW.XprCSSgroup.C0m
BRGREE
Stock Code B ZZFT 0185
Stock Exchange : 185 ZEER 185 HK
Bloomberg : 185 HK FRiBEA 1 0185.HK
Reuters : 0185.HK
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Bond Code B FT 4508
Stock Exchange: 4508 ZHEH | XPRESS 15 CORP

Bloomberg: XPRESS 15 CORP
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